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Financial Highlights ##%#Z

Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2025 BZ=—Z-R5=A=+-ALEEZ2FEE
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Net asset value (HK$'M)
LEESE (EEET)

Revenue (HK$'M) (Loss)/profit attributable

to shareholders (HK$'M)
BREEFEM (1) F (et

ez (BEET)

Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2025 HE-Z-RE=-A=t-REEZ

2EEE

¢ Revenue o g HK$457.8 million ~ 457.8 HEB T
* Loss before income tax o BRFTSHATER HK$(11.9) million (M9 EBBER
¢ Shareholders’ equity as at 31 March 2025 ‘RIB-EE=ZA=+-ARFER HK$465.9 million  465.9BEET
* Basic (loss)/earnings per share o BREX (FRE),/ %7 HK(1.87) cents (1.87) 784l
2025 2024
—EZHF —E-NEF
Revenue (HK$'000) g (F# ) 457,782 459,848
Operating (loss)/profit (HK$’000) &g (F1R), &R (FET) (8,810) 14,477
(Loss)/Profit before income tax (HK$’000) METEFRA (BB) 58 (FBx) (11,876) 10,862

(Loss)/Profit attributable to shareholders IRERFEAS (E518), 5 F|
(HK$’000) (F#&T) (13,440) 8,543
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK cents) BREXR (BE), &R GBI (1.87) 1.19
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) #Z#& AR S G84L) - -
Net asset value (HK$'000) BEFE(TET) 465,923 495,493
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Chairman’s Statement XE#REE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the management, | am
pleased to present to the Company’s shareholders a review of
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2025 and our
prospects.

Our financial projections for 2025 illustrate the impacts of
macroeconomic instability, fluctuations in currency, and shifting
consumer behaviours. This year has witnessed significant global
volatility and geopolitical tensions, creating a challenging
environment for Hong Kong's real estate market. The decline of the
US dollar (the “USD”) notably affects Hong Kong businesses, given
that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the USD. Recent
developments — such as persistently high the United States (the
“U.S.”) interest rates, rampant inflation stemming from the tariff
conflict, rising global energy costs, renewed instability in the
Middle East, and escalating U.S. protectionism under Donald
Trump’s isolationist policies — highlight the uncertainty
confronting property developers, investors, and consumers alike.

Trump’s economic perspective primarily concerns a perceived
trade imbalance, which he associates with the rising national debt
accumulated since the 1970s. This debt originates from U.S.
investments in international economic growth, where recipient
nations purchase U.S. bonds, effectively becoming creditors in this
scenario. To address this imbalance, Trump advocates for higher
tariffs, arguing that global trade deficits must be resolved. His
administration has been actively involved in trade renegotiations
with China, Mexico, the European Union (the “EU”) and Canada to
pursue this objective. Nevertheless, economists are split on
whether trade deficits indicate inherent economic weakness or
merely reflect strong domestic demand. A significant concern is
that Trump’s policies are contributing to an uncertain global
economic landscape, as numerous countries, including Canada,
China, and the EU, are enacting retaliatory tariffs in response to
U.S. measures. This situation heightens the risks to international
trade stability in the foreseeable future.

BRR :

RAABARREEZEREBBEO AR ARRREZSE
ECECAEZAZ+-RLEFECZE2FEEDR
RARERE

EMY -2 _AFNMERIRREZESERRE
- ERRBRHEEETAESNEE - XFEE2R
KEREDRRABEBERER KEERHETS
EETRMRENERE BEREBTEET(ET))
B EAREHEBLEXSERE c EHBERE —
PIMEEFREFES T R ERSIBRONBREE
EHERRA LA FREZBEDE  UAREH
(B DREZREENE  HHZNIMTERK
ETTEAR — WETHEBRRE  REENHE
EHREERNTREM o

BHENEERRIEETHRENER LG - L
HEE-NEZFRIRRORERAEHE - ILEHK
FREEHERETERNIRE  EXEBAXE
&% ARBRTEERREREA - BYEZKE
BREIRESENR AB/LEABRRRREZEE -
HEFEBESE 2AF BR(HEDRNE
REFETEFGRALUERIBZ - A KBEER
HESZEERORREBARNERS  INERRR
YRF BRT— - —AEXERER - BAEBE
EMBIZREEAMSTHY - RERMEX » PER
BEERZAREERREEBED R XEIERE -
LREAE AR R MBS E ZREERR -
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Chairman’s Statement XFEREZ

The ongoing tariff dispute between the U.S. and China has led to
widespread negative economic consequences. High tariffs, which
serve as an import tax for U.S. importers, have increased both
production and consumer expenses, leading to ongoing inflationary
pressures in the U.S. As a result, the Federal Reserve has had to
keep interest rates elevated to curb inflation, restricting its options
in monetary policy. This prolonged period of high interest rates has
significantly increased national debt servicing costs, adding further
strain to the federal budget. With fiscal deficits widening and debt
servicing becoming increasingly difficult, investor confidence in
the long-term stability of the U.S. dollar has begun to wane. The
dollar’s decline — illustrated by the notable 7.5% drop in the DXY
index since early 2025 — has further exacerbated global currency
volatility and contributed to rising import costs in dollar-pegged
economies, such as Hong Kong.

Hong Kong's economy is intricately linked with that of Mainland
China. Thus, China’s strategic actions in response to U.S. tariffs —
such as promoting import substitution, enhancing industrial
capabilities, and expanding trade with emerging markets — have a
direct influence on Hong Kong's trade logistics, investment
movements, and real estate dynamics. However, the tariff conflict
has weakened investor confidence across both economies,
resulting in a decline in foreign direct investment and reduced
cross-border capital flows. Hong Kong’s role as a global
intermediary is under strain, and potential property buyers are
hesitant due to high interest rates and a falling price trend (-30%)
since 2021.

SENTXENRFRCEHEZAELERRR
SERFAXEEOBIEOR  BMTEERE
BEXH  BEREESEBRRED - A XEES
HEESNRUBHBIR - RETEBBREE - RY
SANEREERNEGEENRAE  E—- S MBI A
BB - BEVBFAZRAREEHRERA - REE
HEARIRBREMEWE OMBARMES - ExRE —
BRNEAEBE -2 -AFPNEETKR 5% —
E-SEBEATERERRE  WEHXTHBHERK
B (WEB)EOKAELHA -

FBEEEME A EFRE - ALt - PEIEYHEE
BABI MV BIRE SR — HIMEEE QN BR ML EXRE
WREREFETEES — HBBNEZYR
REFOREHEBDEELTEETE - AW - BH
BREFWHREERL > BRIIFEERERD

RESEEHRBER BB EAEEZBRFNNACHE
SRBRL BEVEEZASHNERBEZZE=—FL
REKEBE (-30%) MIFEEBREE -
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On February 26, 2025, the Inland Revenue Department announced
that the government’s total revenue for the 2024-25 fiscal year
decreased to HK$559.6 billion, representing an 11.6% decline
compared to the previous year, mainly due to lower-than-expected
stamp duty and land premium income. As a result. For the 2025-
26 fiscal year, revenue is estimated at HK$659.4 billion, with total
government expenditure projected at HK$822.3 billion, leading to
an anticipated deficit of HK$162.9 billion. Despite the decline,
according to the 2025-26 Hong Kong Budget delivered by
Financial Secretary Paul Chan on 28 February 2025, fiscal reserves
remain substantial at HK$647.3 billion as of March 2025, forecast
to decrease to HK$580.3 billion by March 2026, offering a
significant buffer amid global uncertainties.

The Hong Kong Trade Development Council’s report dated 29 May
2025, predicts that the city’s GDP will grow by 2.0% to 3.0% this
year, driven primarily by robust exports and steady investment,
although domestic consumption remains weak. Despite
maintaining a cautious outlook, the broader macroeconomic
landscape faces significant uncertainties, including global inflation,
ongoing US-China trade tensions, and high U.S. interest rates —
the U.S. Federal Reserve’s target interest rate remains in the range
of between 4.25% and 4.50% — that increase global financing
costs and impact capital flows in Hong Kong.

Geopolitical issues, such as the Iran-Israel conflict, also contribute
to this uncertainty. A temporary surge in capital inflows earlier this
year significantly boosted liquidity, resulting in a sharp decline in
the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR), which fell to an
almost negligible rate of 0.5% in April 2025. This temporary
reduction in borrowing costs prompted a considerable rise in
private residential sales month-on-month in April compared to
March, as developers responded by lowering prices and launching
additional projects to capitalise on the positive market sentiment.
This shift contributed to notable changes in market dynamics,
causing a brief surge in transaction volumes. This modest recovery
seems to stem more from a temporary influx of foreign exchange
funds rather than a real shift in demand fundamentals.

This recovery should be viewed in a broader context. The overall
cost of capital continues to face persistent upward pressure from
ongoing global inflation and the U.S. Federal Reserve’s cautious
approach to monetary easing. As liquidity conditions start to
normalise, HIBOR is likely to rise again, potentially tightening
financing and impacting both affordability and transaction levels.
Moreover, ongoing high logistics and fuel costs continue to affect
Hong Kong’s economy, exerting additional pressure on import
inflation and adding pressure on consumers and businesses.

RZBE-ZHEZAZ+XB REBAH  BFAR
CECNE_ABBEENBRRETRZES96ES
T REFETHKI.6%  TERRNERREIHEE
WAERTEER - At 5T B HZ - AHBFE
HUR 56,594 BB T FEFTBUTAR X A8,2231&
BT BHFERAT1,629F8 T  BEWRETE
REFBAARREER-Z-_AF=-A=1+/\H
BRN_Z_RAZ_AFEFHEER BHE_Z
—HEFE=ANSBREENSE473EEL  EAE
—E-ARE=AKMRESSEBT  EERTHE
HERTREEEEE -

EREFBRRBR-_Z-AFHEA=-TIANRSE
AR AFERBLEERERIER2.0%E3.0% £
EZBRHHORBERERD  EAMEERAK
55 - BERIFBTERE  ERZBKEREDHRE
ATEEN  BFEE2NRER  FETXEZERRED
REEFNERSE — XBHEBRRNRESN425%E
450% EBE — ERNERBERFALFEEBES
B e

HEBUARIRE - MFBAEL G5 NER - Bt
BEM AFEDNESRAETHRBEZEESR
o BEYFEBRITEXEFBHBORZEK  RZZ
“HFEMABRERFABEAETNO0.5% o EREAE
ERTREEDANDAAEEHEER=ANRA
BELH FRARZREBERZEERMERE UL
BREEBHSEE LEZSIEMSBEEESL
BRXSZEFETRI; - LWRNERCEZFERIMNEE
SERRA > MAFREADEEES -

HERFENREERFAESTER FEEHBERK
EBRREERRRNEERE  SEBELIRLSF
FEHRLITELD - BERBMEMRREBEREL
HIBORTAEEBE LH » ANERMETL L ERIERE
HERGKF o o HESENIR KM R A EE
HETBEE  WEOBREMEINED - LHNEHE
BERDESE-
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Chairman’s Statement XFEREZ

In 2024, private residential transactions totalled 53,099 units, with
primary sales accounting for 32.0%. However, the market is facing
a significant oversupply issue. Between January and April 2025,
17,887 units were sold, with 31.0% coming from the primary
market, indicating a slight recovery attributed mainly to improved
liquidity and pricing incentives from developers. An estimated
20,000 new private units are expected to enter the market annually
in the next few years. In contrast, the projected annual demand for
the primary market is between 14,400 and 16,990 units,
highlighting the persistent risk of ongoing oversupply.

While short-term liquidity inflows have provided a fleeting sense of
optimism in the property sector, the long-term outlook is hindered
by ongoing inflation, high global interest rates, structural
oversupply, low buyer confidence, and shifting investor
expectations. Additionally, geopolitical uncertainties and the
broader consequences of global monetary tightening further
complicate recovery prospects. As a result, the residential property
market in Hong Kong is expected to experience continuing
downward pressure throughout the remainder of 2025 and into
2026. These evolving conditions are significantly affecting market
sentiment and reshaping consumer behaviour, investor strategies,
and the operational priorities of businesses across the industry.

In the first quarter of 2025, Hong Kong’s residential property price
index fell by 7.7% compared to the same period last year. This
marks the thirteenth consecutive quarter of decline, resulting in a
decrease of over 30.0% since the middle of 2023. Ongoing
macroeconomic uncertainties have caused significant financial
challenges for our Group this fiscal year, primarily due to the
revaluation of property assets, which has led to a decrease in
market value of HK$44.4 million. This total includes a reported
revaluation loss of HK$13.3 million in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, along with an additional HK$19.4
million recorded in other comprehensive income. Furthermore, we
achieved steady sales turnover; however, a 6.0% rise in the cost of
goods sold resulted in an 11.0% drop in gross profit, primarily
driven by increasing import costs, the depreciation of the Hong
Kong dollar against the Euro, and escalating logistics costs.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

RZZE-NE > RAFEERBE 53,0998
—FHSHEG32.0% R > TS EHERBEMHE
BREBE RZS-AF-—AZNAHB €4
17,887 AN » HF31.0% KB —F W5 » BERE
HMERTERANRBUNEREEECEER -
FEH R IRLEFFHEHE 20,000 EHFAAEHEHT
B HLEZT  —FHEEFFEEFERNF 14,400
£16,990 BB - LWFEEIFEMREBRIER o

THESRAEAYETETRETLBEE
BERENSNIZIHNBEERR 2RSR=E - 484
HEBE EXE0EBRBVESTEHEE o o
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Our financial results for 2025 reflect the impact of external factors
beyond our control, including macroeconomic instability, foreign
exchange volatility, high inflation, and a high-interest-rate
environment, rather than operational inefficiencies. These
circumstances emphasise the challenging macroeconomic
environment in which the Group and other publicly listed
companies operate, highlighting the overarching risks beyond the
company’s control.

In the first half of 2025, Hong Kong demonstrated remarkable
resilience in its financial sector, reinforcing its status as the leading
global hub for IPO fundraising, alongside a noticeable rebound in the
Hang Seng Index. These developments appear to signal a revival in
investor confidence and participation in capital markets. Nevertheless,
the wider economic environment remains intricate and uncertain.
Ongoing global inflation, elevated interest rates influenced by the U.S.
Federal Reserve’s policies, and the considerable burden of servicing
the U.S. national debt continue to shape global capital flows.
Additionally, the persistent US-China tariff conflict and China’s
corresponding responses have intensified inflationary pressures,
particularly impacting Hong Kong due to its strong connections with
both economies and its currency’s peg to the USD.

Geopolitical issues, such as the ongoing Iran-Israel conflict and its
consequent impact on oil prices, further complicate the
macroeconomic outlook. The Financial Secretary intends to
position Hong Kong as the leading global asset management hub
within the next three years. Nonetheless, the success of this
initiative depends on effectively tackling global risks, restoring
confidence in Greater China’s economic outlook, and enhancing
the city’s strategic strengths. Thus, Hong Kong’s continued financial
supremacy does not rely on sidestepping external challenges but
rather on the adaptability of its policies, the flexibility of its
operations, and regional stability. These obstacles are expected to
persist until there is greater clarity on global trade dynamics and
the potential for monetary easing becomes a realistic possibility.

Looking ahead, the Board acknowledges that the global and local
economic outlook remains quite uncertain. Ongoing inflation, high
interest rates, heightened geopolitical tensions, and the long-term
effects of the US’s tariff policy on the global economy, particularly
the US-China tariff dispute, are all contributing to an unpredictable
operational landscape.

B - E AT BEERRIZEIIBEEN
T BEZELEETRE IERD  SEERES
FRBR MILBERRTR - HEBRBALER
REMETARKEERMENRERZBETRE =
BhEEHSEEMRRRR o

REEFVHESEEZER - A ERZEEREN
BRI FEZRER  IXBREBRZENST
R UREEREENHWAEEE  SEFE2RE
ERE o b BANPEER TR PEBRHE
MEITERED HEBHELR  RRAREBEM
AREEREFTRERHEWEE TR

MG RE - SINFRENGSINEEFTRRA
HhENETHE  ERBSENSEBER - MK
ARARBRAR=ZEKEBEVNARERELEEE
HL o AT - LLERRETR AT - BURRAREH 2K
Er - EREAPEHELSHENRVELRBIEAR
BEKED - At FESENSREZ TERNER
SVEPEREL > MERBERERY £BEENREEE
Bt WEERAMEEEZ2HREZHEEBHA
BRERERTRMER 2R -

RERK  ESERIAEHRAMBEEIRNSE
THE - FEER 87X ARMEBCARRR
2 UREEERERE2REENRBLE (LA
RHERABER)  WEREERRHURA -
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Chairman’s Statement XFEREZ

Nevertheless, the Group has consistently demonstrated agility and
resilience in managing economic disruptions over the years.
Although it is challenging — and ultimately unrealistic — to make
accurate predictions under such volatile circumstances, our near-
term focus will remain on capital preservation, prudent cost
control, and market diversification, while committing to delivering
quality building materials, sanitary ware, and interior solutions to
both the private and subsidised housing sectors.

We will leverage our deep market insights, industry expertise, and
strong partnerships with real estate developers, suppliers, and
customers to address market changes proactively. The Group will
tackle macroeconomic challenges with the same discipline and
determination that has guided us through earlier cycles. We are
committed to prudent financial management, flexible strategy, and
efficient operations.

With the ongoing support of shareholders and a dedicated
management team, we remain optimistic about our ability to
overcome current challenges and position the Group for
sustainable, long-term growth once geopolitical stability is
achieved.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

24 June 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in importing, wholesale,
retailing, and installing architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom,
and kitchen collections, as well as furniture, and providing interior
design services, project management, and contract management in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

For the financial year ended 31 March 2025, E. Bon Holdings
Limited operated in a global economic environment that has
become increasingly volatile. Despite the rising macroeconomic
and geopolitical headwinds, the Company has demonstrated
resilience, navigating a challenging operating landscape for Hong
Kong businesses. This underscores the uncertainty facing property
developers, investors, and consumers alike. The interplay of
persistently high United States (the “U.S.”) interest rates, rising
global energy prices, renewed Middle East instability, and growing
U.S. protectionism, under Donald John Trump’s (the “Trump’s”)
renewed isolationist platform and shifting trade policies, continued
to influence market conditions, particularly in Hong Kong's real
estate and construction sectors.

Current tariff conflict, directed at various nations but particularly
the PRC, has contributed to a potential increase inflation in the U.S.
The introduction of widespread tariffs and escalating import costs
might worsen this inflationary trend. In recent months, the U.S.
dollar has weakened; the U.S. Dollar Index indicates a decline of
approximately 7.5% since early 2025, reflecting a decline in
investor confidence amid rising tensions and concerns about trade
policy and fiscal discipline.

In light of the ongoing trade and geopolitical uncertainties that
have led to high inflation in the U.S., the Federal Reserve is
expected to maintain its policy rate between 4.25% and 4.50%.
On 18 June 2025, U.S. Federal Reserve Chair Jerome Powell
reaffirmed the Fed’s commitment to controlling inflation, stating
that the “focus is on keeping inflation low and employment high in
the near term.” Consequently, financial markets adjusted their
expectations: the U.S. 30-year Treasury yield rose to 4.88%, a clear
signal that rate cuts are unlikely in the medium term.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONT'D)

The depreciation of the U.S. dollar against major currencies, driven
by rising U.S. deficits and uncertainties in trade policy, directly
weakens the Hong Kong dollar’s peg. This means that a notable
decline in the U.S. dollar against major currencies, such as the
Euro or the British pound, results in a similar drop in the Hong
Kong dollar’s value against those currencies. As a result, import
costs from both the EU and the UK have risen significantly in
recent months. This situation has further squeezed profit margins
for Hong Kong businesses that rely on imported goods and raw
materials, despite the Hong Kong dollar maintaining stability
within its official peg range against the U.S. dollar.

The US-China tariffs conflict and China’s countermeasures have
significantly impacted Hong Kong’s economy, owing to its close
ties with China and its position as a global trade and financial hub.
Disruptions related to tariffs have led to reduced re-export volumes,
diminished investor and consumer confidence, and increased
import costs resulting from currency fluctuations and supply chain
uncertainties. These challenges have hindered business activity,
particularly in trade, logistics, and real estate, while undermining
Hong Kong's role as a neutral gateway between the East and the
West. Consequently, the escalating geopolitical tensions pose
ongoing risks to Hong Kong’s economic stability and growth
potential.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$457.8 million, maintaining a stable
performance compared to the previous year, which was HK$459.8
million. While revenue remains largely consistent with that of last
year, increased costs of goods sold by 6.0% due to the appreciating
Euro, and heightened market competition have resulted in an
11.0% decline in gross profit, falling from HK$179.2 million to
HK$160.0 million. Despite these challenges, the Company’s stable
revenue is a testament to its resilience in the face of economic
uncertainties.

The prolonged high-interest rate environment in the U.S., sustained
by the Federal Reserve in response to inflationary pressures, has
had direct consequences for Hong Kong’s economy, given the
city’s currency peg to the U.S. dollar. The depreciation of the U.S.
dollar has resulted in inflationary pressures within the Hong Kong
economy. Elevated borrowing costs have curtailed consumer
spending, corporate investment, and hiring of new employees,
leading to more cautious business activity across various industries.
Long-term rates in Hong Kong remain high, affecting mortgage
affordability and eroding market confidence.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (coNT'D)

The Rating and Valuation Department (the “RVD”) reports that in
2023, 43,002 private housing units were sold, with approximately
25.0% of these being primary sales. This number increased to
53,099 units in 2024, where 32.0% were classified as primary
sales. Between January and April 2025, 17,887 units were sold,
with 31.0% coming from the primary market. This data shows that
newly completed units consistently account for approximately
30.0% of total private housing transactions.

The RVD transaction data further reveals a continuing oversupply
in the private domestic housing market in the coming years.
Although total transactions have increased year-on-year, primary-
market absorption remains structurally lower than new supply.
Current estimates for annual primary-market sales range from
approximately 14,400 to 16,990 units.

In contrast, private housing completions are expected to reach
20,860 units in 2025 and 20,100 units in 2026. This indicates that
new build supply will continue to exceed primary market demand
by approximately 4,000 to 6,000 units each year.

Moreover, this imbalance between supply and demand is
exacerbated by unsold inventory and ongoing turnover in the
secondary market, which refers to the continuous buying and
selling of existing homes, resulting in a total available housing
stock that significantly surpasses the annual transaction volume of
approximately 50,000 units.

In short, there are more houses available than buyers in both the
primary and overall markets. This excess supply is steadily driving
house prices down in Hong Kong, and this trend is expected to
continue for a while.

The recent influx of talent migrants to Hong Kong has primarily
bolstered the private residential rental market rather than increasing
property purchases. Many newcomers, drawn by the Top Talent
Pass Scheme (the “TTPS”) and the Quality Migrant Admission
Scheme (the “QMAS”), prefer renting due to its flexibility and the
considerable financial and regulatory challenges linked to
homeownership, including high stamp duties and stricter mortgage
requirements for non-permanent residents. While this demographic
has driven up demand and rental prices in major urban areas, their
impact on private residential sales remains minimal, with purchases
largely restricted to a small number of long-term or high-net-worth
individuals.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONT'D)

The RVD reports that the private residential property price index in
Hong Kong fell by 7.7% in April compared to the same period last
year. This marks the thirteenth consecutive quarter of decline,
resulting in a total decrease of over 30.0% since the middle of
2023. The ongoing drop in prices is linked to a complex mix of
macroeconomic and geopolitical factors significantly impacting
Hong Kong’s real estate market, leading developers to prioritise the
sale of existing inventory. This scenario has triggered a negative
feedback loop, characterised by declining consumer and investor
confidence, which in turn leads to reduced market activity, falling
property prices, and a decrease in investment flows.

Our financial results for 2025, with steady sales turnover, resulted
in a 6.0% increase in costs of goods sold, leading to an 11.0%
decrease in gross profit (by HK$19.2 million compared to the
previous year). This decline was driven by external pressures that
affected pricing and cost structures.

The Company has encountered significant financial challenges and
recorded a substantial non-cash loss of HK$44.4 million due to
property valuations during the year. Of this amount, HK$13.3
million was recognised as impairment in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, with an additional HK$19.4
million recorded through other comprehensive income. Despite
these valuation losses, our core operations remained stable.
Rigorous cost-control efforts helped to contain operating expenses,
partially offsetting margin pressures and inflating staff cost.

We acknowledge the recent decline in our reported profits,
primarily driven by asset revaluation rather than operational
weakness. Our core business fundamentals remain sound, and we
continue to execute our strategic vision with resilience and
determination.

In this challenging year, the Company has been dedicated to
operational efficiency, market adaptability, and long-term value
creation. The Group consistently supplies high-quality building
materials, sanitary ware, and interior solutions while actively
adapting its product range to align with changing consumer
preferences. In response to the rising demand for budget-friendly
options due to increased price sensitivity, the Group has
strategically modified its product portfolio to better address shifting
market dynamics.
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REVENUE REVIEW

Revenue by business segment

Wy 2 =

BRERDBE D 2 W

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s total revenue was ®BE=ZZ-AF=ZA=+—-HLFE AEEHLWK

HK$457.8 million, representing a decrease of 0.4% as compared

with the previous year.

wH4578EEBT  BEFRD0.4% -

Architectural builders’ hardware,
bathroom collections and others
Kitchen collection and furniture

Profitability by business segment

Architectural builders’ hardware,
bathroom collections and others
Kitchen collection and furniture

Revenue from external customers

As a percentage of sales

31 March 31 March
HANEF KR HHEEEIHL
=ZA=+—H =A=+—8H
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024
—E-ERE —TNmE B8 - s 3 = o113
HK$/000 HK$’000 (%) (%) (%)
FHET FHET
BEAS  EARE
R EHAM 343,757 349,943 (1.8) 75.1 76.1
B EREREM 114,025 109,905 3.7 24.9 23.9
457,782 459,848 (0.4) 100.0 100.0
BREKIIHE D 2 BFIESD

Reportable segment gross profit

Gross profit margin

Revenue from the architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom
collections and others segment decreased by 1.8% to HK$343.8
million (2024: HK$349.9 million) as compared to the previous
year. During the year, we supplied for projects such as 101 King's
Road, Beacon Peak, Deep Water Pavilia, Cullinan Sky.

Revenue from the kitchen collection and furniture segment
increased by 3.7% to HK$114.0 million (2024: HK$109.9 million)
as compared to the previous year. During the year, we supplied for

project such as JARDINI.

AER2 2 IBEF EFI=E
2025 2024 Change 2025 2024
“E-HF —EMEF BE —E-HF —EIEF
HK$/000 HK$'000 (%) (%) (%)
FEx FET

BERS  HARE
REHAM 122,519 138,705 (11.7) 35.6 39.6
HEREREM 37,480 40,505 (7.5) 32.9 36.9
159,999 179,210 (10.7) 35.0 39.0

BERS  HAREREMIBREEEFRD1.8%
B33 8FEERT(ZZE-MF :34998EBT) °
RAEE » &MA 101 King's Road ~ 58 ~ HE - X
H. XEHARMER °

BEREBREMI BURBREFIEMI.7%E114.0
BEBT(ZEZMNFE10998BB L) e RAF
EEZMALE « ZAILSBERMEER-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVENUE REVIEW (conT'D)

Profitability by business segment (cont’d)

The overall gross profit of the Group amounted to HK$160.0
million (2024: HK$179.2 million), representing a decrease of
10.7% from the previous year. The overall gross profit margin
decreased from 39.0% to 35.0%.

The Group’s operating loss was HK$8.8 million (2024: operating
profit: HK$14.5 million), representing a decrease of 160.9% from
the prior year. The amount of administrative expenses and
distribution costs decreased by 3.5% to HK$156.0 million (2024:
HK$161.7 million) which reflected our efforts in controlling selling
expenses despite resumption in selling activities, cost control in
rental and distribution and ever inflating staff cost.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to operate its business in Hong Kong and the
PRC while adopting a prudent financial management policy. The
current ratio and quick ratio are 2.8 (2024: 2.2) and 1.8 (2024: 1.2),
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits with
maturity over three months approximated HK$129.5 million as at
31 March 2025 (2024: HK$87.7 million).

Inventories decreased to HK$113.2 million (2024: HK$169.7
million). The trade, retention and other receivables decreased to
HK$80.2 million (2024: HK$115.1 million), while the trade and
other payables decreased to HK$20.9 million (2024: HK$31.0
million).

As at 31 March 2025, the gearing ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group is net cash position (2024: 2.0%). The interest-
bearing borrowings of the Group decreased to HK$26.9 million
(2024: HK$58.6 million) as at 31 March 2025.

Treasury Policy

Borrowings, cash and cash equivalents are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Euro (“Euro”). During the year,
the Group entered into certain forward contracts to buy Euro for
settlement of purchases. The management will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange risk exposure of the Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (conNT'D)

Contingent Liabilities

We seek to manage our cash flow and capital commitments
effectively to ensure that we have sufficient funds to meet our
existing and future cash requirements. We have not experienced
any difficulties in meeting our obligations as they become due.
Assets under charge include mortgaged property acquired. As at 31
March 2025, performance bonds of approximately HK$2.7 million
(2024: HK$7.9 million) have been issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts. Save for the performance bonds
for projects, the Group has no other material financial
commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2025.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Ongoing global tariff disputes, potential retaliatory actions against
the U.S., and particularly the trade tensions between the U.S. and
China, have disrupted supply chains, eroding confidence in Hong
Kong as a key link between China and international trade. These
tensions have led to a shift in trade routes and a decrease in the
volume of goods passing through Hong Kong, impacting the city’s
economy and its status as a major trading hub. These tariffs, along
with escalating geopolitical tensions, have disrupted logistics,
leading to longer lead times and increased freight and warehousing
costs. This disruption affects trade flows and has repercussions for
sectors such as logistics, finance, and professional services. Hong
Kong companies involved in cross-border transactions are facing
and will continue to face increasing operational costs and
regulatory challenges, leading to a decline in investment activities.

Tariff wars and retaliatory actions continue to impact global trade,
resulting in increased logistics expenses. Tariffs and retaliatory
duties function as an unrecognised tax, elevating import expenses
and contributing to overall inflation. This inflationary burden
restricts the Federal Reserve’s capacity to lower rates, which keeps
borrowing costs high throughout the economy. Elevated yields
raise yearly interest payments on the U.S. debt, intensifying
budgetary challenges and expanding fiscal deficits. Over time,
these factors can diminish trust in both U.S. Treasuries and the
dollar itself, as investors question the sustainability of U.S. fiscal
and monetary policy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

Market analysts attribute the substantial volatility of the U.S. dollar
in 2025 to various interrelated factors. Modifications in
expectations concerning the Federal Reserve’s interest rate
trajectory and evolving inflation trends generated uncertainty in
monetary policy. The increasing tariffs between the U.S. and
China, combined with other trade policy disruptions, weakened
growth forecasts and created downward pressure on the currency.
These trade tensions have not only affected the value of the U.S.
dollar but also influenced global economic conditions and investor
sentiment. Fluctuating geopolitical tensions — especially the Iran
— lIsrael conflict — led to increased safe-haven investments. At the
same time, divergent growth rates among major economies,
alterations in reserve-currency demand, and speculative activities
within foreign exchange markets exacerbated fluctuations in
exchange rates.

The depreciation of the U.S. dollar, which affects the Hong Kong
dollar due to its peg, has increased import and logistics costs,
leading to significant inflationary pressures on both households
and businesses. Hong Kong companies involved in cross-border
transactions are facing increasing operational costs and regulatory
challenges, which are leading to a decline in investment activities
and eroding confidence in Hong Kong as a key hub for China’s
international trade. Despite this, Hong Kong continues to play an
essential role as an offshore RMB clearing hub, processing 79.3%
of global RMB transactions. This status enhances its strategic
significance while also leaving it vulnerable to uncertainties in
capital flows due to external financial pressures.

On 2 February 2025, Hong Kong’s Financial Secretary, Mr. Paul
CHAN, cautioned that sustained high interest rates in the U.S. will
maintain inflationary pressures in Hong Kong, resulting in higher
borrowing costs and reduced consumer spending. The expectation
of persistently high U.S. interest rates is likely to increase local
borrowing costs, which will gradually affect housing affordability.
Combined with external inflationary pressures and economic
uncertainty, this is likely to erode market confidence.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

As discussed in the Business Review above, the ongoing tensions
between the U.S. and China may weaken Hong Kong's ability to
serve as a neutral connector between East and West. Furthermore,
its position as an offshore RMB centre and its capacity to provide
professional services for supply chain restructuring could see
additional enhancement. Meanwhile, increased integration with
China’s Greater Bay Area initiative might amplify Hong Kong’s
strategic importance. Nevertheless, these benefits could be limited
and impacted by regulatory and geopolitical uncertainties,
providing only marginal relief amid broader economic difficulties.

Many companies are holding back on investment and aggressive
hiring due to macroeconomic uncertainties. An unpredictable job
market and income prospects have led to a more cautious “wait-
and-see” approach among buyers of private residential units,
deterring potential homebuyers in a declining real estate market.
Some may choose to postpone their purchases in anticipation of
further price drops, while others could find homeownership
financially unfeasible.

As mentioned in the Business Review above, concerning the sales
trend of residential units sold in 2023, 2024, and 2025, the market
continues to be considerably oversupplied despite a minor
recovery in sales. Annual private housing completions are expected
to reach 20,860 units in 2025 and 20,100 units in 2026, both
exceeding the primary market’s average absorption rate of 14,400
to 16,990 units per year. Additionally, the anticipated rise in public
housing completions — from 20,200 units in 2026/27 to over
43,000 units by 2029/30-may indirectly free up around 20,000 to
40,000 private rental units annually, as those transitioning to
public subsidised housing vacate their rental properties; this
change will not affect the private residential market.

Macroeconomic instability, rising inflation, and high interest rates
are affecting buyer sentiment in Hong Kong’s residential market,
altering the dynamics of the property. In the sector, declining
market perception and a cautious approach among participants,
along with ongoing oversupply, a significant quantity of unsold
inventory, and minimal secondary market activity, are likely to
worsen the expected drop in buyer engagement, ultimately
affecting prices and the overall market confidence. Continued
weak demand and policy uncertainty indicate that developers will
likely continue to provide discounts and incentives to attract
buyers.

RRBE @)

W EXEBOIREMEW - PERBRISFERR - T
HISSEBERRA L 2R MEREIRRED © Bt
HFABFARB P LONMUUARAHEESHER
HEXRBHRES - TFAE— SR o ELFEE - i
BREGHEBRANEEZRNBETHESERER
MEREEM - A SLEBTEER LI EE
ENMEBATRERZNEE  FERZNEAE
W5 R B R E L EF 4R o

HREZHEETAMY  FEZLAEEEREERER
12 - EETRANPETSERANS - BERAL
EEUNERRIBAZENBE | BE TR
ETMSTRNERLT  EEERAD - BoALH
REREHERE-STHRMEBLEERE r mF
LA ERABERREME ERAT -

mEXFEREERFR BR-Z-_=F - -0
EFR-E_RAFEHAREMNNHEERD  BEH
ERELRH  EmENEEREMHBMNR - BHABA
FEFEEREBR =S -AFEF20,8601EE
MR-ZZBZRFEER20,100EEMN » IBB—FHE
FF 14,400 16,990 18 E L B9 F F IR YL =R o b5
HRBEIALEDEENA TSR EEBEIWE
EHAEREREERESBH-S -~ /ZtFEN
20200 BENEME-_F_Hh /=ZSFEENA
43,00018 Efu - = F 7 B E = B & ©920,000&
40,000f@FAAF(EEN ; E— L TEZER AL
ESE R

RERETRE BREARSAEREGEHESE
EETENERIFHE  XENEBE - EXRFTEH -
TISBRTE SRERERE MELHEAEEERN
R REFERER-FHEEDHE/D  ARKETE
RSHEERATHRNBEREL ZRZEERRE
BEHEEL BERFNERERRNIREN &
REREATESERMTNERZEUTSIER -

MHBTERABRIA2024/255 F 1K

23



4@:;
—
JD
KEEP
SMART
SMALL
SAFE

24

Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

Given these dynamics, the forecast for Hong Kong's private
residential market next year remains cautious. High interest rates,
persistent inflation, geopolitical uncertainty, and a structural
oversupply of residential units are expected to keep exerting
downward pressure on housing prices and transaction levels.

Home prices are now about 30.0% lower than their peak in 2021,
influenced by previous interest rate increases, an ailing economy,
and an excess of supply. Despite the removal of almost all home-
purchase restrictions in 2024, demand remains weak, analysts
predict that prices may decline further in 2025.

Given this perspective, Hong Kong’s economic slowdown has
increased consumer sensitivity to prices, particularly in the
furniture and home renovation sectors. This has sharpened
competition and limited pricing options. The Group expects weak
demand for premium and high-end products as consumers are
leaning towards more affordable, mid-range alternatives.
Additionally, rising import and logistics costs are likely to exert
further pressure on gross margins. To maintain competitiveness and
resilience, the Group plans to actively seek opportunities in the
public and subsidised housing markets, projected to experience
steady growth. We also intend to improve operational efficiencies
and refine our product offerings to better meet the evolving market
demands.

The Company is proactively tackling and regularly evaluating
macroeconomic disturbances, including the enduring effects of
Trump’s tariff policies and the Iran-Israel conflict. These efforts are
designed to strengthen our reputation as a resilient and adaptable
organisation ready to face challenging global circumstances. We
are broadening our trade, minimising financial risks, and diligently
managing expenses to safeguard our liquidity, stabilise our
margins, and position the Company for recovery as the
macroeconomic landscape improves.

In the context of global trade tensions, rising tariffs, currency
depreciation, and declining property markets present systemic risks
and challenges for all publicly traded companies, including
ourselves; our profit warning should not be interpreted as a sign of
weakness in our core operations; rather, it is a strategic response to
these external pressures. This proactive approach demonstrates our
resilience and commitment to navigating these challenges.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

Looking ahead, the Group recognises that global macroeconomic
uncertainties will remain crucial factors influencing market
sentiment and business conditions. While these challenges may
persist, the Group plans to leverage its strong industry standing,
robust business model, and firm supplier relationships. These
partnerships, based on trust and mutual benefit, guarantee a
consistent supply of high-quality materials even during uncertain
times, bolstering our resilience amid ongoing challenges and
securing sustained long-term growth.

Considering the unpredictable external environment, especially
regarding Hong Kong’s economic outlook, the Group stresses that
any specific market prediction would necessarily be speculative.
Thus, the Group refrains from offering concrete business forecasts
at this time, opting for a cautious and adaptable approach that is
both responsible and realistic in the face of global trends and
regional issues.
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The Board of Directors is pleased to submit their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 177 to 179.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 119 to 120

Appropriations of profits and movements in the reserves of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in notes 27
and 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not declare and paid an interim dividend for
six months ended 30 September 2024 (six months ended
30 September 2023: HK$Nil).

The Board do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2025 (year ended 31 March 2024: HK$NIil).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed as follows:

The annual general meeting (the “AGM*) will be held on
5 September 2025.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”"),
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 2
September 2025 to 5 September 2025, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the right to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 1 September 2025.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2025,
calculated under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to HK$60,828,000 (2024: HK$60,811,000). Under
Section 34 of the Companies Act (2022 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to
shareholders, provided that no distribution or dividend shall be
paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless
the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The details of bank loans and borrowings as at 31 March 2025 are
set out in the note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable or other purposes made by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$Nil (2024: HK$28,160).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

Ms. MAN Yuk Fan

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year and/or
during the period from the end of the financial year to the date of
this report are kept at the Head Office in Hong Kong and available
for inspection during business hours.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 68, is the Chairman of the Board.
He is a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
possesses over 40 years of experience in trading of building
materials. He is responsible for the planning of the Group’s overall
strategies and the overall management of the Group. Mr. TSE is
a brother of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the
Company; a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman
of the Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the
Deputy Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, aged 74, a founding member of the
Group, was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice Chairman
of the Company on 21 June 2012. He established his reputation
in the industry and has a wealth of experience in brand building,
new product development and structuring the management of
the Group. Mr. TSE is a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing
Director of the Company; and the father of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin,
the Deputy Managing Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Executive Directors (cont’d)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 66, is the Managing Director of the
Company and joined the Group in 1979. He is a director of twenty-
six subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses over 40 years
of experience in trading of building materials and is responsible for
the retail business of the Group. Mr. TSE also assists in the strategic
planning and management of the Group. Mr. TSE is a brother of
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board; a cousin of
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the Company; and
an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the Deputy Managing Director
of the Company.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 57, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2001. He is responsible for project sales. Mr. LAU
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist
College) in 1992 with a Bachelor’s Degree of Science.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 45, is the Deputy Managing Director
of the Company and joined the Group in 2004. He was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 8 September 2008
and is a director of twenty-one subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. TSE graduated from University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s
Degree of Commerce. He is responsible for internal information
technology development, the launching of the furniture business
and the marketing of products distributed by the Group. Mr. TSE
is a nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board
and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the Company;
and a son of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 76, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 19 June 2001. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972 with
Honours Bachelor’s Degree of Social Science in Economics. He
was appointed as a Director and general manager of Hongkong
Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry
Co., Ltd. until late 1989. He has been actively involved in garment
industry and IT business for the last few years.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

BEEREREBAEZBRHE @

BITES (&)

WHEEE NTAB ARARNESALE R
—NEAFMAFEE - FRAQXFAET =T AR
MBARCES BAEREEMBEZTHESR
BO+FEER  AEAKETEXRY - WALETHE
FEBREBUAEIREE HAERESEIRE
WEELEEZRS  AQRBEEEHFTELEZE
B RADFRESHLEHERAEZEM

Bl E Attt R—AhmFEMALEER -
BARER-_ZZ-—FF+ AT HEZERFTATY
TES -REEHEHE - JXEE-—NNZFBX
REBEZEXRZ2GIBEEER) MEEEELE

i o

AUEGEEL DT AR AAARESALEE R
—EENEMALEE - FR-ZFZ2NFLANA
BEERERAHTES  YRAKRATNET =+ —
ZMEBLARCES - HIEERERSRSAE - WG
BEELE([ - KEEAEENPEMMELERE - B
HEREBRAEBEHER 2T SHER - HLE
RESEIEHFELERDD A ESLLBHH
BRECER  RADAREFHHELREZTF -

BUFHITES

BELE £t B RSER-FXATNHEEZR
ERBAUFITES - WR-—NEL-FEEXERE R
PNARE  UREKEZRAMENBREE LB -
REEEE/ @ (ZR) BRAE (FIEE b
WERLR) ZEERESRAKEEE-NN\NEF
& o LF - BN EERTRENBRE -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors (cont'd)

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 27 September 2004. He obtained
a Master Degree in Business Administration with the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Education (Counselling &
Guidance) with University of Newcastle upon Tyne, a Second
Bachelor’s Degree of Law with Tsinghua University and a
Bachelor Degree in Accountancy with the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. WAN is an independent
non-executive director of Plover Bay Technologies Limited, a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He
is also a director of Jacob Walery Limited specialising in corporate
consultancy and training since 1 March 2007 while he is also
teaching with various universities and professional institutes.

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong, aged 80, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 29 November 2019. He is a Chartered
engineer, Chartered arbitrator, and a Barrister-at-Law in Hong Kong
and in England and Wales. He received his Bachelor of Science
in Engineering, Master of Science in Engineering, and Doctor of
Philosophy degrees from the University of Hong Kong in 1966,
1968 and 1982 respectively; a Professional Engineer degree from
the Columbia University in the City of New York in 1976; a Master
of Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1980; a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University
of London in 1987; and a Master of Laws in Arbitration and
Dispute Resolution degree from the City University of Hong Kong
in 1994. Dr. LUK is a past President of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers (2000-2001) and a member of the Building Ordinance
Appeal Tribunal in Hong Kong (1995-2010). Dr. Luk is a fellow
of the Institution of Structural Engineers, the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the Chartered
Institution of Arbitrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators.
He is a past adjunct professor of Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics in the People’s Republic of China. Currently, he is
an adjunct professor of the Technological and Higher Education
Institute of Hong Kong, an Honorary Fellow of HKU School of
Professional and Continuing Education and the chairman of Asian
Construction Management Association.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors (cont'd)

Ms. MAN Yuk Fan, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 21 February 2025. Ms. MAN obtained
her Diploma in Business Studies (with distinction) from Hang Seng
School of Commerce in July 1989 and her Bachelor of Arts degree
with first class honours from London Metropolitan University
(formerly known as City of London Polytechnic) in July 1991. She
has extensive experience in financial reporting and regulatory
reporting and over 15 years of supervisory experience in a listed
bank in Hong Kong within an international banking group. From
September 1991 to May 1992, she served as an Audit Assistant
at KPMG. From July 1992 to September 2021, Ms. MAN worked
at Hang Seng Bank Limited, with her last position as Senior
Group Reporting Manager. From June 2022 to July 2024, she was
the Treasury and Asset and Liability Management Manager at
Buckinghamshire Building Society in the United Kingdom.

Senior management

Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 68, joined the Group in 1982.
Mr. AU is a sales director of project sales division. He possesses
over 40 years of experience in the building materials industry and
is responsible for project related sales and marketing activities.

Mr. LEE Ka Ming, Clement, aged 50, joined the Group in 1994.
Mr. LEE is a deputy general manager of project sales division.
He possesses over 30 years of experience in building materials
industry and is responsible for project sales.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service contracts with Directors as disclosed herein,
no contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors, including Independent Non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment, which
constitutes a service contract, with the Company for a term of
12 months. They are subject to re-election by shareholders at
annual general meetings and at least once every three years on
a rotation basis in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company. No Director has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Pursuant to Articles 84(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr. TSE
Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. LAU Shiu Sun and Mr. WAN Sze Chung will
be retiring from their respective office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Articles 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Ms. MAN
Yuk Fan, being new director appointed on 21 February 2025, shall
hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, shall offer herself for re-election.

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments, on a named basis, during the
year are set out on page 166.

DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of their independence pursuant
to the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all
of its Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Director was interested in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts. An insurance cover is in
place to protect Directors against potential costs and liabilities
arising from claims brought against the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company has not operated any share option schemes
during the year ended 31 March 2025. As at 31 March 2024 and
31 March 2025, there was no outstanding share option of the
Company.

In addition, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during or subsisted at the
end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No other transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Company and the Director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and at the end of the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief
executives of the company (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2025, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Directors’ interests

EERESTRAERE QRS E[E
BEEcRORMEBRO R ES 2ES
R/ KR

R-ZEZHF=A=+—H FEERADAES
THAERBEZHEALRAQIREBEEE
(EERBHZRBERFIEXVER) 2B M5 - HERS
REFH BERBFSRBERAEXVIBE7R
SAHMEHNEARRAAREBHERZMBERAF
(TR 2 EERAR  SRIEFFRAE GG
352 RADBRBFECERMATRRZERRAE
HIRE LR B CIFTE L BT AESETH
ERXGZEBESH(ZESFH ) BTHEAQTAR
R EERARNT ¢

B

Number of ordinary
shares interested

BERENEERYA
Equity Percentage of
Personal Corporate derivatives share capital
Director 5 interests interests (share options) Total issued
R HE AT
TETA BRAz
BARER DEER (BB Foy Bt
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) AEASLE (EET) - 46,496,617 - 46,496,617 6.47%
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 2) AEE A (R 2) - 135,378,110 - 135,378,110 18.83%
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 3) T KA (FEE3) - 54,574,427 - 54,574,427 7.59%
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 2) HUEGEE (KR 2) - 135,378,110 - 135,378,110 18.83%
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun BB kL - - - - -
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic EEELE - - - - -
Mr. WAN Sze Chung BRERLE - - - - -
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong EREEL - - - - -
Ms. MAN Yuk Fan NEHFz+ - - - - -

Note 1: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the
beneficiaries.

Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star Group
Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and their family
are the beneficiaries.

Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Times
Limited. The spouse of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries. He is deemed to have beneficial interest in the Company.

FisET

2 A
S

7R B BB 47 R 2% H Fast Way Management Limited
BE -HIEEERABRBRZRA

MiEE2 @ ZEARDRRDER A Universal Star Group Limited 1
B HMELE HEREERBEZREREAS

@A e

MiFE3 @ % B 4D AR 2 B New Happy Times Limited 5
F-HHBELECRBREIKIERZHEA » BH
BRRAARDEAEDES

MHBTERABRIA2024/255 F 1K

35



RITN

=
KEEP
SMART
SMALL
SAFE

36

Directors’ Report E=#%

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(CONT'D)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives
or their associates had, as at 31 March 2025, any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

At no time during the year, the Directors and chief executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age)
had any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any
rights to subscribe for shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company, its specified undertakings or its other associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Companies
Ordinance”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2025, the following persons (not being Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of

FERR

REBZHEFZA=1+—R0 " ATAT(AUFESR
RRBERBITHAE)RARARD RABERN %
BUTREZSZRPERHIFE 36 RAFE2ELH
FRtsk BERBAR

the SFO:
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company RAEDFARGREBRG 2F=E
Percentage of
Personal Family Corporate share capital
interest interest interest Total issued
BT
Name of shareholder REZRE 1HH EARER RIEER AT ER #ct BAEDE
Happy Voice Limited Happy Voice Limited - - 91,976,507 91,976,507 12.80%
Ms. LIM Mee Hwa (Note 1) LIM Mee Hwa Z + (FfizE 1) 7,200,000 4,320,000 33,632,000 45,152,000 6.28%
Mr. YEO Seng Chong (Note 1) YEO Seng Chong 55 4E (FifEE 1) 4,320,000 7,200,000 33,632,000 45,152,000 6.28%
Universal Star Group Limited  Universal Star Group Limited
(Note 2) (B¥EE2) 135,378,110 - - 1357378,110 18.83%
New Happy Times Limited New Happy Times Limited
(Note 3) (P#&E3) 54,574,427 - - 54,574,427 7.59%
Fast Way Management Limited Fast Way Management
(Note 4) Limited (FitEE 4) 46,496,617 - - 46,496,617 6.47%
Note 1: Ms. LIM owns 7,200,000 Shares directly in her own name and her husband Mgkl : LimZ Tt UUE B S BFEEEHE A 7,200,000 R KR 5

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Mr. YEO owns 4,320,000 Shares in his own name. Ms. LIM and Mr. YEO,
in aggregate, own the entire shareholding in Yeoman Capital Management
Pte Ltd (“YCMPL") and therefore control YCMPL. The total shareholding in
the Company held by each of Ms. LIM and Mr. YEO, comprised of direct
shareholding, deemed shareholding through spouse and fully-controlled
corporation, is 45,152,000. Each of Ms. LIM and Mr. YEO is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares held beneficially and deemed to
be beneficially held.

The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star Group
Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and their family
are the beneficiaries.

The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Times
Limited. The spouse of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries. He is deemed to have beneficial interest in the Company.

The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the
beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any substantial shareholder (other than Directors of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2025.

REXXRYeo R ENHB & £ % #54,320,000%
B 1% ° Lim%Z £ & Yeo 5%t & & #£ # B Yeoman Capital
Management Pte Ltd ([YCMPL]) 9 2 B BR #& » & te ¥
YCMPLEZHI#E - BILimZ T RYeo EEEBIFEMN
AATRBLE (HEEER ZEERBREZRER
RN DBARK) B45,152,000% - RIEFFHRHE
BR’H > LmZ TR Yeo EEFTBRBERBERFERR
EEZEENERD hEEERS -

MizE2 © ZEAATPRP R H Universal Star Group Limited
BoHHMELELE BEREERREZZHRRERR

@A o

MizE3 @ = AN A R 10 5 & B New Happy Times Limited
B -HHELEECEBREIKRERSTHEA ° K
BRANKDREEERES -

D ZEARD TR R M Fast Way Management Limited
BE HIFEAEREEBAZEA -

BREXFIREN  RZFB-HF=A=+—0 &2
AU TABEEMETERR(RARESRIN RAE
DNARDIEERD P EERERZRMEERLE
BoRAFEZBTMATCH IEBRIAA
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no other material connected transaction during the year
to be disclosed.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group recognises that external events may affect the
environment in which the Group operates. The Group’s business
is managed by an experienced management team who have a
close involvement in the day-to-day running of the business, which
ensures that the Group is prepared for, and can react quickly by
adapting its business to, changes in the operating environment.
Further discussions on the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties
are provided throughout this annual report, particularly in
“Chairman’s Statement” (pages 7 to 12), “Management Discussion
and Analysis” (pages 14 to 25), “Risk Management and Internal
Control” (pages 63 to 69), “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” (pages 76 to 110) and “Financial Risk Management” (pages
146 to 154). The above discussions form part of this Directors’
Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, save as disclosed on page 41 in Corporate
Governance Report, as far as the Board and management are
aware, the Group has complied with the requirements under the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance, the SFO and the Cayman
Islands Companies Act.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a collaborative relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers. Details of which are
set out on pages 96 to 104 and form part of this Directors’ Report.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2025, our workforce was recorded at
127 employees (2024: 134). Total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$80,230,000 (2024:
HK$67,712,000). Competitive packages are offered to attract,
retain and motivate competent individuals.

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to legal framework, market conditions and both the
Group’s and individual performances. The remuneration policy
and remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
members of the senior management of the Group are considered
by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with its Terms of
Reference. Details of Directors’ emoluments during the year are
set out on page 166. The Group does not have any share option
scheme for employees.

Senior management remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2025, remuneration paid to members
of the senior management is as follows:

FEBUR

R-ZBE-HE=A=+—0 BANETAZEE127
B(ZEZMF 1348) HBEIRKN(BEEEH
BN ) £ 80,230,000/8 T (ZF W F : 67,712,000
TU) c R REERF O HFMSBEUARSD BER
SEREB AT o

REBESEEERE TR AEERBEAZRE
EHEGHFNEX FHESSCRIBABEES
EEZAEEVNTESRSREBRASZHFMHBER
RFMEE - FRESHMFBERE 166H - &K
B3 AT S TR RS S o

SREEANEHH
BEZZ-AF=ZA=1T-HLEE XFFE&
EEABZHFMMOT :

Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands S 4E B AE
HK$0-HK$1,000,000 08T E 1,000,000 /87T 2

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases RBE

The largest supplier RAHIER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AERMEREG
Revenue Wz

The largest customer BRAEF

Five largest customers in aggregate ARE PR

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers disclosed above.

IEHEBREF
RAFER AEBFEHEERE S FERBHE
RBEEADLLMT :

18%
50%

6%
21%
EE REZBEEBRBEAIRBESHAEELRA

AIEBITIRA 5% M £ 2 EMARER - BEER £ AT
BerEMERRNEFhHERES -

MHBTERABRIA2024/255 F 1K

39



RITN

)5
KEEP
SMART
SMALL
SAFE

40

Directors’ Report EE#&

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group endeavours to minimising pollution and protecting the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. Details of which are set out on pages 86 to 95.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 206.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as
at the date of this report, it is confirmed that the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 14 to 25 and pages 76 to
110 respectively of the Annual Report. The business review forms
part of this Directors’ Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the

Company.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2025
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Corporate Governance Report &¥E8%ES

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to
maintaining its high standard of corporate governance, and
continues to review and reinforce its corporate governance
measures. The Company believes that accountability and reporting
system with high transparency for the Company’s operation
has been in place. Disclosures could also be made timely and
accurately. At the same time, the rights of shareholders can be
treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an effective and responsible board of
directors (the “Board”), which is comprised of individuals with
high qualifications and relevant experience. This can ensure that
the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) maintain
good corporate governance practices and have comprehensive
risk management and internal control systems, so as to cope with
the Group’s development strategies and increase the shareholders’
value.
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COMPLIANCE OF CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) published by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited sets out the principles
of good corporate governance and provides two levels of
recommendations:

(@) code provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply,
but from which they may choose to deviate, provided that
they give considered reasons; and

(b) recommended best practices, with which issuers are

encouraged to comply, but which are provided for guidance
only.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company has complied with all code provisions in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2025, except for the
following:

Under the code provision D.2.5, the Company should have an
internal audit function. Given the current scale of operations, the
Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
is directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and for the review of its effectiveness. The
Board will continue to review, at least annually, this arrangement
going forward in light of the evolving needs of the Group.

Since 31 December 2024, the Company had not been in
compliance with the board diversity requirement under Rule
13.92 of the Listing Rules, which prohibits a single-gender board.
Following the appointment of Ms. MAN Yuk Fan as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 21 February 2025, the
Board has achieved gender diversity and is now in compliance
with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25
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COMPLIANCE OF MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules
sets a required standard against which Directors must measure
their conduct regarding transactions in securities of their listed
companies. The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
own code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions.
Employees of the Group, who are likely possess Inside Information
(as defined under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the
“SFQ”), have been requested to comply with provisions no less
exacting than the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of
publication of this Annual Report, the Directors of the Company
are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

Ms. MAN Yuk Fan

In compliance with Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules, Ms. MAN Yuk
Fan, who was appointed as an independent non-executive director
on 21 February 2025, obtained legal advice on the requirements
under the Listing Rules applicable to her as a Director and the
possible consequences of making a false declaration or giving false
information to the Stock Exchange on 19 February 2025 and had
confirmed she understood her obligations as a Director.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

For the terms of appointment of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, please refer to page 33 in Directors’ Report. According
to the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. Formal
letters of appointment have been issued to all Directors setting
out all key terms and conditions of their appointment. Each newly
appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of appointment.

Biographies of all Directors are listed in Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management set out on pages 29 to 32.

Except as disclosed in the Directors’ Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

The Board and Management

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of
the Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring
the performance of management, overseeing the management
of the Company’s relationship with shareholders, ensuring that
a framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to
enable risks to be assessed and managed, setting the Company’s
values and standards, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management.

When the Board delegates management and administration
functions to management, it has given clear directions on the
powers of management with respect to the circumstances where
management is to report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Company. The Company has formalised functions
reserved to the Board and the management respectively; and the
Board reviews those arrangements periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The management and staff of the Company ensure the successful
implementation of the strategies, business directions and policies
as determined by the Board. In doing so, they must apply business
principles and ethics, which are consistent with those expected by
the Board and Shareholders and other stakeholders.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors help to ensure that the
Board can make independent judgement efficiently and effectively.
They also take the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise. They scrutinise the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitor performance
reporting. They make a positive contribution to and independent
judgement on the development of the Company’s strategies,
policies, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct through board meetings by bringing in
independent, constructive and informed comments. They form a
strong independent element on the Board.

The Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
professional qualification. Among them, some possess expertise
in accounting or financial management. They give the Board and
Board committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation. Independent Non-
executive Directors attend general meetings to gain and develop
a balanced understanding of the view of the shareholders of the
Company.

Each Independent Non-executive Director has also submitted
an annual written confirmation to the Company confirming his
independence as regards each of the factors referred to in Rule
3.13(1) to (8) of the Listing Rules. All Independent Non-executive
Directors are engaged by contract every year and are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association and the Listing Rules. The Company considered that
all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mechanisms to Ensure Independent Views

The Board has adopted effective mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. Subject
to approval of the Chairman of the Board, Directors may seek,
at the Company’s expense, independent legal, financial or other
professional advices from advisors independent to those advising
the Company as and when necessary in appropriate circumstances
to enable them to discharge their responsibilities effectively. The
Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of such
mechanisms on an annual basis.

During the year, the Board reviewed the validity of implementation
of such mechanisms and considered that the above mechanisms
are effective in ensuring that independent views and input are
provided to the Board.

EEEW

BYFHITES
BYFHTESHHRRESEVTARRMBREN
MAEHE M HE - RETEHREEN S FREH
EEBRS|IEEM - REFARELFAANKERS
EXBENCERHMNEE  YERERARRR
MEH REZBESTSIRUEY  FERMUR
ERBENERYALRABERK  BX - ®RR - BHE
% EBFR - IRRAERBRTEAFHERSRMRE L
HIE - WERESEHEBBANBLTE -

BUFHTESEREESRER  EPENIALA
BEFRMBEETANEEND - REBBEHY
HEESRALEBSEEH - UEKE  EXAERT
BESNEXERAESERAMHENESSE
TZESFHER - BUFITESHERRAS
UEZEAESTHEEAARNRRHER -

BRI TESICHR ETRAEIIOE G K
g EREEAQARRRFERIASUEHRLEE
M ZEBIUFBTESNEFUSHEAEMT
WARBRABAESERMAAR EHRAIRERE
ARAARAETRBIIATESHFEHARLTR
BIZE 313 RN\ IES| ©

TR LB B

ESSCHRMNTERRS  UERESSTESSE
VHBRERER KESEIFEHRAER  EEEBR
T ESUEFEUSREVRAQAEBNE L
ER - BBREMEXRR  BRARAQRERAE - U
REEEHBETHERE -EZSBREFRAZHEH
MERERRAERMLE

RAFEESSCRIBEREAKFINERME R
REREFHEUENBERESEREHBIEEK
=R

MHBTERABRIA2024/255 F 1K

45



N2

=
KEEP
SMART
SMALL
SAFE

46

Corporate Governance Report &%&ER®RE

THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Directors’ responsibilities

All Directors devote sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs and have actively participated in the Board meetings to
discuss the overall strategies, business directions and policies of the
Group. Throughout the year, the Company held 4 regular Board
meetings, and 1 general meeting. To ensure that Directors could
obtain all related information to make an informed decision and to
perform their duties and responsibilities, documents for the Board
meeting were supplied to Directors for their consideration before
the meeting according to the regulations set out in the Listing Rules
and code provisions of the CG Code.

The attendance of board meetings and general meeting(s) during
the year is set out on page 70.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements. As at 31 March 2025, none of the Directors
were aware of any material uncertainty relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. As such, the Directors
have prepared the Company’s financial statements on a going
concern basis. Reporting responsibilities of external auditors on the
financial statements are set out in “Independent Auditor’s Report”
(pages 111 to 118).

Board proceedings

The Board makes arrangement to provide opportunities for all
Directors to include matters in the agenda of regular Board
meetings. At least 14 days’ notices are given in respect of regular
Board meetings. For regular Board meetings, an agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent, in full, to all Directors in
a timely manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of
board meeting. For all other Board meetings, Directors are given as
much notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Board proceedings (cont'd)

Management provides the Board and Board committees with
adequate and timely information which is accurate, clear,
complete and reliable to enable Directors to make informed
decisions on matters placed before them, and perform their duties
and responsibilities as directors. Management provides adequate
explanations and information to the Board to enable Directors
to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before them for approval. In addition, the Board
and each Director have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management. All Directors have free access
to board papers and related materials. Board papers and related
materials are in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board
to make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Queries
raised by Directors are provided with a prompt and full response.
Minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee meeting are
kept by the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and are
available for inspection by any Director.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and Board committees and the decisions reached. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment
and records respectively within a reasonable time after the Board
meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that good information
flow within the Board, Board policies, Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Moreover,
upon request from any Director, the Company provides separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist them to
perform their duties at the Company’s expense.

If a substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical board meeting set up for that purpose and voted on by
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction. Independent Non-executive Directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material interests in the
transaction should be present at that board meeting. Directors’
concerned must abstain from voting on any Board resolution and
will not be counted in the quorum.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Board effectiveness

A formal, considered and transparent procedure is in place for
the appointment of new directors. Newly appointed directors are
provided with briefing materials to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business, and
are fully aware of their responsibilities under statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and
the Company’s business and governance policies. In addition, an
orderly succession for appointments is maintained to ensure high
standard of corporate governance of the Company. Every Director
is subject to re-election by rotation at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years.

To ensure Directors’ contribution remains informed and relevant,
the Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training to Directors. In addition, the Company encourages
Directors and the senior management to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge,
skills and understanding of the business and markets in which
the Group operates. Directors are timely updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, as well as information related to the
Group’s business and operations, to ensure compliance, enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices and
enable them to discharge duties properly. This has involved
various forms of activities including attending seminars, reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business, director’s duties and
responsibilities.

The records of training of Directors received during the year is set
out on page 70.

Directors’ and Officers’ insurance

The Company has arranged an insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors and officers (as defined in the Listing
Rules) arising from corporate activities.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive” set out in
Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly separated roles
and are performed by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry,
Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing the Board.
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible for the
Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director has been clearly
defined and the written terms of reference have been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:
(@) Providing leadership for the Board;

(b)  Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

(c) Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner;

(d) Ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in
a timely manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary draws up and approves
the agenda for Board meetings on the Chairman’s behalf,
taking into account any matters proposed by other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda;

() Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

(g) Ensuring good corporate governance practices are in place
and procedures are established;

(h) Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs, giving each Director an
opportunity to express his views at Board meetings, taking
the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of
the Company, encouraging Directors with different views to
voice their concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus;
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (CONT'D)

(i)

Holding meetings with Independent Non-executive Directors
annually without the presence of other Directors; and

Promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating
the effective contribution of all Directors, in particular Non-
executive Directors, and building constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board. His
responsibilities are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Providing leadership for the management;

Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s
strategies;

Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the
objectives set by the Board;

Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to
enable the Board to monitor the performance of management;

Leading the management of the Company’s relationships with
its stakeholders;

Putting in place programmes for management development
and succession;

Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and
maintaining proper risk management and internal controls
systems as well as disclosure controls and procedures; and

Discharging such duties and authorities as may be delegated
in writing to him by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Investment Committee for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established on 22 March 2000, is currently
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors. They
are:

Mr. WAN Sze Chung
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is clearly defined
and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and function of
the Audit Committee are as follows:

(@ To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b) To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The audit committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(c) To develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing
all relevant information would reasonably conclude to
be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The
audit committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relations with the external auditor;

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);

To review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

To discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board
or on its own initiative and management’s response to
these findings, and review the statements concerning risk
management and internal control to be included in the annual
report;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company and to
review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function and ensure the same is included in the annual report;

To review the Group'’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

To review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(m)

(r

To review the Company’s statement on risk management and
internal control systems (where one is included in the annual
report) prior to endorsement by the Board;

To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

To report to the Board on the matters in Code Provision D.3.3
in the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules;

To review arrangements that employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;

To review and/or take appropriate follow-up action(s) in
respect of concerns raised by employees and/or those who
deal with the Company (e.g. customers and suppliers), in
confidence, with the Committee about possible improprieties
in any matter related to the Company in accordance with the
whistleblowing policy and system of the Company; and

To consider other topics as defined by the Board from time to
time.

In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for corporate
governance functions as below:

(a)

To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to review the findings of internal investigations and

management’s response into any suspected frauds or

irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements of

any applicable laws, rules and regulations;

to establish policy(ies) and system(s) that promote and support
anti-corruption laws and regulations;

(f)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

To review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code under Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules
and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2024, to discuss the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
with management, and to review the annual budget for audit fees.
In addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2025 on 24 June 2025,
and proposed to the Board for their approval.

In addition, during the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, reviewed
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewed and monitored the
Company’s code of conduct and compliance manual, reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the
committee’s meetings. During the year, the Audit Committee
met twice, full minutes of which are kept by the Company
Secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes of meetings are
sent to all committee members for their comment and records
within a reasonable time after the meeting. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review,
and related recommendations were adopted by the Board. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties and is authorised by the Board to obtain independent
legal or other professional advice.

The attendance of committee members at Audit Committee
meetings during the year is set out on page 70.

Auditors’ Remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2025, the following external auditors’
remuneration has been incurred by the Company:

External auditors SMEEARZ EUED
— Audit services — BZRTE
— Non-audit services — BRI
Total “et

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the fees to external auditors,
amounting to HK$1,264,000 were primarily for audit services and
those for non-audit services amounted to HK$227,000, 15.2% of
the total fees. The non-audit services provided by the auditors was
tax compliance services.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012. It
is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont’d)
The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(a)

Develop, review and implement the nomination policy, which
shall include the nomination procedures and the process and
criteria adopted by the Committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorship, and to ensure disclosure of such
policy in the annual reports of the Company in accordance
with the requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

Review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually, assist the Board in maintaining a Board skills matrix,
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

[dentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

Assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;

Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive;

Establish, develop and review the policy concerning Board
diversity, including any measurable objectives that has been
set for implementing the policy, to review the progress on
achieving those objectives and the effectiveness of such
policy, and to ensure disclosure of the same in the annual
reports of the Company in accordance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules;

Review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements in respect
of nomination matters;

Support the Company’s regular evaluation of the Board’s
performance;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont'd)

(i)  Assess each Director’s time commitment and contribution to
the Board, as well as the Director’s ability to discharge his/her
responsibilities effectively, taking into account professional
qualifications and work experience, existing directorships of
issuers listed on the Main Board or GEM and other significant
external time commitments of such Director and other factors
or circumstances relevant to the Director’s character, integrity,
independence and experience, and to ensure the disclosure of
the same in the annual reports of the Company in accordance
with the requirements under the Listing Rules; and

(j). Consider other topics, as defined by the Board from time to
time.

The Nomination Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met twice to
review the Board and senior management of the Company. The
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, reviewed the board diversity policy, reviewed the time
and contribution from Directors, assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, reviewed and considered
the appointment of new director and make recommendation to
the Board, made recommendations on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors at the 2024 annual general meeting
having considered them having the required character, integrity,
independence (as appropriate to Independent Non-executive
Directors), professional knowledge and experience to fulfil their
role and to contribute to the Group, and discussed the succession
planning for the Company’s Board and senior management.

In addition, the Committee continued to carry out the nomination
policy (including procedures, process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates for directorship). Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review.

When considering new appointments or re-nominations, the
Committee follows a fair and transparent process. It first assesses
the needs of the Board, then identifies suitable candidates through
internal recommendations or external sources. Each candidate is
evaluated based on set criteria, and recommendations are made
to the Board for final approval. For retiring directors seeking
re-election, their past performance, contributions, and time
commitment are also considered.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont’d)

In assessing candidates, the Committee takes into account a range
of factors, including professional qualifications, skills, experience
relevant to the Group’s business, independence, integrity, and
diversity in gender and background. All nominations are made
based on merit, while aligning with the Company’s board diversity
policy and corporate governance practices. The goal is to maintain
a balanced and effective Board that supports the Group’s long-term
development.

The attendance of committee members at Nomination Committee
meetings during the year is set out on page 70.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has an appropriate mix of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The members of Board possess diverse
competences, spanning business management, advisory and
monitoring, accounting and financial management, legal, brand
building, sales and marketing and I.T. development. The profile of
Directors is set out in Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management on pages 29 to 32.

The Board has adopted its own board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy aims to achieve
diversity of the Board through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience. Board appointments will
be based on objective criteria having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee of the Company
shall review the Board Diversity Policy as appropriate and make
recommendations on any proposed revisions to the Board.

As at 31 March 2025, the Board comprised nine directors, reflecting
a gender diversity ratio of approximately 8.0:1.0 male to female.
The Company acknowledges the need for improvement and
remains committed to achieving its target of at least 25% female
representation on the Board by 2030. It will continue to prioritize
diversity in its succession planning and board recruitment efforts.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2005. It is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun (Executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and
function of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(a)

To consult the chairman and/or the chief executive about
their remuneration proposals for executive Directors. To make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for non-executive Directors;

To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

To review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

To assess performance of executive Directors and to review
and approve the terms of service contracts of executive
Directors;

To ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

() To review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

(k) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements in
respect of remuneration matters; and

() To consider other topics as defined by the Board from time to
time.

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.
The remuneration policy of the Group (including Directors) is set
out on page 39. Details of remuneration payable to the senior
management, by band, are set out on page 39.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met twice to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of Executive Directors and senior management of the Company.
The Committee also reviewed and determined the policy for the
remuneration of Executive Directors, assessed their performance
and approved the terms of service contracts of Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
new director. No Director had participated in the determination of
his or her own remuneration.

The attendance of committee members at Remuneration
Committee meetings during the year is set out on page 70.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was established on 12 June 2023.
It is currently comprised of two Executive Directors and one
Independent Non-executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony

(Executive Director and Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun (Executive Director)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Investment Committee (cont'd)

The Terms of Reference of the Investment Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and
function of the Investment Committee are as follows:

(a)

(h)

To review and evaluate the Group’s development plan
and strategies and to make recommendations to the Board
thereon;

To review and make recommendations to the Board on key
proposals of investment (including mergers and acquisitions,
joint venture and equity investments) and financing projects
of the Group for business development purpose;

To review and make recommendations to the Board on other
significant investment matters;

To review and evaluate the Group's risks exposure from its
investment projects as a whole;

To review the relevant Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and evaluate whether any proposed investment project has
or would attract any disclosure or compliance obligation
thereunder;

To determine whether the proposed investment projects are in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole;

To supervise the implementation of the abovementioned
investment projects duly approved by the Board; and

To review, study, evaluate or make recommendations on
other matters as delegated by the Board.

Throughout the year, the Investment Committee met once to
conduct an in-depth performance review to the Board of the
Company. The Committee also evaluated the performance of
individual asset classes and sectors and rebalanced the portfolio to
maintain alignment with our strategic objectives.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company
Secretary of the Company is approved by the Board.

Our Company Secretary is Mr. YU Chi Wah. He is also the Chief
Financial Officer and is employed on a full-time basis. During
the year, he had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our
Company Secretary reports to the Board Chairman, co-ordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors.

During the year, Board and Board committee meeting agenda and
accompanying board papers and minutes were provided by the
Company Secretary on behalf of the Chairman of the Board and
board committee chairmen. Furthermore, all Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
good information flow within the Board, Board policies, Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

BUSINESS MODEL, PURPOSE AND VALUES

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The Company’s subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the importing, wholesale, retail and installation of
architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections
and furniture and provision of interior design services, project and
contract management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The objective of the Group is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. In addition,
the Group commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

Founded over four decades ago, the Group has established
reputation and gained trust from major contractors, property
developers and dealers. The Group also runs retail outlets and
showrooms.
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BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group endeavours to generate sustainable return to
shareholders through:

(@) Leveraging our core competencies in products and services to
generate profits;

(b) Maintaining collaborative relationships with staff members,
customers and suppliers; and

(c)  Adopting a prudent financial management policy at all times.
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Anti-corruption policy

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption policy to govern
acceptance of advantages by employees and a whistleblowing
mechanism to provide guidance to employees and external
stakeholders to report concerns about any suspected or actual
improprieties relating to the Group.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders” investment and the Group’s assets. The Board is also
responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their adequacy and effectiveness.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems

Risk ~
Assessment
[\ B A

The Process of

' Internal

Control
Monitorin E 450
pe AR B =

il =

Information &

g
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E KR

Internal controls encompass a set of rules, policies, and procedures
that the Group implements to provide reasonable assurance that:

(@) The Group financial reports are reliable;
(b) The Group operations are effective and efficient; and
(c) The Group activities comply with applicable laws and

regulations. The Board, management, and other personnel are
responsible for the internal control system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL R\ Bz B 3 K AR EE 1= ()
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d) BEREERABEZERSHNBRE (&)
The key components of the Group'’s internal control structure are  AEBRBELRRENEBARTIWT
as follows:

Control Environment EEIRIE

Establishing a foundation for monitoring internal control begins | B AMEZRNWERERTS - AHEEZEH
with an effective tone at the top of the organisation. The reason | ZAEE  NHREEBYNEENEEKRET
of this is so important that management’s attitude regarding | HABREZNIR EEEZERNSXEERK
monitoring will determine the selection of evaluators and the | EE{TEZEBHNARN - HE  EEENGHE
approach to monitoring. The tone set by the management will | BigEEEEHITREEER -

influence the way staff members conduct monitoring activities.
In turn, the Board will influence and guide how management
applies and conducts monitoring.

Control Activities EETE

The internal control of the Group includes the following areas: 7N £2 [ B (9 P 2R B 42 A 3 LA T 8K ¢

e Integrity and ethics e mRREEEREST

e Commitment to competence e HAEE

e Board of Directors and Audit Committee participation e EZEEKERZEEENSH
e Management philosophy and operating style o EEFHREEER

e Organisational structure o HBZRE

e Assignment of authority and responsibility o ZDIRERMELE

e Human resource policies and practices e ANERHERER
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont'd)

B EE R AEBEELE (@)

ERERERABEZRGNBE (E)

Information and Communication

The Group's risk management structure is shown as below:

Implementation / Execution

B i/ # 1T

AMERRR

FEENRBERRBNT AR

Board of Directors

B8

Ultimate responsible body
RREERE

Management
EEE

Decision-making body

R

)

Department /
Functional Heads
WPA/BEEE

Risk owners
EEEEA

The Board has the overall responsibility in ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains robust and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, including financial controls, operational controls
and compliance controls.

The management is the decision-making body of the risk
management control systems. It comprises members from
various functions of the Group so as to provide holistic
coverage of the Group as a whole.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
risk during their day-to-day operations. They operate in
accordance with the clearly defined procedures, responsibilities
and limits of authority. They identify and assess risk associated
with their operations and report to the management for review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL R\ Bz B 3 K AR EE 1= ()

(CONT’'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d) BEREERABEZRGNBRE (&)

Monitoring

Monitoring of internal control is performed through application
of both on-going evaluations and separate evaluations. These
evaluations ascertain whether other components of internal
control continue to function as designed and intended. In
addition, these evaluations facilitate identification of internal
control deficiencies and communicate them to appropriate
officials responsible for taking corrective actions. More serious
deficiencies are communicated to higher levels of management
and to the Board of Directors when appropriate.

B

BBFETERB LT BERAIEEE - 5
EEAEMAREZARDD RE —BERMRAR
BEMNSNEE - b ZETE MR A E
BEREAAMARZESMULESEBCENBREA
BEBE BABRENTREENEESEBER LT
EEFR2|MTESS -

Risk Assessment

Business risks change over time. The internal control system
needs to be capable of determining that the controls in place
are relevant and effective in addressing new risks. A monitoring
process must be capable of addressing the need for revisions in
the design of controls based on changing risk.

Effective internal control systems must be capable of containing
risks at an acceptable level to ensure effective and efficient
operations on an on-going basis. Thus, continuous feeding of
information and communication help monitoring the changes
and reaction.

By the use of the modern I.T. system to record, maintain and
produce outputs of accurate, complete, and timely information,
the Board and management team can:

(@) Evaluate the risks associated with the updated mode of
collecting, storing, and reporting data (e.g. recording
the sale of merchandise, updating a customer’s address,
preparing a report on sales by product);

(b) Design specific control procedures that help control the
risks applicable to the new design; and

(c) Ensure accountants are familiar with I.T. capabilities
and risks, and recognise the opportunities that the I.T.
system provides to prevent, detect, and correct errors and
irregularities as the business events are executed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont'd)
Risk assessment identifies and analyses the relevant risks associated
with the Group’s objectives. It forms the basis for determining what
risks need to be controlled and the controls required to manage
them. Our head of risk management has periodic meetings with
directors and the management team to oversee and discuss the
proper operating style with each other.

Directors and the management team will then make decision
and delegate to each department for execution. Through daily
communication and information gathered, Directors and
management team will be able to monitor the daily operation and
risks that might occur, thus be able to prevent or minimise them.
It also makes sure operations are in compliance with laws, rules,
and regulations. At the same time, each department’s missions and
goals are achieved.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company recognises its disclosure obligation under the SFO
and the Listing Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close
regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The Company
has included in its staff handbook a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential information including Inside
Information (as defined under the SFO) in order to make sure
appropriate handling and dissemination of Inside Information is in
place.

The Group has set out the procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with code provision D.2.4(e) of the CG Code. There are
guidelines to the directors, officers and all relevant employees of
the Group to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements.
The handling and dissemination of inside information of the Group
is strictly controlled and remains confidential including but not
limited by the following ways:

— define the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board and Company Secretary to enable them
to assess inside information and make timely disclosures, if
necessary;

restrict access control to inside information by employees on
a need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality
of the inside information before it is properly disclosed to
public;

reminder to employees who are in possession of inside
information to ensure that they are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality; and

The Board and the senior management review the safety
measures regularly to ensure inside information is properly
handled and disseminated.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

B EE R AEBEELE (@)

BEREERABEZRGNBE (F)
22 B & ik 58 B e 0 AT R AN SR B B AR AR ARV LB o Lt
AREMERRFEREFREEZSEBAFES

ERNER - AREENMEIERESREEEK
EHRE  GERIWERSEEELSR -
B EEREEEBRSETERERBEREHMY

T BBHBBBRIIKENEN ESREZEEK
KEAEEAFEERTRERNER - KM AH
HRBAREEZSZAR - WTBREREBFEEM
BRARER » WEEFERZIPFINEDRRER

EERBHATHES
RRARRPAERBEZRPERAR EHRBETH
BEET ARRAEVRBERSZRPESHERE
BERMNTRFEEEREES | REEEK - A2
AEEHETFMARABRKRELERERENTS
MTEARZER (BEARER) (ERREERE
BiRG))  DEREERERBHAARBER

REBCATHEERBRMABHENEFRAILE
B UREEXEARTAED2.40 HRNBE - $E
ENES  sRAEKRFERBERESHESFIES
BREEE E’Mﬂﬁ?‘éﬁ’ﬂ)‘it$ﬁﬁi§;}§;‘£i¢&§?%ﬁ
EeASEEAREEMNEERZBMIZINERERL
RE - BEETRRUTAR

— PROEZSRLAWEFETHIBRLEER
EHER > ERERATEAREELELE
B I BF 4 B

— RENEERHESHRNEEENHBESE
WRERASEEEEDARBEENNRE
%

— REZERNBEENES:
BENRBELE &

BREERED TH#

— EFEReAEEETHBNZRER
REZRERBOGARHES

Li#gE



RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2025

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse
range of policies and procedures, including: conducting reviews
of actual performance, reviewing of performance reports,
checking information processing in transactions, performing
physical controls, analysing performance indicators and dividing
and segregating duties amongst different people. These can
help the Group ensure proper internal control is in place across
departments/divisions.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, including financial
controls, operational controls and compliance controls. During the
year, the Audit Committee conducted an annual review to consider
and discuss the risk management and internal control systems
(including but not limited to, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function) and
reported the same to the Board. The Board conducted an annual
review to consider ESG performance and reporting.

During the year, the Company did not have an internal audit
department; details of which are set out on page 42. The Board
reviewed the scope and quality of management’s on-going
monitoring of systems of risks and the internal controls, examined
the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results
to the Board and Board committees. Based on the review, save as
disclosed under the section “Principal Risks and Uncertainties”
on the Directors’ Report, the Board considers that there is no
significant change in the nature and extent of risks and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment since the last annual review. The Board
considered that the systems of risk management and internal
control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 were
effective and adequate.

Based on the internal financial controls, half-yearly financial
reporting and timely updates on Listing Rules requirements,
the Group’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are considered by the Board as effective.
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETING, BOARD
COMMITTEE MEETING AND ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING AND TRAINING RECORDS

The attendance of Directors at Board and Board committee
meetings, the annual general meeting and training records for the
year ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:
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BRERBF XS HFEER RIE &
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BE-ER-_AF=-A=+t-HLEEESRESS
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Annual
Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration  Investment General Types of
Director Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Training
gz B3¢ FHZRE REZRE HHMZRE REZEE RRBEAE &SR
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry AR 707 20 1 AB
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert Eibil-Yid 17 l AB
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony B 77 n n AB
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin WERRE 707 11 AB
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun iy 77 20 11 l AB
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTEE
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BELY 77 2 2 2 10 10 AB
Mr. WAN Sze Chung BEBLE 707 2 20 2 ll AB
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong BERERL 717 0 ll AB
Ms. MAN Yuk Fan NEF gt
(appointed on 21 February 2025) (R=B-1%
“A=t-H
Bz 20 AB
Notes: P &E -
A:  Attending seminars, conference, forums and/or trainings A SIS &% HHER S REY
B:  Reading newspapers, journals and/or updates B:  BIERE - MAR REHFEH
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS BERREE

It is the Company’s policy to have open communication and
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure
is a key means to enhance corporate governance standard.
Shareholders can assess the Company’s performance based on
the information disclosed and provide feedback to the Company.
Information relating to the Group and its business, together with its
financial conditions, are disclosed in this report and the Company’s
website at www.ebon.com.hk.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Board has adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy*
aiming to provide the Company’s shareholders, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, so that Shareholders are able to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them and
the investment community to engage actively with the Company.

To achieve this, the Company has established a number of channels
to maintain an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders and the
investment community. The Company is committed to providing
information to Shareholders and the investment community mainly
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports),
annual general meetings and other general meetings that may be
convened, as well as making available all corporate communications
on the Company’s website at www.ebon.com.hk. The Shareholders’
Communication Policy is reviewed annually to ensure its
effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing regulatory and
other requirements. Effective and timely dissemination of information
to Shareholders and the investment community shall be ensured at
all times. The implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy was reviewed by the Board during the year.
The Board considered the current channels would be sufficient for
the Company to communicate with the shareholders. Thus, the
policy was considered as effective.

* For the purpose of this Policy, reference to the investment community is
intended to include the Company’s potential investors as well as analysis
reporting and analysis the Company’s performance.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

(@ Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar. Please refer to page
5 of this Annual Report for the address of the Company’s
principal and branch share registrars.

(b) Shareholders and the investment community may at
any reasonable time make a request for the Company’s
information, send their written enquiries and concerns to the
Board to the extent such information is publicly available.
Such requests, enquiries and concerns shall be addressed to
the Company Secretary of the Company at its Head Office as
follows:

The Company Secretary
16th-18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (conT'D)

General Meetings

All registered shareholders shall receive either notice of the annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting (together the
“Meeting”) or equivalent notification letter by post or by electronic
means. The notice of the Meeting contains an agenda, resolutions
proposed and a proxy form. All shareholders, whose shares are
registered in the register of members, are entitled to attend the
Meeting. Shareholders who cannot attend the Meeting can appoint
their proxies or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies by
completing the proxy form enclosed with the notice of the meeting
and returning it to the Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, all votes
of shareholders at the Meeting will be taken by poll.

Procedures for demanding a vote by poll, together with the notice
of the Meeting, have been enclosed with a circular despatched to
the shareholders. The procedures are read out at the Meeting by
the chairman of the meeting so as to make sure shareholders are
familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll. The
Company arranges to address questions from shareholders in the
Meeting. In addition, separate resolutions for each substantially
separated issues will be proposed to the Meeting for the approval
of shareholders.

General meeting is the principal opportunity and ideal venue
for shareholders to meet and exchange views on the Company’s
business with the Directors and the management. An annual
general meeting is an annual significant event for shareholders
and the Board to exchange constructive opinions. All Directors
(including the Board chairman) shall attend the annual general
meeting. Apart from attending the annual general meeting, the
Chairman of the Board shall arrange the chairmen of each Board
Committee to attend and answer questions at the annual general
meeting. The Company’s auditor shall also attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out when considering any payment of a dividend, the
Board shall take into account of (i) the profitability of the Group
for the financial year; (ii) the Group’s general financial condition
supporting its normal operations; (iii) the Group’s actual and
expected business performance; (iv) the Group’s overall results
of operation, financial performance and liquidity position; (v) the
Group’s expected capital commitments, future cash requirements
and future business development plans and prospects such as
market conditions; (vi) retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group; (vii) the
general economic conditions, business cycles of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group; and (viii) any other factors that the Board considers
relevant and appropriate. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. The Company has only one class of shares and the Articles
of Association of the Company set out the rights of our
shareholders.

2. Shareholders have right to receive corporate communications
issued by the Company.

3. Shareholders whose shares held in Tricor Investor Services
Limited (“Tricor”) may notify the Company from time to
time through Tricor if they wish to receive our corporate
communications.

4. Shareholders are furnished with comprehensive background
information in a timely manner concerning the matters to be
decided at general meetings and they are well informed of
the rules including the voting procedures that govern general
meetings.

5. Subject to the Articles of Association and the rules prescribed
by the Stock Exchange from time to time, shareholders
have right to participate and vote in general meetings. Any
shareholder not attending a general meeting can give proxy to
vote on his/her behalf. Forms of Proxy are sent to shareholders
of the Company together with the notice of meeting.

6.  Shareholders have right to raise questions at general meetings.

B FE B (@)

REBUEE
ESERMREEE(REREK])  HHBFEES
AEZRINEMREER - BetRO)AEERYBF

ENBRED (1 FAEEEBYBRRESATE
BRE S (W AEENERREMEBRRE S (v ZISE

BEHEELEXE MBERARRBDESHKRR
REBEHPEARARE - *Kiﬁ,ﬁm—,iﬁ %ﬁ%*ﬂiﬁf

BEtEIRAIS (HHBARR)  viARRARAKRER
BEREDTNREEFN R ATED /Jfﬁﬁﬂﬁ (vii) BB
EAR - AEBERNEERY - URHKEBES

FYBEENRR TREELENEMAERIRE
Z RViNEZERHEBEARNRENTTEMEEE -
EESHEETRRMEEUR -

IR R EF

1. FRAFRE-ERORADFAZASEEMAA
BAEA QB RREF -

2. REBAREEAQNBRLDEEN -

3. HEERFBERERQAFVT=2ENEFERHZ
RERMF WA DB 2 R BB - O REEB
SEBALLNT -

4. Eﬁi‘ RERHAESERRAGEREEZ
HESEH IERBIABERERRASZ
%EEU (BRERERRF) ZFHESN -

5. HASEREARRBRN T ARAZHRR
T RREEZERRASIESLERE-F
T%itHﬁﬂﬁiﬁ‘%z&i—];E%éﬁ%ﬁE?ﬁ
R AREAXRBENSBZBS —HRETAE
RNERR °

6. BRRABERRAGIRER -

MHBTERABRIA2024/255 F 1K

73



RITN

=
KEEP
SMART
SMALL
SAFE

74

Corporate Governance Report &%&ER®RE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (conT'D)

7.

10.

11.

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may request the Board, through the Company
Secretary, to convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of
shareholders at the annual general meeting will be taken
by poll. The chairman of the meeting will explain at the
commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll. On a poll, every shareholder present in
person or by proxy will have one vote for every share held.
A shareholder who is a corporation will be present in person
if a duly authorised representative of such shareholder is
present at the meeting. A shareholder present in person or
by proxy who is entitled to more than one vote does not
have to use all his or her votes or to cast all his or her votes
the same way. The result of the poll shall be deemed to be
a resolution of the meeting. After the closure of a general
meeting, the poll results will be published on the Company’s
website at www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in key corporate
governance decisions. Sufficient time is allowed for
shareholders to consider the candidates being nominated
before the general meetings.

The Company ensures that votes cast are properly counted
and recorded. Voting results are verified by independent
scrutineers and announced in a timely manner after the
closure of general meeting and posted on the Company’s and
HKEXnews websites.

Shareholder who has a material interest in the subject
transaction may be required to abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution at the relevant general meeting as required
by the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (cONT'D)

Proposing a person for election as a Director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at any general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge a notice, signed by the shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed), and a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected (together the
“Notices”) at the Head Office or at the Registration Office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such Notices
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the Notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgement of such
Notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association
or the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to
put forward new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to put forward a new resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s memorandum of association (the “Memorandum
of Association”) and articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”), in both English and Chinese, are available on the
Company’s website at www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews
website at www.hkexnews.hk. There was no significant change to
the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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OVERVIEW

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
It provides an annual summary of the Group’s environmental and
social performance for the financial year ended 31 March 2025.
For corporate governance, please refer to pages 76 to 110.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report aims to provide a balanced representation of the
Group’s performance in the environmental and social (employment
and labour practices, operating practices and community
involvement) aspects and covers the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong. The Group will expand the scope of disclosures when the
data collection system is better established.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong:

R

NEW TERRITORIES 5%
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Note: Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our operations in Hong Kong
only. Our Hong Kong operations represent the core of all of our operations,
contributing over 90% of our Group’s turnover in the financial year ended 31
March 2025.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

('J

BmE

TIRE - HEREARE (RE HERE/HRE)D
RRBEABRAERIGMAERAAZFLMAAT L
TRAD M EMNRE B RERREIED
RERE ARERBEAEBEZE_S_HF=A
=S+ —ALMRFENRERTERENFERM o
BRAGEER  B2HME/6E110E -

IR E R E

FRESEAELIAEENBRRUEE (BERE
IER EEEIREESR)BEANKRER  HER
EXAEERERNER - AEERSEHBRERS
EnEERREANESE -

REERNEBIER

<3 t

{q

}’;i
X
"y

s

ol

* Office
BFE

Showroom and
retail outlets
RIIZERTEEH

Warehouse
s
=y

M - BREEHRBEN ARG HEREARSERELEE
REBHER - BARBTBNEBRAEEBHZL
REBEE-ZE-AF=A=1T-HLEMBFERALEEE

HFEF BB 90% ©



ASSURANCE

This Report has been independently verified by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, with the scope and basis of the
verification set out in the Verification Statement of this Report.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has delegated the environmental and social
performance to an ESG workgroup (“ESG Workgroup”) which
comprises of a director of the Company. The ESG workgroup,
strengthens its approach to sustainability and seeks to facilitate our
business in strategizing, planning, recording and reviewing various
departments more effectively using data analytics and reports
back to the Board. The Board is assisted by its ESG workgroup
in overseeing implementation of ensuring that effective risk
management and internal controls are in place. The Board has the
overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability performance
and ESG reporting. Details of how the Board and ESG Workgroup
collaborate are set out on pages 79 to 80. This Report was
approved by the Board on 24 June 2025.

VISION

Sustainability is a core part of values of E. Bon. The Group
envisions a community being knowledgeable and responsible
in their daily life and inspires others to do the same; and
therefore commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

STRATEGY

When we execute business strategies, our sustainability vision
enables us to take account of our responsibility to the environment
and society in general. Areas such as occupational health and
safety, product responsibility and operating compliance are
identified and considered relevant to the Group by the Board. The
Group, through the ESG Workgroup, seeks to formulate policies
and approaches in order to address these areas.
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POLICY

At E. Bon, sustainability is embedded in our business operations
that create sustainable value with its stakeholders in economic,
environmental and social dimensions. The Group has developed a
dedicated sustainability policy which directs its operations towards
the best practice in areas such as business growth, environmental
protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices
and community investment. The sustainability policy commits the
Group to:

*  Meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on
sustainability issues;

e Pursuing good practices of sustainability in its operations;

e Implementing policies relating to business growth,
environmental protection, workplace quality, operating
practices and community investment;

e Encouraging our staff to be proactive in sustainability issues;

*  Promoting sustainability awareness along its value chain;

e Engaging our stakeholders in the sustainability process; and

*  Monitoring and improving the sustainability performance.
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APPROACH

Implementation and Governance Structure

The Group adopts both top-down and bottom-up approaches to
manage sustainability risks. The implementation and governance
structure allows the Group to communicate concerns and solutions
related to sustainability risks effectively.

Outcome

B3

Input
BA

&t

BRREARSE

AEERKHEABLMTRA T ENGELNER
IRERRER BREREARBEAKEENE
MpEERTSERRAREENBEISRARER

VE X

Board of Director

=g
Ultimate responsible body
RREEHE

Vision l ‘I Result/Risk

RS N B

ESG Workgroup
REHERERTFE
Governance body

ERRE
Result/Risk
A B

Strategy

w41
Management
EEE

Decision-making body

REHE

Policy 1 "

B

Result (e.g. KPI)/Risk
A (Bl BIRAUSIERR) ~ AR

Department/
Function Heads

P HEEEE
Risk owners

EREEA

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability performance and ESG reporting. The Board sets
out the sustainability vision of the Group and has delegated its
execution and monitoring to an ESG workgroup which comprises
of a director of the Company. The Board reviews and provides final
approval for the sustainability approach, strategy and performance
at least once a year.

The ESG Workgroup is pivotal to the success of ESG management:
it lays down sustainability strategies based on the Board’s vision,
determines material aspects with reference to stakeholders’
responses, gathers information from departments and functional
heads and conducts analyses, directly reports back to the Board on
the Group’s performance and its recommendations.

Stakeholders
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Implementation and Governance Structure (cont'd)

The management is the decision-making body of environmental
and social performance. It comprises members from various
functions of the Group to ensure that the Group’s policies are
working towards the best practice in areas such as business growth,
environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operating practices and community investment.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
sustainability risks during their day-to-day operations. They identify
key performance indicators (KPIs) associated with their operations,
monitor and report to the management. In addition, as risk owners,
they identify and assess sustainability risks and report to the
management for review.

Stakeholder Engagement

The expectation of stakeholders is evolving and so as our
sustainability strategy. The Group regularly engages with
stakeholders in order to keep our sustainability strategy relevant to
stakeholders and our business.

The Group determines its sustainability strategy through a
systematic process including:

e Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests
e Engage — Interact with stakeholders

e Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

o Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests

During the year, the ESG Workgroup took into consideration of
current course of business and refined the sampling of stakeholders.
Findings of the ESG Workgroup were submitted to the Board for
discussions and actions where necessary.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)
Engage — Interact with stakeholders

We have maintained various communication channels to interact
with stakeholder groups. This allows us to promptly understand
and address their concerns more quickly. Set out below are major

daily communication channels:

Key internal stakeholders

TERREFDE

-
‘I.n

Staff members

AT EFQ
« Daily communications » Meetings
(Corporate Websites, Meeting ik
and staff activities)
HE&E (ARE - KR8 TEE) * Workshop
TiEth
« Staff activities
BTEE
* Performance appraisals
KBTS
&

Shareholders

B &

« Corporate websites
ARG

» Corporate communication
document
ARENX

» General meetings
L EPN-

H

Board of Directors

Suppliers
"’ &

T &+ (@)

K ESR(E)

28— B ELR

EMEBEEEERBETEANSNEHEBREER
B BEEHMERB TR AR EREEINS

HeLUTHEENABBERE !

Key external stakeholders
RN E

« Daily communications
(Corporate Websites, Meeting

and conference call)
HE#E (ARE SRR EEER)

« Assessments / supplier appraisals
T / HEREHE

* Meetings
i

Other stakeholders
HitiF &

N~ K

| l‘ Z‘-ﬂ* AN

Govenment and regulatory
organisations

BUAT R B2 & AE

« Daily communications
BE#EE

¢ Forums, seminars
il FREE

Customers
TR

« Daily communications
(Corporate Websites, Meeting

and conference call)
REER (AREL  BRREETH)

* Meetings

25

« Social media
igearl

Non-govenment .
organisations and community

JEBUAT HE 4 R it =

« Corporate website

AL

« Social media

T 3ZIREE

» Community services

it EARTS
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APPROACH (CONT'D) T &t @)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont’d)

In addition, we regularly carry out materiality assessment
to determine important issues to both internal and external cycle results
stakeholders of the Group. It is an on-going process as material B L ESEBHNER
issues may change over time. Based on the results obtained
in the last engagement cycle and the management’s insights,
the ESG Workgroup identified 13 material topics which would
have a direct or indirect impact on the Group’s ability to create,

Review last engagement

preserve or erode economic, environmental and social value of Link to business significance
itself i kehold d . | The Work ked based on management insights
itself, its stakeholders and society at large. The Workgroup aske P

stakeholders to indicate topics that they considered the Group HRBH BRI
should give priority. This process enables us to categorise various
groups of stakeholders into an engagement matrix: (1) engage,
(2) communicate and (3) inform stakeholders. In this engagement

cycle, concerns on occupational safety and health, product Identify material topics on
responsibility, operating compliance and financial performance are il etel
5P Y, op & P p BATRAENERSE
highlighted.
Engage stakeholders to
prioritise
RO EREBERF
. Analyse engagement
BHESHEE) findings
B8 — B E DB () AN SRR

LEoh - HAEMETERMTMG BEHAEEAMEFOEIBEENZ
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont’d)

The assessment results were discussed and validated by the
management of the Group. The Group has decided to continue
its efforts on people issues where the Group has a relatively high
sustainability impact.

5 &t @)
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B — B EEE ()
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HEHDEZBEN AT BT R R
FAEBNTRERRYERYEES -

Customer privacy 25\ @ @ Operating compliance %3848

Energy efficiency &
greenhouse gas emissions

RERMERBRERBEHR

4 Occupational safety and health Bz 28 EE

Customer satisfaction FFWEE ¢ @ Product responsibility 7R #E

4 Staff retention and development & T & Rk #RE

* Financial performance 8f#%%i5 ¢
3 9 Procurement practices $ZEH R
Climate resilience RIFHESH & * * Research & development fft 75 6258
Use of other L 2 Local community involvement 3t E2 82
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Financial performance
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Product responsibility
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Customer satisfaction
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

During the year, the Group obtained stakeholders” priorities to
work on over the coming year:

e Continue policy enhancement

> Review our current policies on major ESG subject areas
of staff safety and health, product quality and business
ethics

> Complete the collection of data in order to make
comparisons feasible

e Increase disclosure coverage

> Increase the disclosure in key performance indicators
(KPI) where material

Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

The management is responsible to review the stakeholder
engagement process to ensure a sufficient coverage of stakeholders
and issues. Feedback of publication of ESG report is also included
in the evaluation process.

SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING

The Group adopted Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules as the
sustainability measurement framework. It involves measuring
sustainability performance and setting targets in quantitative
manner. The ESG Workgroup regularly measure, record and
analyse key performance indicators (KPIs) for the Board’s
discussion and establishment of improvement plans.

The Group has set a reduction target of 5% in total greenhouse
gas (GHG) emission, non-hazardous waste disposal, total energy
use and water consumption from the performance recorded for the
year ended 31 March 2025 (the “Baseline”) by the year ending 31
March 2027.
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SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING (cONT'D)

We are pleased to announce that The Group has successfully met
these targets. As of 31 March 2025, we have made significant
strides in reducing our environmental footprint, with the following
improvements compared to the same period for the year ended 31
March 2024:

GHG Emissions: Reduced by 17%

Total Energy Use: Reduced by 13%

Water Consumption: Reduced by 1.8%

Our success in meeting these targets can be attributed to several
key initiatives:

Energy Efficiency Programs: Implementing advanced energy-
efficient technologies across our operations.

Water Conservation Efforts: Introducing water-saving measures and
technologies.

Employee Engagement: Fostering a culture of sustainability among
employees through training and awareness programs.

Building on our success, The Group is setting new, more ambitious
targets for the coming years to further reduce our environmental

footprint. These include:

Further GHG Emissions Reductions: Targeting an additional 5%
reduction by Year 2027.

Enhanced Waste Management: Aiming to decrease non-hazardous
waste by 5% by 2027.

Increased Energy Efficiency: Striving for a further 5% reduction in
total energy use by 2027.

Advanced Water Conservation: Setting a goal for an additional 5%
reduction in water consumption by 2027.

Our commitment to sustainability remains strong, and we will
continue to:

Invest in innovative technologies and practices to improve
environmental performance.

Engage with stakeholders to align our sustainability goals with their
expectations.

Monitor and report on our progress transparently and regularly.
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group endeavours to minimise pollution and protect the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use
of energy and waste. We first implement business activities for
which we bear responsibility and address the environmental issues
by integrating environment considerations in our business. We
create environmental awareness amongst our staff members and
whenever possible and practical to do so. We aim to contribute
to the sustainable future and be in harmony with the global
environment.

A1 Emissions

Our electricity consumption accounts for a major part of its
GHG emissions, with local transport contributing less than 5%
of the total GHG emission. Measures aimed at improving energy
efficiency are outlined on page 88.

Deliveries to the same district are gathered in bundles to minimise
travel routes, hence reduce the use of petrol and emissions to air.
In addition, we encourage our staff to use public transport; for
those that are not accessible by public transport means, to carpool
when travelling on business. Discharges to water are made through
public sewages system. There was no discharge to water and/
or land. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to air
emissions during the year. The Group has set to reduce total GHG
emissions per employee by 5% by 2027 from the Baseline.

The Group pays attention to hazardous waste such as e-waste.
We have implemented plans to reduce the quantity of e-waste as
outlined on page 90. Disposal of hazardous waste is conducted
safely in accordance to relevant regulations. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to hazardous waste handling
during the year.
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A1 Emissions (cont'd)

Non-hazardous waste is sorted in accordance with the possibility
of re-use. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to
non-hazardous waste handling during the year. The Group has set
to reduce non-hazardous waste disposal per employee by 5% by

RiIE @)

ATHER ()
mEERENOEA ] TN RARSE - REF
B AEEUSSHEREEERNERHRIE o &
EEEHAN-E- L RS ERENBERRY
REBHEERHD 5% -

2027 from the Baseline.

Total air emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes)
NOx (tonnes)
SOx (tonnes)
Particulate matter (tonnes)

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2)
(CO,e tonnes)

Direct emissions (Scope 1) (CO2e tonnes)
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (CO,e tonnes)

Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per floor area
(CO,e tonnes/m?)

Indirect emissions (Scope 2)
per employee (CO,e tonnes/employee)

Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2)
per floor area (CO,e tonnes/m?)

Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2)
per employee (CO,e tonnes/employee)

Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes)'

Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) #EEEEZEYEL LS (1)

Total non-hazardous waste produced
per floor area (tonnes/m?)

Total non-hazardous waste produced
per employee (tonnes/employee)

! Disposal of hazardous waste is negligible.

Remark:

EERBERAAE (B8 1) (W) 0.003 0.004
RELY (WF) 0.002 0.003
ey (8g) 4.248x10° 6.609x10~°
SRR (W) 1.788x10* 2.567x10*

BEREHENEE (EE1KX2)

(Z&EtE=M) 366.618 439.491
BEEHEkR (EE 1)

(ZgELIREEm) 6.824 11.960
RPN (85E 2)

(ZgELIREEM) 359.794 427.531
B AE T TSR RIZEBE

(8E2) (=& 1Lhx

BEM FHK) 0.054 0.064
SRESNEEEKR (EE?2)

(ZEtREEN ES) 2.925 3.393
BNEAEENERES

(8881 & 2)(=| b

B2 FHK) 0.055 0.066
BREEMNHREE (BE1&2)

(ZEILBEEM ES) 2.981 3.488

EEBEEYELSLE (M)

0.152 0.162
BNEAREHMEEEEREY
e (W, FHK) 0.001 0.001
BREEFELBEEEEY
Hme (W, EE) 0.067 0.072

! FEERVBEEMTRE -

Due to the more comprehensive calculation methodology established
this year, the 2024 data has been updated to align with this year’s
methodology.

B ARAFEHNETERZAENGERE - -0F
HBECERRELAFENTE—B -
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A2 Use of Resources

Electricity

The Group remains committed to reducing its environmental
footprint through continuous improvement in energy efficiency.
During the reporting period, total greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
were reduced by 17%, and total energy consumption declined
by 13%, reflecting the effectiveness of our ongoing energy-saving
initiatives.

To achieve these results, the Group has been phasing out
outdated air-conditioning units and replacing them with energy-
efficient models. Indoor temperatures are maintained within an
optimal range of 23°C to 25°C, balancing comfort with energy
conservation.

In our retail operations, conventional halogen lamps have been
systematically replaced with LED spotlights. This transition has
led to substantial reductions in electricity consumption while
maintaining consistent lighting quality and reducing internal heat
output, thereby easing the burden on air-conditioning systems.
Plans are also underway to upgrade all remaining T8 fluorescent
lighting to more energy-efficient T5 alternatives.

As part of our forward-looking sustainability targets, the Group
aims to reduce electricity consumption per employee by 5%
by 2027, using the current reporting period as the baseline. To
foster a culture of environmental responsibility, we intend to
hold company-wide “lights-off” events twice a year, encouraging
energy-saving behaviour among staff.
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RIE (@)

A2 ERE

ey

AEBDHENEBTEHRSERRE - WBLRER
Bre RIBEHRN  BERBHFRBERD T17%
BERHEBETERT 13%  RRHEEMSEETH
ERREEE S AR

RERELERR  AEEEELSHABRNERR
B WAAETRERSR M 2 - ERIRE#ER R 23°C
FE25°CHIRESER - FREAETE AL -

ERANZSEEED  EENEXRREERS
BEBIEDBXE - E—HEHEANERKTESIHEE B
BRE-FNBHEENHIABAEHE > #W
WETEARENEE - RMOEEFESMERIER
TS B AEHRBEETREM TS #HE ©

EREMAETTSEZRREEN -2 F5H
EEUARENEAAEER E-E-tEaKE
BRENENEERD 5%  BTHEHRREEN
XAt BPRESFRIRAEARMENMEE VRS
SR8 TEARER o



ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A2 Use of Resources (cont'd)

Water

Water consumed is for hygienic purpose. Labels of “treasure every
drop” are posted at prominent place next to taps to encourage staff
members to minimise the use of water. We plan to replace old
taps with sensor-type and/or add flow regulators to control water
flow when feasible. As a supplier of home fittings, we provide a
range of products with green features (eco-sensor, flow regulator,
smart green design) to the market. The Group has set to reduce
total water consumption per employee by 5% by 2027 from the
Baseline.

RiIE @)

A2EIRE A (&)
¥/

BEDESEE]EZE  SBEIRERL AKX
BRI EX KEEERRBENKEE &
RATHBER T AEREATSZZHAARE - S
RERBHERD  BRAODHESHESERRERCR
REESR - REFAEHE  TERRERRKS) - AKECE
FEE-E AL FREERERENEEKSNELER
WA 5% °

Total energy consumption (MWh) RS QKRR 618.978 709.202
Total direct energy consumption (MWh)? BEERREEE CKRE)? 26.896 41.931
Total direct energy consumption BEUEAARBNEEZERAES

per floor area (MWh/m?) kR EH¥K) 0.004 0.006
Total direct energy consumption BEEENEEFEREES

per employee (MWh/employee) CkEER1E8) 0.219 0.333
Total indirect energy consumption (MWh)  RigaER&EE CKRE) 592.082 667.271
Total indirect energy consumption B ZEEENEEZERAEE

per floor area (MWh/m?) CYN:-FEFE ) 0.089 0.100
Total indirect energy consumption BEEENEEERAEE

per employee (MWh/employee) CkEE 1ES) 4.814 5.296

Water consumption (m?) FEKE (LFK) 766.140 780.480

Water consumption per floor area (m*/m?) B @EEENEKE
(TR FFK) 0.116 0.117
Water consumption per employee FREENEKE
(m*/employee) (MIFHKREE) 6.229 6.194

Total packaging material (tonnes) BEMRIEE () 1.792 1.603

Total packaging material per floor area BUEHEENEREMHEE

(tonnes/m?) (W SEF53K) 2.702x10* 2.395x10*
Total packaging material per employee BEEENEEMBLEE

(tonnes/employee) (W, BE) 0.015 0.013

2 Figure calculated with reference to EIA US.

Remark: Due to the more comprehensive calculation methodology established
this year, the 2024 data has been updated to align with this year’s
methodology.

HFRIBEIA USETE o

Bt ARAFEHETERZENFELRE -2 -NFH
BEERRARAFENSE - -
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
Electricity: Reduction
Details of electricity reduction is set out on page 88.

Paper: Reduction

All office paper and almost all paper for printing the Group’s
publications are Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified or
recycled paper, except old publication (such as catalogues) which
is yet to disseminate. Not only adopting FSC certified paper, the
Group encourages the use of paperless communication. If printing
is necessary, we encourage environmentally friendly printing
manner (such as to print on both sides, reduce font size and
margin). For internal reference document, we upload to intranet
or circulate hardcopies instead of printing one copy for each staff
member. In addition, paper collection tray is placed next to printer
to gather single-side-printed paper for re-use.

Our box packaging fits the size of goods so as to minimise the use
of paper and provide the best protection to the goods contained.
The materials of our carton boxes fulfil relevant safety standards.
Besides, we encourage the use of carton boxes for multiple times.

o FSC is an independent, non-governmental, not-for-profit organisation
established to promote environmentally appropriate, socially beneficial, and
economically viable management of the world’s forests.

Electronic devices: Re-use

Technology advancement leads to shorter lifespan of electronic
devices. Certain equipment becomes obsolete or incompatible to
our operations after software upgrades. We are aware of potential
environmental and health hazards related to disposal of e-waste.
Hence, we have adopted the following initiative:

e Obsolete: Donate to non-governmental organisations such as
Hong Kong Caritas Computer Recycle Project

Total paper consumption (tonnes) ROEFERE (1)
Office paper (tonnes) PN E AL (W)
Paper for printing publications (tonnes) FTENTI ¥ A% (W8 )

*Remarks: Please note that certain quantities of paper used exclusively for
publication printing may have been recorded under both ‘office paper’
and ‘paper for printing publications’. As a result, the sum of these two
categories may not correspond exactly to the total paper consumption.
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A4 Climate Change

RiIE @)

A4 RiRB 1

Climate Change is undoubtedly one of the greatest challenges REZ{tBEERABEBNRARSE 22— HRAK
facing humanity. The World Economic Forum’s Global Risks ZEwmE(=ZZ==—F2REABRE)BRBRTHAHK
Report 2022 ranks climate action failure as the top long-term JABANRHRE  AERRRTFEERBRE
threat, giving rise potentially to the most severe impacts over the W& - Bt KMEERBASIREEBREEE
next decade. Therefore, we aim to build resilience to climate MR#EEB  URGEEERERECHNRIEREILE
change by identifying and managing climate change risks and #RES{HNES  AEBREHHRMEE
opportunities and by developing strategies to adapt to and to ERHFE -

mitigate the impact the climate change on our operations.

The table below sets out our findings of significant climate-related TR&BEIIRMEE AR FEEBERE R BN TS

risks and opportunities:

Physical risks
BERER
Acute physical risks, such as super typhoon and

extreme weather events
BminBRER  flmBRRERERRREN

Chronic physical risks, such as rising temperature
feHERRE - fIaRR LT

Transition risks

ERE R
Technology risks, such as use of green technology
RAgERE - Flanfse BB
Market risks, such as shift towards green products
TSR flgeERBBRT

Market risks, such as higher insurance premiums

miEEE - BlanRERE RN

Green products
BEEM

g

More spending on repair and to improve adaptive
capacity of premises

KBNS AR S YR E B 68 0 RARRIRA X

Business closure, leading to loss of revenue

(EERRCE U635 VS

More spending on cooling

12 R AERER X

Increased cost of raw materials

JR AT LA

Substitution of existing products with eco-friendly
options

BAEERPRAREMBN

Higher insurance costs

R B AN

Increased revenue because customers are willing
to pay more on green products using advanced
technologies
EFERXNBSNERBERALTENRNGRER
LUz n
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A4 Climate Change (cont'd)

Our near term targets are to adapt to impacts of climate change.
With extreme weather occurring more frequently, we place
sandbags in low-lying areas and install floodgates when heavy
rainfall is approaching. Our premises are well-maintained with
resilient elements so as to lower potential damages resulting from
extreme weather and attain better insurance packages. We make
use of e-communications to keep close contact with staff members,
customers and suppliers to ensure business continuity in place. We
provide a range of products with green features to the market.

In long term, we endeavour to reduce carbon footprint in our
operations to help mitigate climate change. The Group has set a
reduction target of 5% in total energy use and total GHG emission
from the Baseline by the year 31 March 2027. We regularly
monitor our progress for review and continuous improvement, in
addition to reporting the performance on an annual basis.

Climate-Related Disclosure

In compliance with the updated Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (HKEx), and in alignment with the recommendations of
the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), E.
Bon Holdings Limited provides the following disclosure regarding
climate-related governance, strategy, risk management, and metrics
and targets. As climate-related disclosure is a new requirement, we
acknowledge that relevant systems and assessments are currently
in the early stages of development, and we aim to progressively
enhance our climate-related risk management framework over
time.

1.  Governance
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for
overseeing climate-related risks and opportunities as part
of the Group’s risk management and strategic planning
processes. At present, climate considerations are discussed
within the context of broader ESG matters, and management-
level discussions on environmental risks are ongoing.

While the Group does not yet have a dedicated climate risk
committee, senior management has begun to evaluate how
climate-related risks may impact our operations, particularly
within supply chain management and product sourcing.
As these evaluations mature, the Board will be engaged in
reviewing progress and ensuring alignment with regulatory
developments and stakeholder expectations.
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Climate-Related Disclosure (cont’d)

2.

Strategy

E. Bon Holdings recognizes that climate-related risks and
opportunities may affect our business over the short, medium,
and long term. We are currently in the process of assessing
how climate change could impact our core business, which
involves the supply and distribution of architectural builders
hardware and bathroom collections. We have identified the
following climate-related risks and opportunities based on our
current operations:

RiIE @)

RIZERIKE (&)

2.

Kk

TR FBITIERB R D B 7078 KR 8 B R B R 44
BURESEED PHNEH EFBRMOE
#% o BMB AT EEF SRR TRENMEE
BFOROER  HhSREERTSNERR
BHHER D - RERMENNEERSR
HASHB AT RIRABE RS

Short-term Extreme weather events Possible supply chain delays, Under Review
= Bim R REBHF especially from overseas shipments | #&H
WREMV L AESEREIR - A HRISINHERIIE
E
Medium-term Green Building Trends Increased demand for low-carbon In Planning
5 BrepXBgg or sustainable hardware/bathroom RETH
products
HERJUSELES FHAERNTERE
il
Long-term Climate regulations (e.g., May require changes in sourcing In Planning
R emissions standards, product | policies and supplier qualifications | #R#&lH
sourcing) T REE EE IR BRI R ER B

RIRESR (WPBERE - ERRE)

We are in the early stages of exploring product lines with
improved environmental performance and evaluating
opportunities to strengthen supplier engagement on climate-
related matters. These initiatives are currently under review
and will form part of our evolving business strategy.

BMEERFRUTRERERAZERERT
EinRHER 2 BRI EEEE 2 HEN R Y
MR- ELEERBEANEEEED  YERAK
T ENRERNEB R 2 — 8D -
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Climate-Related Disclosure (cont'd)

3. Risk Management
The identification and assessment of climate-related risks are
being integrated into our broader enterprise risk management
framework. Currently, these risks are reviewed informally by
the management team during operational and procurement
planning. Risks considered include:

e Physical risks, such as extreme weather events that may
disrupt supply chains or logistics operations;

e Transition risks, including emerging regulations,
customer preferences for sustainable products, and
changes in supplier practices.

While we do not yet have a formalized climate risk
assessment tool or system in place, we are in the process of
developing internal procedures to evaluate these risks more
systematically. We also intend to increase our engagement
with key suppliers to better understand their environmental
practices and readiness for climate-related disruptions.
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Climate-Related Disclosure (cont'd)

4.  Metrics and Targets
We are in the process of identifying and collecting relevant
environmental data and expect to define measurable metrics
and targets by the next reporting cycle.

Planned areas of measurement include:

RiIE @)

RIRERBIEE (&)

4. EENEE
A EFERE R MW ERRENIREEE - WEH
ET-REBHARETAEMNIBEZNEEZ -

VR 2 BB

Scope 2 emissions Electricity consumption from offices and Data collection in progress

&% 2 Bk warehouses £t le o
WMABMEENENHE

Logistics Fuel consumption from delivery fleet or third- Reviewing tracking methods

IR party logistics EERUTE
EXRERWE = YRAVREIERE

Product sourcing % of products from environmentally certified Planning phase

EmRE suppliers RBIME R
RERERBHEANERT AL

Packaging Use of recyclable or biodegradable materials Initial review stage

B 56 7 R = LKL B, T A D P A A Y NEEERR

While no specific climate-related targets have been set yet,
we intend to establish baseline data during FY2024/25, which
will support goal-setting in subsequent years.

Conclusion

E. Bon Holdings is committed to strengthening its climate-related
disclosures in line with regulatory expectations and stakeholder
concerns. While most climate-related initiatives are currently in
the planning or review stages, we recognize the importance of
addressing climate risk and are actively working toward integrating
these considerations into our corporate governance, strategy, and
risk management frameworks.

BERMEAREABNAIZEBEES B
MRE-—ZS-N/ —HEVBEFEEYEEGH
B ESXBEREFENBEERRE -

B

RIBTERB IR MEERREBIKRE  AFEE
EHEMSOHERL - BRARSHRIREEEEE
ANERERNEFERER  ERMASTHIEE R
BERNEEY  YEEBSIKELEBERES
FRMOEEER ERANARERERS -
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SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes its success, long-term growth and development
depend upon the quality, performance and commitment of its staff
members. We are committed to providing equal opportunity to
our staff, matching the right people with the right job, and offering
them a suitable platform to develop and excel in their career.
Besides, we keep in mind to treat all staff members fairly and
equally. We are committed to the provision of a healthy and safe
workplace and encourage the work-life balance of staff members.

B1 Employment
As at 31 March 2025, our workforce in operations in Hong Kong
was recorded at 123 employees.

Our employment policy adheres to statutory requirements
including but not limited to the Mandatory Provident Fund,
Statutory Minimum Wages, Employees’ Compensation Insurance
and Paid Annual Leave. Competitive packages are offered to attract,
retain and motivate competent individuals. We are dedicated to
promoting equal opportunities for all of our employees in different
areas, including recruitment, compensation and benefits, training,
staff promotion and transfer. All staff members are assessed based
on their ability, performance and contribution, irrespective of
their gender, age, disability, family status, race, religious beliefs
or sexual orientation. There was no prosecution to the Group in
relation to employment issues during the year.

We provide employee benefits such as medical allowance and
transport allowance. The Group supports the staff’s family life
by providing children’s scholarship. The Group has joined the
Government’s gender mainstreaming network “Gender Focal
Point”.

HE

BEREZEIESR

FAEEHEEREzZRR RESREERE  BHEET
ZEE RBERAE EMABHIREIRHETEH
T AASEARUESBENTE  BEIBEMRK
TEMMEEE - I BMRECERBEET -
BEMC - BMABHEHBRERZEZNITHRE » AR
B TR AR T4 o

B11E1E
RZZEZHF=ZA=+—H ' AEENEBEIA
#HHE1238 -

EANERBRFSEERE  BEETRRES
MHAES  ZEREIE EEBERRBREHF
B RPRHABRTE D 2HMETBURS BERS
BESRAT - AKEBNEEEREREAZRESRE
BFPEHRE  EPEERE  HFMRERN FI B
AR AEEDRBEET 2880 - REMERME
HEFfd - MAREMER - Fie - BE - RERR &
R REURMEMED - RAFE  AREALEFE
BRI RARIE -

FEERHEREYRTBRMEESEN  UR
FuRBT REEIZRELE AKECSHF
FBEATRYME B ML A4S [ MR FREER AR A L o

ion Ceremony for Employees’ Children Scholarship
Z RIEFERER
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SOCIAL (coNTD) HE @
Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d) BREREIER (&)
B1 Employment (cont'd) B1 fE1% ()

All of our staff members work on full time basis. Our workforce is AEBETIHEZBET » HARWT :
comprised of:

Gender 13|

Male
Bk
46°%
Female
7
Turnover rate BBER Turnover rate B
10.62% 7.35%

e

Our Group's turnover rate for the year is 4.82% which is lower AEBNFABERER4.82% KREEETRE
than the overall turnover rate of workforce in Hong Kong is 10.3% B 10.3% °

According to the turnover rate and vacancy rate published by RE-—F-—FEBANBREESEELAMHIAE
Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management 2021. MK EFZGRE -
Age group F#R4E 5! Length of service R

Turnover rate B

Turnover rate BEERZE 0%

8.51% 0 - 3 years
18.70% FEEF
. Be_lt?vl 30
=T
>3 -5 years
3.25% wasing

41

30:50 41.46%
. StTEat >5-10 years
BBRRETF
Above 50
BRA+

>10- 15 years
BB+ ETRE

> 15 years

BB+ hE

Turnover rate B
10.07%

MHBTERBRIA2024/25F FH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2 - # &R ERKE

SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B2 Health and Safety

Our workplace is kept clean and tidy, with adequate work space
for staff members to work. Apart from that, a number of initiatives
have been carried out to increase the staff awareness in health and
safety at work:

e Occupational safety briefing

> Guide new staff members especially those work in
warehouse or go to construction sites

> Staff members are able to stop work if they feel unsafe or
is not properly trained

e Staff handbook (detailing health and safety guidelines)

During the reporting year, there were no reported cases of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in our Group
regarding the environment, labour standards, occupational health
and safety, anti-corruption or data privacy. Warehouse and shop
frontline staff members are under supervision to ensure they work
safely. All staff members, before going to construction sites, have
attended safety training. When entering construction sites, they are
equipped with safety helmet and briefed by relevant safety officers.

In light of the outbreak of Coronavirus during the year, we have
implemented the following measures to safeguard the safety of our
staff members, such as:

Raise the frequency of cleaning in workplace
e Place air purifiers in workplace

e Provide surgical masks, disinfection products and rapid test
kits to all staff members

e Take body temperature of staff members

Number and rate of work-related BE=ZF (BEERFE)

T2

BRERSIER(E)

B2 REEHL S

EANTESHAREZFER RETEIEHAN
THEZE - I RMERRZEHEURESETH
THRREEEZ2E®

o BEZEEHR

> AHABEI(LHRER
BHET)REMHIES

HATEEEH

> BINRIFZZYHREE
1E1EZE

EiFl A E

o EBEIFMGrREEZEIES)

REEFEER  BMLERNEGERE LT B
(¥REHZE RESEAERBLEEERE
@E%&EﬁmEﬁﬁfomﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁMEl
2k LR MMEEIE IEEIREAR
%mﬁszQM§%iH PRIEAEEMBE - #
LAMBZZERERMEZ 2T TNHEIRE -

ERNFRRBTRBESH - HASTKREAT HE R
REETZZ - fim:

o BINERTESFHIRE

o  EIRSMHMEZRFHR

e [MFBEEIRMIIBOE.
AREE

HERRRIRER

. RETEERE

= fatalities occurred in each of BERITHHARR
fioS the past three years including te=
KEEP the reporting year 0.000 0.000 0.000
SMART | Lost days due to work injury HAIBEAIERH 0.000 0.000 0.000
SMALL
SAFE
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Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)
B3 Development and Training

The Group maintains an open, interactive and motivating working
environment for our staff members. The management reviews its
training and career development programmes with employees.
A wide spectrum of training programmes is provided to cater the
needs of staff members across different roles and positions.

Professional development: Product

Set out below are some training and development programmes:

Professional development: Hard skills and soft skills

On-board training

Health and safety training

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category

Gender — male

Gender — female

Category — managerial
Category — general office
Category — frontline/operational

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and
employee category

Gender — male

Gender — female
Category — managerial
Category — general office

Category — frontline/operational

R RER BB
SRETE AL
HEB— St
PRI — 2t
5 — EEE
B — — BB
H3 — B BB

AR ES BRI
SERATHENN
FHBY

Rl — S
MR — 2t
gh —EEE
8|hl — — AR

R — AR EE

T2 @

EEREIEH(E)
B3 #R K IEE

AEBARAETEERK  EHREEEZBNIFR
R EHEREEARMNABIIREXRBRARE -
EMRHSEEEZNZILR

BUWATHR -

BT R0 B R BERITE

e HEXBRE Em

o EEHRE I EMREMEEE

o AR

o REHEZEIFI

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

1.446
1.544
1.327
0.375
0.518
2.403
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100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

1.215
1.424
0.966
0.875
0.714
1.697
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d)

B4 Labour Standards

We comply with local employment regulations in all locations of
our operations, and do not engage in any forced or child labour.
To ensure we are legally compliant, we check applicants” identity
including their age and eligibility for employment. Regular reviews
on our employment practices (including recruitment procedures)
are conducted to ensure we operate in a fair manner. Any case of
illegal, forced and child labour will be investigated and escalated
to the management where necessary.

B5 Supply Chain Management
The number of major suppliers, based on invoice amount, by
geographical region is indicated below:

T2

BEREIER (&)

B4 T X4
EMETHALEEHHEMNEREZR  LEIK
EMEFE TRETHE - BERREMTSEER
T BMERERBENSD  BEMANFRRH]
EER - BMEHHERER (BEREER)ET
B LEREERT - EAFE - BEETIRETH
BRBEZIAE  ARMLERFLREEE -

B5 (REREE
BEREZSEMS  RUEIINEZEHEFTHE W
T

=

KEEP

SMART Note: The definition of “major suppliers” refers to suppliers of products and/or sub-
SMALL contractors of services to which the Group incurred purchases exceeding
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B5 Supply Chain Management (cont’d)

As our operations connect us to a wide range of stakeholders
along the supply chain, we strive to make sure that sustainability
considerations have been embedded in our procurement practices.
Our Environmental and Social Policy is in place to facilitate
communication and align our sustainability expectations, including
legal compliance, anti-corruption policy, environmental protection,
workplace health and safety, employment practices, with our
suppliers and sub-contractors.

In selecting installation sub-contractors, we consider a range
of factors such as price, past performance, scale of the project,
technical competence, environmental records, workplace health
and safety standards.

We conduct appraisals to evaluate performance of suppliers and
sub-contractors. Factors assessed include production capacity,
technical capability, quality control systems, personnel quality
and sustainability performance. The results determine which
suppliers and sub-contractors deemed high risk and require further
consideration in future purchases. Appraisals are made at least
annually to ensure our supply chain stays aligned with our vision.
During the year, the Group was not aware that any key suppliers
had significant actual or potential negative impact on business
ethics, environmental protection, human rights or labour practices.

To mitigate supply chain risk, we adopt multiple sourcing strategies
to avoid over-reliance on any one vendor. Our five largest
suppliers in aggregate contributed to less than 30% of our total
purchases during the year.

In view of the growing environmental awareness in Hong Kong,
we advocate the adoption of green features in product selection,
such as water flow control and FSC-certified materials. We
give preference to those who have made strong environmental
commitments and those produce in close proximity to reduce
carbon emissions from transportation. We will continue our efforts
in bringing environmentally friendly products to customers.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility

Our customers include contractors, property developers and
dealers. We recognise the uniqueness of requirements of each
customer, and offer a full range of products to satisfy customers’
needs.

The Group’s objective is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builder’s hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value of
the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting products
that commensurate with their lifestyles. We strive to provide quality
products and services to fulfil customers’ needs; and to establish
the brand and reputation of our Group for customers’ recognition
of our ability to serve them with two fundamental qualities,
“sincerity” and “quality”, which would enable us to build customer
loyalty, allowing us to establish strong customer relationships for
future businesses.

Product safety is our primary concern. The majority of our
products, in terms of purchase value, originate from Europe where
rigorous product testing regulations and requirements are in place.
Nevertheless, we carry out a number of measures to ensure product
safety, such as warranties and certificates from manufacturers, tests
according to customers’ requirements.

During the year, there was no product recall for safety and health
issues in relation to products sold by us; there was no substantiated
complaints received. And we did not receive any complaints
lodged with the Consumer Council.

Apart from safety, we also value performance ratings and
feedback from customers, of which feedback identifies areas
of improvement. We have established various communication
channels including corporate website and social media platforms
to facilitate and strengthen communication with our customers.
Feedback from customers is discussed and improvement will be
made where appropriate. Our labelling and advertising materials
are reviewed to ascertain their compliance with relevant marketing
communication practices.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility (cont'd)

We protect our proprietary position by registering trademarks
in markets of presence and in development. We respect others’
intellectual property rights and conduct trademark searches to
avoid infringement.

We comply with the latest Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
ensuring that the customer information we receive is only used for
its intended purposes. We regularly brief our staff, especially front-
line staff, to take great care in dealing with privacy matters. We
did not receive any substantiated complaints regarding breaches of
customer privacy or loss of customer data during the year.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
integrity when doing business. We adopt the code of conduct (the
“Code of Conduct”) that complies with HKEX expectations on
corporate governance and the Independent Commission Against
Corruption’s anti-corruption policies. Our staff handbook has
outlined such code of conduct to all staff members including
prevention of bribery.

Sub-contract works are made in accordance with the standard
procedure of the Group. Once having received the quotations from
potential contractors, we evaluate each based on a range of factors
such as: price, past performance, scale of the project, technical
competence, environmental records, workplace health and safety
standards. Decisions on sub-contract appointments are reviewed
and endorsed by the management of the Group.

The Group has a whistle-blowing mechanism for staff members
and business partners to report any potential bribery or other
misconduct behaviours. All cases are treated with strict confidence.
The Managing Director is responsible to implement such
mechanism while the Audit Committee is responsible to review.

The Code of Conduct and anti-bribery training is included in
the induction programme of all staff members. Our conditions
of employment require compliance with the Code of Conduct.
Additionally, anti-corruption training materials were circulated to
the Board of Directors during the year.

There was no legal case of corruption brought against our Group
or its staff members during the year.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B8 Community Investment

E. Bon Holdings Limited is committed to contributing positively to
the communities in which it operates. We believe that meaningful
community engagement goes beyond financial contributions and
includes active participation, knowledge sharing, and capacity
building.

During the reporting period, the Group continued to support
community development through other impactful initiatives. For
example, we donated computers and other reusable equipment to
promote digital inclusion and reduce electronic waste. In addition,
we actively engaged with local academic institutions by inviting
undergraduate students from Hong Kong Metropolitan University
— particularly those studying architecture and design-related
disciplines — to visit our showroom. These visits offer students
hands-on exposure to industry practices and help spark inspiration
for their academic projects and future careers.

We believe that community support should be multifaceted,
and our approach includes not only charitable giving but also
volunteerism and the sharing of industry expertise. The Group also
encourages its employees to take part in community initiatives, as
we believe their engagement fosters a culture of empathy and civic
responsibility, creating lasting positive impacts within society.

By nurturing strong community ties and empowering the next
generation, E. Bon Holdings Limited reaffirms its dedication to
building a sustainable and inclusive future for all.
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Engagement in community activities:
Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon 2025.

2RIt EIEE BT ERBHAR 2025
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The undergraduate students from Hong Kong Metropolitan University come to our
showroom, providing them with practical experience in industry practices, which
can ignite inspiration for their academic projects and future career paths.

EEMEABNAIBESHAMNRIE > AttMIZEEMRSEZBEXER B8

FEEDBACK TO THIS REPORT

We welcome comments and suggestions regarding our
environmental and social performance for continuous
improvement. Stakeholders may at any time send their written
enquiries and concerns to the ESG Representative of the Company
at its Head Office as follows:

ESG Representative

16th-18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

esg@ebon.com.hk

REMMUPNPWEENREHENER -

HERENER

EMBOSBNERBERERERMERE R
HERRER FOETHRREIKRE - EEMMBE
RFFEEICERTARABPBR2ATRE - 4
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16-18#&

esg@ebon.com.hk
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INDEX

Aspects, General

=5l

RE HERERR

Disclosures and KPIs Description Compliance level Reference (page)
EmE - —REER
BRENER i BHKF 2% (HR)
Subject Area A — Environment
FTEHRA—RIR
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT: HEBY
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 86
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RIRE EHERNAEREHEN  MARIBHNES EERETERVNEESH ey
@ HBE R
(b) BIHBITAREALENBREERRN
HWER -
KPI'AT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Comply 87
BRANIERAL PER R SR R AERA B B - eAS
KPI' A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in Comply 87
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.
BSEERIER A2 B (SEE ) MaeREE (8E 2) AWRER B IS (UINEH) R (ER) ZE - BF
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity. Comply 87
BSEEMIER AL FEEAEERNAE (UINEE) R (ER) BE - BF
KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Comply 87
intensity.
BEREMIERAL4 FEAEZERERYEE UNFE) R (MBR)ZE - FEASY
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 86
BREMIERALS WHMRFT LB 2 B B R AEEEL B RTINS R - FEASY
KPI'AT.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a Comply 87
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BREMIERALG WREBEERBEERYNTG L REMFATINHAEEERAZEIELER Sy
FREREREY D8R
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBEA2 : BRER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw Comply 88-89
materials.
—RIE BERERER (BIEER - KREMEMR) HBEK eAS
KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in Comply 89
total (kWh in “000s) and intensity.
BSRERIERA21 REMNESWEER REEER(E - fuh) A2 UTETERTE) R BF
BE e
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Comply 89
BEREMERA22 BREKBREE - B
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 88-89
BREMIERA23 WA LR RE A B R R R EDE L B SRR - FEASY
KPI'A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, Comply 89
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BRANIERA24 Ut SREVE AR LA AEMRERE - LRI LNAKMEEERAESELE Sy
RFERER YD ER
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, Comply 89
with reference to per unit produced.
BREMIERA2S SRmrAEEMANEE (UHFE) R (NER) BEEEVIEE - B
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Disclosures and KPls

BE - —REER
FRERER

5| @)

Description Compliance level Reference (page)

it BHRKT 2% (HR)

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and Comply 90
natural resources.

HEBTAHRER ARERERE A ENEE - )

KPI'A3.1

BREMERA3

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural Comply 90
resources and the actions taken to manage them.

HREBFHHRERARERNEAFERCRNERAAZENTE - EF

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues Comply 91
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—RiNE AR EHCER TREHBTAEERENEARREBSENBE - B

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and Comply 91-95
those which may impact the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

BREMIER A4 FREERTHEHBTAEREFENEARBRERSEE - RELTH - EF

General Disclosure

Information on: Comply 96-97
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

—RiNE ERHFMREE  BREREA  TEBE B PERE - 2l RERN EF
REMEBREBRN
@ BER
(b) BFEHBTABEAFENEBEEERSRS
HE R o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age Comply 97
group and geographical region.
BEREANIEEBI RIUR - EREL (WE2RERER) FRANRGERSNESLY - EF
KPI' B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Comply 97
BREMIERB2 R FRANRMERSWEERAE - EF
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y=E

Disclosures and KPls Description Compliance level Reference (page)
Bl —REER
BRERER Eipus BHKF 2% (’R)
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB2: RERZE
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 98
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
— iR HERHZETIERERRERSHAMELREN BsF
@ BER R
b) EIFEBRTABEAZENEREERERRS
HE R o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years Comply 98
including the reporting year.
BASEENIEEB2.1 BE=ZF (BEERFE)SFRTTHNWABRIEER - eiS)
KPI'B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Comply 98
BASRERIEZRB2.2 ETEEATHEAE - eiS)
KPI'B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they Comply 98
are implemented and monitored.
BASEAENIERB2.3 PRV R R R 2 2 e - IRIBRERITRER X - fei
Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EEB3 : R RIE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at Comply 99
work. Description of training activities.
—RIRE EHRAEEET THFRENNEBRIREENECE o flEED - BF
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. Comply 99
senior management, middle management).
RS E ISR B3.1 ZURIRESEN (MSHREEE PREZE) NI IREBILL - BF
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee Comply 99
category.
BASEAEIEEB3.2 ZUBIREEEGE D  SHRESTRZINNFIIEE - e
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BEB4 : TR
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 100
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—RIKE BEAR L ETSIRHE T fER
@ BER R
b)  EIFEHRTABERZENEREEERRSH
By o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and Comply 100
forced labour.
BASEENIER B4 HRE RSN E R AR R E T RRHBIE T - BsF
T2 KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Comply 100
i RS IE R B4.2 HE BB R R ERA RSN AT RIS o Bsr
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Disclosures and KPIs Description Compliance level Reference (page)
Em - —REER
BREAMER Ei:pud ARKF 2 (ER)
Operating Practices
BEEA
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
FEEB5 : HLEHEERE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Comply 100-101
—RIKE ERMEENRE RS EBRBE o B=F
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Comply 101
BRAMIEEBS ZiLEE D NHEEEHE o B=F
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where Comply 101
the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
B ENIEEB5.2 AR AUERNES  AERTEBREMNNREREE - UREBEAITR g
BRIk -
KPI'B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the Comply 101
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BRENIEREB5.3 BRI MERSERSNESRESABNES  UREBHTRERS i)
& o
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and Comply 101
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BRAMIEREBS.4 HREREHERHEES BRRERRBENES  UREEHTRERSE - B=F
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
fEEB6 | ERHEIE
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 102
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
—RIKE FEARUERNBRBENRERZE  BS  EERLBEEURERAGEN B
@ BE IR
(b) BIFHBTABEAFENEEEERRSG
By o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and Comply 102
health reasons.
BREMIEEB6.1 EEREEXERBHTRALTEHRREMMARKNE DL feiS)
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are Comply 102
dealt with.
BRENIEREB6.2 EREERERRBRBIIRFHE UREH T E - BF
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property Comply 102-103
rights.
BRANIEREB6.3 R B4 AR IE AR E AR AIES) - B=F
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Comply 102
BRANIEEB6.4 HiEERTEBERERBKER - B=F
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are Comply 103
implemented and monitored.
BRAMIEREB6.S HIUHEEERMRERARBEER  URBEIITRERTE - B=F
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ERKFE

Reference (page)

2Z(AR)

General Disclosure Information on: Comply 103
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—RIRE HEERTILERRR - BV - MFFRIREN ¢ B
() BE R
by BFHBRTARERFENEREEREN
R o
KPI'B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Comply 103
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RS ENIERBT A RERPAHRTAIEEERHYCEENETHARMTNEE RFHER - B
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they Comply 103
are implemented and monitored.
BASRERIEE BT 2 R IR R R EEF  URAEATRERESE - e
KPI'B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Comply 103
BASRENIEE BT .3 HEESKE TRENRETIEI - B

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities Comply 104
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.
—RE BEUHESERTRBETALEERIHEFTENRRAXBIDSEEHLETR EiS)
BIOEE -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Comply 104
RS ENIEE RS EEE RS - B
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Comply 104
BARRIEIEEBS.2 EETHERBHAER - B
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To the Members of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set
out on pages 119 to 205, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2025;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) as issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
as applicable to audits of financial statements of public interest
entities. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conT'D)

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to provision

for inventory obsolescence.

Key Audit Matter
MREEER

Provision for inventory obsolescence
BEFERE

Refer to Notes 2.3.4, 4.1 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements for the disclosures of the related
accounting policies, judgements and estimates.
BERMEEESHER HEREHESRE  B2RESHBERRWE
234 41K19¢°

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of the
Group’s inventories amounted to HK$113,181,000 net of
provision for inventory obsolescence of HK$36,516,000.
Inventories, comprising architectural builders’ hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture, are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
REZZ-HF=A=Z+—R AREFEZREER113,181,000
BT BHIBRBREFEERE36,5160008T - FEEERERS
&8 BEREREM  RESUBRRRANERAETERFE
ME 2 BIEE AR -

Management assessed the provision at each period ended
for obsolete or slow-moving inventories. In determining
the amount of allowance required for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories, management evaluates the ageing
of inventories, their historical and estimated future sales
pattern and other factors and compares the carrying value
of inventories to their estimated net realisable value.
EEEFAZENBR BRI FHTERE RNETBRRFHE
FEMERESER  EEESTEFERR BLRMAETRRH
ERARAEMEER  YHBRFE 2 REEEE G TRRFE -

BRRETEE @)

BEMEFTTENEBRFERBEENERER
BIH o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EFNAEEBERETSE

Our audit procedures in relation to the provision for
inventory obsolescence included:
RBREFERECETRFEHE

We understood and evaluated the key controls
by which management reviews on inventory
provision including procedures on periodic and
annual review of obsolete and aged inventories,
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors. We validated the key controls that the
Group has implemented to estimate the provision
for inventory obsolescence;
EMNTHETGEEEFHNFERENERES  BFE
HRFEENBEEREFENER  UBBZEMTT
e E 1 RO R A HL At B [ B [ 35 97K P SR AT A E K BE R
FORWEE R - RMRET SEEAMTERFER
BEMERNERES

We understood, assessed and challenged the
appropriateness and reasonableness of the
assumptions adopted in the provision policy and
basis of identification of the obsolete and slow-
moving inventories by referencing to their ageing,
historical and subsequent sales patterns and
estimated future sales;

BMTH  FERERRBERRTARABRNGELE
REEM  WBRBSTHKRER ELRERIHERAR
EETRREE T B R ERBBERFHFENELE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conT'D)

Key Audit Matter
HMEEER

The identification of inventory obsolescence and
determination of estimated net realisable value require
the use of significant judgement and estimates, including
their nature, ageing, latest selling price, and expectation
of future sales orders. The estimates are subject to
uncertainty of market trends, customer demands and
fashion trends.

AR TERBEMTIERFEFTEFLEAHERMGET &
FBEME Rk ROHEERYARESTENTRY - BRAMGEE
EMmEEY FEFERRATESZSTREREZMZE -

We focused on this area because of the significance of
the gross inventory balance to the consolidated financial
statements and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the provision for inventory obsolescence.
BN LB BHREFEEREESMBERENEEMUAR
BEBREFEREIMS R R A -
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ARETEE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RMHBANMEERRESSH

—  We performed retrospective review to evaluate the
outcome of prior period assessment on provision
for obsolete inventory to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

RIFETT TEHER  UFLBEFEREN LA HREGF
hER  MEEER AT BRENERM

—  We tested, on a sample basis, of the accuracy
of the ageing report of inventory by tracing to
purchase invoices and goods receipt notes;
EMEBERRBEERREEMFIATERRIREN
TERENE

—  We tested, on a sample basis, the sales records
of inventories by tracing to sales invoices of the
past 2 years and the inventories utilisation rate
applied on identification of the obsolete and
slow-moving inventories to ensure the accuracy
and completeness of provision for inventory
obsolescence;
RMBEREHBEMFNHEREHEALATEHETE
REBIBERFHFERERNEENAR  LIRARBE
FERENERMERTHENL

—  We tested, on a sample basis, of estimated future
sales against secured sales orders received from

customers;
BB BRRAEF 2 OB ERTE MBI S (A5 Rk 8
EBR

—  We also assessed the estimated net realisable value
by comparing the estimated selling price and sales
quantity of inventories with the corresponding post
year-end sales data; and
BT EBLBEFENGTTEERFEEHEBREENER
REEHE - HEGETIERFE R

— We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculation of inventory provision.
BEMAATERBIENEMERME -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered the
judgments and assumptions made by management in
relation to their assessment for provision of inventory
obsolescence were supportable by the available
evidence.

HRFPTHRSF  RMARAETEBREYBRE S RENTE
FreE A BT R R T IR B RIS -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report (the “annual
report”) other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained some of the other
information including director’s report, corporate governance
report, corporate information, group structure, management
discussion and analysis, environment, social and governance report
and five-year financial summary prior to the date of this auditor’s
report. The remaining other information, including financial
highlights and Chairman’s statement and the other sections to be
included in the annual report, is expected to be made available to
us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included
in the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering our
legal rights and obligations.

HfE R

BENREERHHAMEEEE - HUESBFERIT
ERAERAADFR(FR) ANFERERS - EFE
FREMBHRRRRMOZEENRE - RMASRAZ
HEHRE B MBI MEHR Y AER - BEESHRE -
EEERRE AAEH KERE  EEENHE
D BRE CHEREABRERAEFUBERE - 8T
HER  BREVBRERTFERSURSBHAEF
WO EMEL - FESRZABRERTEM -

BMEGEVBRRNZRALTREAMERS - &K
MAFEHESFEHZSAMESRREALAMN
EREW -

HEERMEGSMBRERNWET  BMANEERH
FELMPTEBNEMES  FHBRS  SEEME
ERBEGREMBRERARMEFTBRPATH
NERFEERNEBREUT FEERERBRLH
B e

ERBMERALEEMRE ARG 2 A tbER
FETHIH REMRBAEMEEFEERE
B RAFEREZBE - EEHE  BRIRE
fEAERE o

ERMMEFESAAFROBRT LMERET - WRK
MRBEPEFEERERRL - RMALESLEH
BEREEE  WERKMMNEZERANNEBRIVE
278 -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review
of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Lee, Chun Wah, Ryan (practising certificate
number: P07034).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #&2EKHEE
For the year ended 31 March 2025 BE=Z-HAF=ZA=+—-HLFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains/(losses), net

Loss on revaluation of properties held
for own use

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Net impairment losses on financial
and contract asset

Operating (loss)/profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Items that have been/may be
subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Exchange gain on translation
of financial statements of
foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Loss on revaluation of properties
held for own use

Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use

Wy 5

EF

Hibr A

Httilezs /(B518) - FH
FEB AYMEEMGEE

7 EEAA
TR
ERMEENEEZRERBERRER

g (ER) BT
5T ON
MHER

MBER  FHR

BRATSBLAT (B51R), R R
FREERMX

RAREEREFE
(&518), %

Hit2H (B8), Kz
HEEeR MREFIEE
BEMNEE

BERIMEBMBERZ
BE 7 W as

HERTEENHIBE
BEMNEE
EBFARMEZER

FHEGFEFERYEZ
BIRSE

Notes
Fff &

10

13

16

25

2025 2024
—E-HEF —EZMF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
457,782 459,848
(297,783) (280,638)
159,999 179,210
449 1,291
302 (981)
(13,301) (2,107)
(83,281) (92,687)
(72,760) (69,054)
(218) (1,195)
(8,810) 14,477
1,336 1,924
(4,402) (5,539)
(3,066) (3,615)
(11,876) 10,862
(1,564) (2,319)
(13,440) 8,543
51 155
(19,379) (7,576)
3,198 1,250
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #&2EKEK
For the year ended 31 March 2025 BZ=Z-HEF=ZA=+-ALEE

Other comprehensive loss for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

(Loss)/earnings per share
(expressed in HK$ cents per share)
— Basic and diluted

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Notes
MY EE
FEHMZEER  BREZ
AATFEEERGEESRMA
(B518) R
B’ (BR),wF
(UBRBILABEN)
— BEARREHE 15

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2025 2024
ZEZRF —EMmEF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET F&T

(16,130) (6,171)
(29,570) 2,372

(1.87 cents & 1lll)

1.19 cents 7Bl
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2025 R=Z=-®&=ZA=+—-H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Deferred income tax assets
Retention and other receivables

Current assets
Inventories
Trade, retention and other receivables

Contract assets

Current income tax recoverable

Time deposits with maturity
over three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Notes
Fff &
BE
FRBEE
ME  MERZE 16
FRHEEE 17
ELEFESRERE 25
FEUWR B8 7R R H At FE UL X 20
REEE
FE 19
FERBRRR - EWRB R K
H b UK 20
EHEE 20
] UL Bl AR Fr S 5
FER A B =18 A NWEETFR
21
HeRBESEEY 21
HWEE
Ex
RATFREEREGER
% 26
Ei] 27
MR

= N

SE MR R
2025 2024
—E-HEF —EZMF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
237,968 282,812
27,123 37,344
3,302 5,325
5,198 4,840
273,591 330,321
113,181 169,712
80,151 115,145
5,963 3,837
3,439 4,394
33,013 30,309
96,444 57,377
332,191 380,774
605,782 711,095
71,884 71,884
394,039 423,609
465,923 495,493
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position &4 8% itR %

As at 31 March 2025 R=Z-®&=A=+-—H

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Employee benefit obligations
Lease liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Borrowings
Derivative financial liabilities
Current income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

afE

FRBEME
BEBNER
HESE
EEFFEHEE

RBEE
BRI E AL BT
BHEE
HEAE

(BN

TTEEmas
FEFFEHEE

waE

HERRAE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 119 to 205 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2025 and were

signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
IR
Director

EF

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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<

2025 2024

—E-RF —EMF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MIEE FHET F&T
22 4,745 4,782
17 7,734 19,418
25 8,313 14,500
20,792 38,700

22 20,941 30,977
22 45,685 62,804
17 20,789 19,406
23 26,894 58,602
24 36 -
4,722 5,113

119,067 176,902

________ 139,859 215602
605,782 711,095

FI9E20BENGEMBRRCLESTENR -
“HERNAZTHBEH#E YR THESREREE -

TSE Sun Po, Tony
Bk

Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #&#z#

== N\ 7

For the year ended 31 March 2025 BZE=—Z-HAF5=A=+—-ALEE

Balance as at 1 April 2023

Comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income

Exchange gain on translation of financial
statements of foreign operations

Loss on revaluation of properties
held for own use

Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use

Total comprehensive (loss)/income

Transactions with owners

Appropriation to statutory reserve
(Note 27)

Dividends (Note 14)

Total transactions with owners

Balance as at 31 March 2024

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

R-E-=ENA-BEH
EERAbE

EEER

Hit2E (58) /W
BESNERYBRRCERNE
BEERNEEREE

RBERRANEHATE

(B8R hEaE

BfEE2 RS
EERBIE(MEL)

B8 (fzE14)
HEECRRRE

RZB-MEZA=+-RER

2EH%R

Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger  Capital ~ Exchange  Statutory  Retained

capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  earnings Total

Rx RiVEE EftRE A0EE AXEE EXGE ATRE REEN a7
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TErx FExr TEnr TR TEx TEn  TER  TEx
71,084 10,784 141,637 6,979 2,896 (228) 2241 260522 496,715
- - - - - - - 8,543 8,543
- - - - - 155 - - 155
- - (7,576) - - - - - (7,576)
- - 1,250 - - - - - 1,250

- - (6,326) - - 155 - 8,543 2,372
- - - - - - (162) 162 -
_ _ - - - - - (3,594) (3,594)
- - - - - - (162) (3432 (3,594)
71,884 10,784 135311 6,979 2,896 (73) 2,079 265633 495493

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #&#z#

For the year ended 31 March 2025 BZ=Z-RF5=A=+-ALFE

Balance as at 1 April 2024

Comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Exchange gain on translation of financial

statements of foreign operations
Loss on revaluation of properties
held for own use
Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use

Total comprehensive (loss)/income

Transactions with owners
Appropriation to statutory reserve
(Note 27)

Total transactions with owners

Balance as at 31 March 2025

WZE-MEMA-RER
EEREEE

EEFE

Eft2E (58)/ i
BEBNERYBERCEL NG
BEERNEEREE

REERRRNS ETE

2 (5R)/ WEaE
VPR
EERBIE (ME27)
UL PATEL

RZB-RFZA=+-RER

Z

Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger ~ Capital  Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve earnings Total
Rkx RGEE ERRE SUHRE E4RE ENRGE IERE REER CEl
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér TEx T#Ez TEx TEx TEz TEx TR TEn
71,884 10,784 135311 6,979 2,896 (73) 2,079 265633 495,493
_ - i , - - - (13440)  (13,440)
- - - - - 51 - - 51
- - (19379 - - - - - (19379
- - 319 - - - - - 319
- - (16,181 - - 51 - (13,440)  (29,570)
- - - - - - ®) 8 -
- - - - - - ® 8 -
71,884 10,784 119,130 6,979 2,896 (22) 2071 252,201 465,923

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #4684

For the year ended 31 March 2025 BZ=-Z-HEF=A=+-HLEE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for settlement of disposal of
forward contracts

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Placement of deposits with maturity
over three months

Proceeds from deposits with maturity
over three months

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowings

Interest paid on borrowings

Payment of principal elements of
lease liabilities

Payment of interest elements of
leases liabilities

Proceeds from trust receipt loans

Repayment of trust receipt loans

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Exchange gains on cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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HHIm

2025 2024
—ZE-EHF —EME
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET
108,359 2,669

(1,993) (4,928)
106,366 (2,259)

- (934)
(7,195) (10,595)
259 -
(62,296) (187,237)
59,591 180,293
1,336 1,924
(8,305) (16,549)
(27,445) 4,172)
(2,187) (3,533)
(22,893) (33,064)
(2,215) (2,006)
65,759 86,550
(70,022) (87,745)
- (3,594)
(59,003) (47,564)
39,058 (66,372)
57,377 123,296
9 453
96,444 57,377

LA EARE TSR B R ERRE M 3 — FBOE -

MHBTERABRIA2024/255 F 1K

125



126

GENERAL INFORMATION

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business is 16th-18th Floors, First
Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
[ts subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing,
wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture and
provision of interior design services, project and contract
management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
HKFRS Accounting Standards and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified
by the revaluation of properties held for own use and
derivative financial instruments, which are carried at fair
values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS Accounting Standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy
Amended standards and interpretations adopted

(@

by the Group

The Group has applied the following amended
standards and interpretation for the annual
reporting period commencing 1 April 2024:

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 17

Hong Kong

Interpretation 5

(Revised)

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current;
Non-current liabilities with
covenants

Supplier Finance
Arrangements

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clause

Lease liabilities in Sale and
Lease Back

The amended standards and interpretations to
existing standards listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy (cont'd)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations

not yet adopted

Certain new, amended accounting standards
and interpretations have been published that are
not yet effective for the annual reporting periods

commencing 1 April 2024 and have not been early

adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 21 and
HKFRS 1
BERSHEAE2HR
BBV REERSE 13 (IEFTA)
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7
EBMERELERE 15
BEEMEREERE 75
ERVBBMEEREIN
ERVBEREENE10HR
BEBGTTERE 7S
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7
BEBMERELERNFIFR
BBV EWELERSE 75 (1BFTA)
HKFRS 18

EBMBREELE 1858
HKFRS 19

BB REERE 1955
Hong Kong Interpretation 5

BRREESR

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

EBMEHRELERNE 10K
EBGTTERE 2858 (BRTA)
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Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

PR ERNWEHIEERE

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability:
Disclosures

FAHTAEEMBLBNIKE

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

HHEBRERNWES — ERAHEETHERERERER
HWEHRERNDHE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
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1 January 2026

1 January 2027
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1 January 2027
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy (cont'd)

b)

New and amended standards and interpretations
not yet adopted (cont'd)

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of adopting these new and amended standards and
interpretation of HKFRS and is not yet in a position
to state whether they would have a significant
impact on the Group’s results and financial
position, except for HKFRS 18 which expected to
affect the presentation of the statement of profit or
loss and disclosures in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The Group is in the process
assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

2.3 Material accounting policy information
2.3.1Property, plant and equipment

Properties held for own use are stated at revalued
amount. Property, plant and equipment, other
than properties held for own use, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Properties held for own use are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
their revalued amount, being the revaluation value
at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ significantly from
that which would be determined using revaluation
values at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.1 Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation
of properties held for own use is credited to the

revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets
previously recognised as an expense, in which
case the increase is credited to the profit or loss
to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense
to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSTBREEH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)
2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d) 23 EREHEHEER(GE)

2.3.1 Property, plant and equipment (cont'd) 2.3.1 ¥ BERRE (&)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost or revalued amounts over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Properties held for Over the shorter of

own use unexpired term of lease
or 50 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of lease
improvements terms or 5 years
Furniture, fixtures 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 32.5).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts
and are recognised in the profit or loss. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained earnings as a
movement in reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.2 Financial assets
23.2.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured at amortised cost;
and

e those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss).

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether
the group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

2

e

v\

BRI

RAEBERSTBRESE @)

23 EASHHEER(E)
232 2HEE
2321748

FEEEESHEERUT

FTEERDE

o  REERAGE R

o HERAREFECER
RPN
HEFAEBH) °

DEDBAREREE SR
EECEBEARRERE
ZERRRR -

BRBERANEFEBZEEM
5 BRERBEERERS
HttZ2HEKR R AR B3k
FFEECRETAREM
5 BHORRAEBRER
ARFEREFATET T HHE
2R SRERERANE
FEAHM2EKE (TRA R
EFtAHEERE D) -

EREESEETEEKR
BT ERERBHE K&
EESEEEEET S -



2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.2 Financial assets (cont’d)
23.2.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

2.3.2.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.2 Financial assets (cont’d)
23.2.3 Measurement (cont’d)

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

— Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The Group’s
financial assets carried at amortised
cost comprise “trade, retention and
other receivables”, “deposits and
other receivables” and “cash and
cash equivalents” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.2 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.3.2.3 Measurement (cont’d)
Debt instruments (cont’d)

FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for
the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Impairment
expenses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within “Other
gains/(losses), net” in the period in
which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.2 Financial assets (cont’d)
23.2.3 Measurement (cont’d)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in “Other (losses)/
gains, net” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.2 Financial assets (cont’d)
23.24 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables and
contract assets, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables. Details on how the Group
determines the expected credit losses are set
out in Note 3.1(c).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.3 Trade, retention and other receivables

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due
from customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade, retention and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, retention and other receivables are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.3.4 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.3.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net
of discounts and returns. The Group recognises
revenue when goods are transferred or services are
rendered to the customer.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.5 Revenue recognition (cont'd)

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for the services that
the Group has transferred to a customer. In
addition, incremental costs incurred to obtain a
new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as
contract assets and subsequently amortised when
the related revenue is recognised. A contract
liability is the Group’s obligation to render the
services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration from the customer. A
contract liability is recognised by the Group when
the customer pays consideration in advance before
the Group satisfy the performance obligation to the
customer.

(a) Sales of goods

The Group sells architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and
furniture in the wholesale and retail market.
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods are delivered to the
customer.

(b) Contract revenue

The Group engages in importing, selling
and installation of kitchen collections, and
other construction and decoration works
to contractors and property developers.
Revenue from the services rendered by the
Group is recognised over time as the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset or
work in progress that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced. The Group
has applied the output method in recognising
the revenue from construction contracts
over time. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation of
construction contracts is measured with
reference to either surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract
work.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.5 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(c)

finance income

Finance income is recognised using the
effective interest method to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset
(after deduction of the loss allowance).

2.3.6 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred income
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.6 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)
(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

The deferred income tax liability in relation
to investment property that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property
will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 REREERSTTBERSH @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNT'D)
2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd) 23 EBEASHBREEHRGE)
2.3.6 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d) 2.3.6 FRIRBELZFTZH (F)
(b) Deferred income tax (cont'd) (b) BT ()
Deferred income tax liabilities and assets ELEFREHEEREERE
are not recognised for temporary differences BIREERRERBINER
between the carrying amount and tax bases of NBENEREEZHE(EAR
investments in foreign operations where the RATREH O AR - M
company is able to control the timing of the ZEEZRTRFAEEITRER
reversal of the temporary differences and it is REEE ) M HFERR o

probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are fist 7 7RI 4R OK SR BB 1T AU
offset where there is a legally enforceable MNP REERAER
right to offset current tax assets and liabilities 5 0 T2 e A FE B TE A BRER[E]
and where the deferred tax balances relate —BEHEBER  BITEE
to the same taxation authority. Current tax EFSHEENRE BN -
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the i EREA A AR IR BN AT IR
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset HENEBEARRFEERER
and intends either to settle on a net basis, EREFREREEREES
or to realise the asset and settle the liability B AIAREBIE G E
simultaneously. HEEIKH -
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or R RIELERIRRN RS R - M
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items FHEREM2ERSENE RN ES
recognised in other comprehensive income or BRIRERI - EUHBERT - B
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also ERABIREMEZEARRSEER
recognised in other comprehensive income or PR -

directly in equity, respectively.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.7 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-
lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate
for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

— fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable

— variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

— amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees

— the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

— payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

2

RAEERSTHEREE @

23 EBEASHBEER(E)
2.3.7 HE

HERHEEETHAKEERE
AEAREAEEEREEEE -

BHTEEHERFHEERD - &
EERBEEEAHBYNEREEN
NREIEEHERIFE
A - RAKBEEREEANRE
EREMS  AEECEETOMR
HERIFEEE D MUE-HESR

DA

HHREREERES  YBEEE
TE AR R ARME - HE B E
FEAEMREE  ERBEARTEZ
HMEEED 2 BFERDIR - HE

BETSREETIRR -

HEREENEEREBEDSESR
EEEE - HERERENATH

B ROFRE -

— BEMR(BEBEEEERM
R BAAMEREEESR

— EREBIANRLAFMEBHE
HEZIEBIRN DS EN

AREENR

— NHREERRTASEES

FEASFRIE

— BEREBENTEEGE
5 8 A T2 7 E 47 4

#) R

— XK LEEENIAR(MEE
HRRAEETE

&) e

MHBTERABRIA2024/255 F 1K

143



144

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.7 Leases (cont’d)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

— where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party
financing was received;

— makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.7 Leases (cont’d)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

— the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

— any initial direct costs, and
— restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group
revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings
held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@ Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises from borrowings and interest-bearing bank
deposits. Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Interest-bearing financial assets/
liabilities at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2025, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s (loss)/
profit for the year and retained earnings would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$426,000
(2024: HK$120,000). The 50 basis point increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the sales transactions settled in Hong Kong
dollars. However, foreign currencies are required
to settle the Group’s purchases from overseas
suppliers. It is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily with respect to United States dollar
(“US$”), EURO (“EUR”) and Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”) denominated transactions.

To manage their foreign exchange risk arising
from certain future commercial transactions
and recognised liabilities, entities in the Group
use forward contracts, transacted with external
financial institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.

As at 31 March 2025, some group entities with
functional currency of HKD had considerable
amount of trade payables and bank balances
and cash denominated in US$. Under the Linked
Exchange Rate System in Hong Kong, HKD is
pegged to US$, management therefore considers
that there is no significant foreign exchange risk
with respect to US$ (2024: Same).

As at 31 March 2025, if the RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2024: 5%) against the HKD
with all other variables held constant, there will be
no significant impact on the post-tax profit of the
Group (2024: Same).

As at 31 March 2025, if the EUR had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2024: 5%) against the HKD with
all other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have changed as follows. The changes are
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of EUR denominated trade
payables.

3

Bt 7 [ B B B ()

3.1

B # B R & (4R)
(b) SMERE

REBMEIENEBEE  MAHD
HERXZYUBTEE - EEEE
SMIERIIB B T RREF RIGE SN o
FAEEMEENMNERBERRR
BExT(ERD  BE(BREDR
ARB(AREDBELNRS -

RERETRAREAERZ RERE
BFEEMIERRE  NEBET
BRIV BRERZHERR
HaH - EXRBERZHCHER
BEUGFERIEEENERITE
R EEIERME

R-ZZE-HF=A=+—H8  hee
EMABBTINETEEERERE
UE T BB NEMRRARERT
HHRRRE - RIEFBHBEE
B Bl HEEER
AYEBEBEETHNERIERR
(ZZ2ZMF @ MERE) -

RZEBE-ZHFE=ZRA=+—-H8B 'R
EAREEBTAEBZE%
(ZEZME:5%) MAABH
HEHEFIE BTEHAE
BrBRBgEiINELEEATE
(ZZ=WEF : 8E) °

RZBE-HF=ZA=+—H  BE
BEABIHAE BE%(ZF
ZIE D 5%) 0 MATE E B E 4
A AEERNESSHMT -
EHFTEHNREUBEREN
ZENERELEER WS EEFR
g( °

MHBTERABRIA2024/255 F 1K

147



148

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(b) Foreign currency risk (cont'd)

(©

Post-tax loss/profit (decrease)/

increase when EUR against HKD i1, %A
ORi4»), /18 hn
— Strengthened by 5% — H{E5%
— Weakened by 5% — BR{E5%
Credit risk
(i) Risk management

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents, time
deposits with maturity over three months,
trade, retention and other receivables and
contract assets.

To manage the risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and time deposits with maturity
over three months, the Group only transacts
with reputable banks which are all high-
credit-quality financial institutions. There has
no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss
is insignificant.

For other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability
of deposits and other receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience,
current conditions and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors. The
management believes that the expected credit
loss is insignificant.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d)

(i)

Risk management (cont’d)

For trade and retention receivables and
contract assets, management makes periodic
individual assessment on their recoverability.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and retention receivables and
contract assets.

To measure expected credit losses, the Group
categorises its trade and retention receivables
and contract assets based on the nature of
customer accounts and shared credit risk
characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of customers and the
corresponding historical credit losses
experienced. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c¢) Credit risk (cont’d)
(i) Risk management (cont'd)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31
March 2025 and 2024 was determined as
follows for trade, retention receivables and
contract assets:

As at 31 March 2025 R-E-RE=A=+-H
Provision on an individual basis &z (@RI B & #
Provision on a collective basis R FEERE

As at 31 March 2024 R-E-_MNE=RA=1+-AH
Provision on an individual basis 1R {ERIE &R
Provision on a collective basis RAREERE
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(d) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer
term.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group held cash and
cash equivalents and time deposits at banks with
maturity over three months of approximately
HK$129,457,000 (2024: approximately
HK$87,686,000) that could be readily realised to
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

Currently, the Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds
generated from operations and bank borrowings.
As at 31 March 2025, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$127,795,000 (2024: approximately
HK$173,631,000).

As at 31 March 2025, the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash
flows and the earliest date our Group can be
required to pay. Balance date within 12 months
equal their carrying balance circulating both
interest and principal as the impact of discounting
is not significant.
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SEFEReRESZEYUR
=EA U LBENRITERFRY
129,457,000 8 T (ZZE-HF : ¥
87,686,000787T) » AJMERFERE
SRERAUEERBEL AR -

BAl A"EEEBEEEENBSE
ERBITERRREEHEEESSE
R RZZB-_HE=A=+—8 -
AEETBAZAESARITRED
£127,795,00058 T (ZE -0 :
#9173,631,00087T) ©

RZBZHF=ZA=1+—-HB &&
ERAARBRBARERESRER
FEEAXNNRFERHZERE
BZBRTAENIHA - HRRE
ERR R2EARANEHREER
LRBNERATHAREASER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 HIBERBER@
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd) 3.1 M¥REBREEGE)
(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d) d) FBELEE(E)

Total

Less than contractual
Tyearor  Between1  Between2 undiscounted Carrying
ondemand and2years and5years Over5years  cash flows amount

SR-F4 EERES 3

BERX  -ERFA BMERER BFNE RERE RaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

As at 31 March 2025 W-E-ff=fA=+-A
Trade and other payables ERESREMERE 18,273 - - - 18,273 18,273
Borrowings =
— unsecured — R 3,019 - - - 3,019 3,019
— secured — B 2,522 2,399 7195 16,484 28,600 23,875
Lease liabiliies BEEE 0144 7136 595 595 30,470 28,523
Total w2t 45,958 9,535 7,790 17,079 80,362 73,690
Total
Less than contractual
Tyearor  Between1  Between2 undiscounted Carrying
ondemand  and2vyears  and5years Over5years  cashflows amount
PR-ES BENRYER
BEX  -ZWERN MELER BENE Reig REfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
As at 31 March 2024 W-B-mE=A=1-A
Trade and other payables ERRARAMEN 31,113 - - - 31,113 31,113
Borrowings CES
— unsecured — B E 7,282 - - - 7,282 7,282
— secured —BREA 7,027 6,898 20,694 29,921 64,540 51,320
Lease liabilities HEEE 20,983 15,662 4,488 - 41,133 38,824
Total h 06,405 22,560 25,182 29,921 144,008 128,539
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives on capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net cash is calculated as total borrowings plus lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt.

3

Bt 7 [ B B B ()

3.2

EXER
FEBERERZERRREREEEE
HIFEEE  EMAEDRRIEHOR
EREMBHEURESEER ZERE
BLUBIERE AR

REFIABRELARE  AEEHER
BYRFREANRESE mRFED
EX BITHROSIHLEEEURDE
ﬁ%o

rEBERBEEAGBLRERAEESR
MR FETHE—RBEK © LEERRE
EFHERUEANBENE - BEFHA
DABEBEMEEaERRERREEE
M E - EXRBEZRGSMBMR R
Ho (R | b0 L EEFEAE o

2025 2024

—BCEF —2-mE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FiERT

Total borrowings (Note 23) BAERR (PRE23) 26,894 58,602

Lease liabilities (Note 17) HESE(HE17) 28,523 38,824

Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) i : HRE&RIRESZEEY (ME21) (96,444) (57,377)
Less: time deposits at banks with W =@ AN EBIERRITEER

maturity over three months T3k (FfEE21)

(Note 21) (33,013) (30,309)

Net (cash)/debt (B&) EEFHE (74,040) 9,740

Total equity b £ 465,923 495,493

Gearing ratio EEAMBLE N/A T3 F 2.0%

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a net cash position,
hence gearing ratio is not applicable.

R-B-HF=B=+-0 A%ESL
FREMR - AR MBLELTEA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

3

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets (current
portion), including trade, retention and other receivables,
contract assets and cash and cash equivalents; and
the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and
other payables, contract liabilities, derivative financial
liabilities and borrowings, approximate their carrying
amounts due to their short-term maturities.

The Group’s properties held for own use classified under
property, plant and equipment are carried at fair value.
Details of the fair value measurement of these properties
held for own use are disclosed in Note 16.

The Group measures its fair value of the financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2025
by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2025:

As at 31 March 2025
Financial liabilities

Level 1
F—B
HK$'000
TET

RZZ-HF=A=t-H
tHEE

Foreign exchange forward contracts HNEERBEH

— not qualified for hedge accounting

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year ended
31 March 2025.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

— AHREREREFET

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 BEKEREREE@
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREME

HRAEEEHMEE (BHMD) (BEE
WERR - BRRERRAMERR &
NEEURRERREEE/Y)  REE
EeRmEE(BERNRRARAMEN
FoBHEE - TTEERAEERENOR
SHINEIE - HAREREREEES

FEBOERME  BMERRBZFE
BEAMERLRESR  ZEHEEH
MERRETEZFHBRIE 16IKE

AEBZRARE D EZ hERM AT
R@ABBNER SFER-Z2-8F
ZAZ+—HEARESERZEMIA
ZAE - BRAW A BB TR T XAt
MoEBADARERBRAN=EER :

o (MREESEEERRERTSH
BECRERE) (E158) -

e BRTF1BFEENBREN ZE
EREENTRENGARE - 7
AEZE(BFIMER) REEEVR
AERK) (E28) -

o EEFEBEAFRBUABEDSH
BR@ABE (WA IBEEAAR
B)(E3E) »

TREINAEBER-_ZF-_HF=A
S+ -—BRANESERZEMIA :

Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE F=E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AT TET TET

- - 36

BE-_E_-_HAF=ZA=+—HLEEER

TELEHARETERE-BREZ
fE iz FEEE s -



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Provision for inventory obsolescence

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical sales
pattern, their subsequent utilisation and other factors
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
estimated net realisable values. The identification of
inventory obsolescence and estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventory and impairment
provision in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

4.2 Provision for impairment of trade and retention

receivables and contract assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade
and retention receivables and contract assets based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s historical default
rates, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
The estimation of expected credit losses requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for
the impairment of receivables recognised in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

BEREFHEE R

REBREBELRREMERTETMEEE
Ry BEEREBREZRRTHARRSE
2B o

FEBHARELGERRBRR - IEHSEHE

HRE

BEBLEABRERNERE - HEER

BERT—EMRFEZRAEEKEARARE
Rz s REBRAT ©

4.1

4.2

BEFERE
RREBRRFHFEMERESRERN
FEEESTEFERE - BREEELS
BREERBEARHEMEE  YHBEFE
ZRAEREF EEFE - ABBE
FEREREXEBBREDP ZENEERS
E AR H R LS o TR AR AN R
BEERE UWEESPEMABELRE
BFERNZFE 2 REERBERE

EURARERRERRENEERE
B
AEBERENERRARBEZRNR
RUMEVIRRRERRBERRENEE
EHRERE ARERBEASENE
LENR -BATSRAREREDR
HYRTRE MRS EAHAEFHZERR
REERESENRAHE - BHEE
BRI R EEMAHE RS - 78
HBEFRMET AR FRZESTERE
W R TR B9 BRI (B 2 i T 2 B R AR Y
FEW R IEREEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.3

4.4

Recognition for contract revenue over time

The Group uses the output method in accounting for
its construction contracts for sales and installation
of kitchen collections, and other construction and
decoration works. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is determined
by reference to independent surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted construction income
is determined in accordance with the terms set out in
the relevant contracts. Budgeted construction costs
which mainly comprise sub-contracting charges and
costs of materials are prepared by the management
on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved
and the experience of the management. In order
to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date, the
Group’s management conducts periodic review on
the management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

Valuation of properties held for own use

The best evidence of fair value is the current prices in
an active market for similar properties. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information from the
valuations of properties held for own use performed by
external professional valuers by using the open market
value approach. If the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the properties held for own
use may be different and thus may have an impact to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

4

BAREF R HAE @

4.3

4.4

BRWERERREER

FEERBEIAHEERZEFERBEU
REMBEREBSIZZIRENRKEK
RELE BHRETTHEENKEDS
ETIRZBYRASHLEENIRENE
MEIREMERE - ARBREQET
HERNRETEIRENZaHNNE -
BHRA BEHERSNREMS -
HAEIRBATIREBEESQPIERR
mE - BEIRNATREBEIBER
RAERA - HEEBEMY R EEE
B HEBREL TR ZHEU
REBE2ERMETE HEFERR
B cHEE ASREEEEEBLER
FeHEBERFAESRRNEEER -

e AMEMAE
DAREZRERBBRBLUMERNERT
B2 ERMER  AEHMAE  AKE
ZEMHIEEEGEMUADHETEER
FEFERMEETHEZEN - HEE
EHRATEFESR - BEFEERYE
ZAREREF K MEESEEKRE
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.5

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred income
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Management’s assessment
is regularly reviewed and additional deferred income tax
assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred income tax assets
to be recovered.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

5 REVENUE
Sale of goods EmHE
Contract revenue BRI
Timing of revenue recognition: WS R R
— At a point in time — R —ERE R
— Over time — BERE

4

BEAREFHEFT R HE @

4.5

Wy 2

Fris®t

fieh 1R T BE A8 7R 2R B BR 0 35 I DAIE 85 7 B
RBIAEE  AEERSREERRS
ABAREBEER BEUJTERIAZ
EEFEHEEHETEEERFHE
THE TERBERBEMYE - RRERB
HEARARRBRBEZHFRBEEE - ~KH
EHHEMEEE 2T ME - BERATEE
BARRBERBURR] - BUE T U @ 3 SE i
BHEE BISBEIB|MELFRESHE
o

FEBMEAEEBRPEMBRAEHR - R
EERSHEBERAFHERHE - X
EXGRAEGEERERKEH -
HZEEHZBRRABBERERIN &K
R AAMERSTYEELE
BRE 2 Bz Fr IS8 IR IE P 1S B 3%
&

2025 2024
—E-HEF —EZE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FET
417,525 405,658
40,257 54,190
457,782 459,848
417,525 405,658
40,257 54,190
457,782 459,848
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

6 OTHER INCOME

Forfeited deposits placed from customers

7  OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)

— Forward contracts

— Other exchange gain

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Loss from the early termination of leases

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

6 HulA
2025 2024
—E-RE —E_NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
ERUEFFEAER 449 1,291
7 Hlkzs (EE) o FE
2025 2024
—E-HEF —EMF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
ERWE(BE) B8
—EHEYN (36) (1,157)
— HhE Rk 2,101 176
HEWE BMERRBEZERE
(1,731) -
REBARIBEZEE 32) -
302 (981)




SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based on
the information reviewed by the Executive Directors for the
purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The Group's reportable operating segments are as follows:

— Architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom collections
and others segment — importing, wholesale and retail
of architectural builders’ hardware and bathroom
collections and others

— Kitchen collection and furniture segment — designing,
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of kitchen
collections and furniture

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its consolidated financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on the measure of gross profit.
Other operating income and expenses are not allocated to
the operating segments as the information is not regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude current income
tax recoverable, deferred income tax assets, time deposits
with maturity over three months, cash and cash equivalents,
property, plant and equipment related to the office premises
and warehouse of the Group and other corporate assets
which are managed on a central basis and are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude current
and deferred income tax liabilities, borrowings, derivatives
financial liabilities and other corporate liabilities which are
managed on a central basis and are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment.

7 EEF

ARBDMTEE(HTES ) AFEEZEE
EERRE  EEECRBUTESHIEE
BERFERRAMEN 2 ERBELSE DR -

REEZEREEDWHMOT ¢

— BRELT FARBREMIB —E
A #fBRTEEERS  FEREBR
Hity

— BEREREASH — R ED#
% FERZEEERBREA

AEEAREZEBMBRELAERBED
MEAZERR  ERBEBUBEREER
REAEGEVBERRSARAZBE B -

HITESREBEANTEFHEEIBHR
B HRYTESYHFEREMEMEL WS
REAXER  HEMKERERBAXTESE

o
ZREDE o

ITHEEREREEE  ETEETWEARE
R - BEFFSHEE  RIHABB=EA
NEMENR RERRESEEY - EXAEEN
BEFRNERREERBENNE - BERREU
REMEREE  ZEZEEWNKETEE BX
FERBBMAKE DI 2BETEE -

THEERERERE  ETBEANRIEL
FREREE B AR EREMEE
BfE ZEREWETEE  BXFEERRS
RMEMEE DB 2EREED -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNT'D)

Reportable segment revenue from

external customers

Reportable segment cost of sales
Reportable segment gross profit

Other material segment items:
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Provision for inventory

obsolescence
Finance income
Finance costs

AER 2 HIEF o E kS

AEH 5 EHHERA

AEHKz D EHEF

HtEXDHER :
M BERRBITE

EREEENE
BREFERE

0T ON
MBER

(Reversal of net impairment losses)/ £@RENEEZ

net impairment losses on financial

and contract assets

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current segment

assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

bR E

8 oHER @

2025
—EB-HE
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
BERE - BERE
EARERHA AR #et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHET FHET
343,757 114,025 457,782
(221,238) (76,545) (297,783)
122,519 37,480 159,999
(3,843) (2,839) (6,682)
(15,949) (7,434) (23,383)
(1,006) (519) (1,525)
1,328 8 1,336
(2,338) (2,064) (4,402)
136 (354) (218)
220,512 61,796 282,308
862 5,066 5,928
(76,919) (25,703) (102,622)




SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D)

Reportable segment revenue from

external customers

Reportable segment cost of sales
Reportable segment gross profit

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Provision for inventory

obsolescence
Finance income
Finance costs

Net impairment losses on financial

and contract assets

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current segment

assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

AEH 2 EIIEF D H S

A E 2 7 &P E R A

AEHRz D HER

¥ BERREITE

EREEERE
BEFERE

EILON

BB

ERRENEEZ
BEE R

AEH 2T HEE

FERAFRBOBEE
ZRE

AJEH o HEE

8 IHER®@E

2024
—ENF
Architectural
builders’

hardware, Kitchen

bathroom collection

collections and
and others furniture Total

BERE - BEE®E
EARER HAib AR #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT T
349,943 109,905 459,848
(211,238) (69,400) (280,638)
138,705 40,505 179,210
(5,833) (3,477) (9,310)
(17,443) (15,237) (32,680)
(434) (299) (733)
1,903 21 1,924
(3,272) (2,267) (5,539)
(1,161) (34) (1,195)
290,676 100,783 391,459
829 8,812 9,641
(87,671) (74,035) (161,706)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D)

8

The table presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in
the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Reportable segment gross profit
Group gross profit

Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment

Deferred income tax assets

Current income tax recoverable

Time deposits with maturity over three
months

Cash and cash equivalents

Other corporate assets

Group assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Borrowings

Current income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities

Other corporate liabilities

Group liabilities

1 62 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

AJEH 2D EHEF

EEEF

AEH T HEE

E )
EEFRSHEE

AW EA RS
IMABB=EANEHRER

RERRTEED
Hit ¥ EE

SEEE

AEH 2o HEE

EE
REFREHEE
EEFREHEE
TTEEREE
Hit b B E

EEEE

DEBE R (@)

FEEREDMEALAEBRESUBBR2ETE

M BEHRMNT R

2025 2024
—E-RHEF —ENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
159,999 179,210
159,999 179,210
282,308 391,459
187,155 221,805
3,302 5,325
3,439 4,394
33,013 30,309
96,444 57,377
121 426
605,782 711,095
102,622 161,706
23,875 33,736
4,722 5,113
8,313 14,500
36 -

291 547
139,859 215,602




8

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D) 8 SEER @

Geographical information

REZINER

Non-current assets
(excluding financial assets

Revenue from external and deferred income tax
customers assets)
FNRBEE(FTEFEERHEE
IR F W REERBHERE)
2025 2024 2025 2024
—E-EREF —EMMF —E-EREF —EMF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FiET FERT FiEx
Hong Kong (domicile) EHB(TELEHD) 429,392 429,150 264,951 319,864
PRC AR 28,390 30,698 140 292
Total BEr 457,782 459,848 265,091 320,156
The geographical location of customers is determined based EFUHEVERBRXNEMMAEMEME ° 3
on the location at which the goods were delivered. The NRBEECHEBNERNREZEECERME
geographical location of the non-current assets is determined MiE e
based on the physical location of the assets.
During the year ended 31 March 2025, there is no single BE-Z-AFZHAZ=T—HLFE BEE
customer contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue (2024: — B AREERFEBB10% (=B NE
no single customer contributed over 10% of the Group’s BEE —F P EAEERERBIB10%) o

revenue).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Employee benefit expenses (Note 11)

Auditor’s remuneration

— Audit services

— Non-audit services

Cost of inventories (Note 19)

Provision for inventory obsolescence,
included cost of sales

Other direct costs

Bad debt written off

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 16)

Depreciation of right-of-use asset
(Note 17)

Expenses relating to short-term lease
(Note 17)

Legal and professional expenses

Building management fee

Electricity and water

Bank charges

Entertainment

Government rent and rates

Transportation

Storage charges

Printing and stationary

Travelling

Other expenses

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

9 BXME

STREAMZE (MEE11)

BB AT =

— RBR%

— FRBR

FERA (MEE19)
BIREFERE GTAHERR)

Htb E A
£ MR AR
Y3 BB RRBITE (MiEE16)

EREEENE (MFE17)

EHEER X (MFE17)

EERBEMX
BFEEREM
BEBENKE
RITEM
FEEN &
BT IE R =6
RBE

RRE
ENfRI K2 &
ERE
Hitpx%

= + 23
e M BRERWE
2025 2024
—EB-RHE —E_NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
80,230 67,712
1,264 1,760
227 216
273,485 265,550
1,525 733
22,773 14,355
458 —
17,369 20,128
23,383 32,680
351 442
1,758 2,587
2,454 2,447
1,079 1,438
1,173 1,681
1,861 2,206
1,204 1,942
5,571 4,738
7,137 7,275
1,542 1,261
712 838
8,268 12,390
453,824 442,379




10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

11

Finance costs

Interest expense on bank borrowings

Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(Note 17)

Finance income
Bank interest income

Finance costs, net

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries and allowances, including
directors’ emoluments

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

Remeasurements of employee
benefit obligations

10

MBER
RITERFEFX
HEEERNSHZ (ME17)

Lk T ON
RATF S WA

MBER - FHE

11

HFERRM  BREESHE

BAEHA — RERKTE

EERNETEHHE

MBER - FHE

2025 2024
—E-HE —E-ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FExT
2,187 3,533
2,215 2,006
4,402 5,539
(1,336) (1,924)
3,066 3,615
ETREFAZH
2025 2024
—E-REF —EmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
78,266 66,905
2,001 2,046
37) (1,239)
80,230 67,712
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(@

Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to

the directors of the Company are as follows:

2025

Executive directors

TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

TSE Sun Wai, Albert

TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

LAU Shiu Sun

Independent non-executive directors
WONG Wah, Dominic

WAN Sze Chung

LUK Wang Kwong

MAN Yuk Fan

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

HITES

HEE ()
HAHE

HAIE (EBREE)
R

FUTES

"

i |
S oeE i K

B
XE

=]
CEah

B

o

i)
&
%

e

BRI

12 EE2ENRESZRTERSFHMH
Ax
(@ EEZHH
ENRERRARES S EENT :
—E-REF

Employer’s

contribution

to retirement

Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees and bonus scheme Total

EREF

ez
B0 FeRfA EEHR Foy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET TR THRT FRT
130 3,635 - 3,765
130 5,210 - 5,340
130 4,944 - 5,074
130 4,570 18 4,718
130 2,040 18 2,188
160 - - 160
160 - - 160
160 - - 160
1,130 20,399 36 21,565



12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND 12 ESCEAREEREERSHMN

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONT'D) AT @)
(@) Directors’ remuneration (cont’'d) (@) EEBZHME)
2024 —ETME
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees and bonus scheme Total
BIRER
HEP4
EEHE HeR®A EEMT Fhy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTaER FTER FTAT FTAET
Executive directors HITES
TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) WEE (EFE) 100 3,044 - 3,144
TSE Sun Wai, Albert HHEE 100 4,619 - 4,719
TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director) — #i#& (258&18) 100 4,253 12 4,365
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin T 100 3,810 18 3,928
LAU Shiu Sun Edpeaba 100 1,975 18 2,093
Independent non-executive directors ~ BuF#iTES
WONG Wah, Dominic =% 188 - - 188
WAN Sze Chung BEE 188 - - 188
LUK Wang Kwong ERE 188 - - 188
1,064 17,701 48 18,813
No directors have waived or agreed to waive their BE-Z-_HAF=A=+—-HLEFE"
emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2025 THEEENRIBAZRRNEZME (=
(2024: Nil). ENEFE M) o
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D)

(b)

(c)

(d

(e)

®

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2024: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and controlled entities with such directors

As at 31 March 2025, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of the directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2024: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 30, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Key management personnel

The Group regards the executive directors as the key
management personnel. Details of the remuneration
paid to them are set out in (a).

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

EECvRAREZERDZRS FM
AT @

(b)

(o)

(d

(e)

®

EE 2RISR EBER
RBE-Z-RF=A=1+—-HLLFE"
BT S O WSS W EE R AR5
HEREN (CE-NEF  E) -

RERUESERBMAETE=FRE

RBE-Z-RF=A=1T—-HILLFE"
FEBUEREMNE=FRHEESRE
MEEXANE(ZEZMEF &) -

FHOES  SZREEERHNEAR
BEZSESHBREIRERNER
HUEREEMZZWER
R-ZZE-RF=ZA=+—0 LEGHE
E BREESEHNEABBRZE
FENHEETRREMRANER BLE
NREMRZ (ZE_NF : &)

BEEEXRS  REASHNERER

BRRME30RBEEN  AFEERARFEH
B ARBWEBITEMEAEEER
HEMALDESHENBREEELPE
FEARRCEERS - ZHNEQ -

BREEAS
FEERBDTESIEREEAE -
XN TFRENHESFHBEENE ()8 -



12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND 12 ESCEAREEREERSHMN

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D) P N==4¢ )
(g Five highest paid individuals (® ILEBEFHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FRAKEzLERSFHATEEN
in the Group for the year include four (2024: four) N(ZEBZNFE: OU)ES REME
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis EHEREXFIRZONA - FREX
presented above. The emoluments paid or payable to NEEXNTFRERSEHMA L 2 M
the five highest paid individuals during the year are as LU
follows:
2025 2024
—E-HE —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx FiBxT

Salaries and allowances
Pension costs — defined

He e 23,339 19,695
RIS RA — R

contribution plans 36 48
23,375 19,743
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MENFUTER :

Emolument bands (in HK$)

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

Number of individuals

A8

2025 2024
—E-ERF —EmEF

FHENAE R &)
2,500,001 % 7T & 3,000,000 & 7T - -
3,000,001 & 7T & 3,500,000 3 7T - 1
3,500,001 38 7T & 4,000,000 7 7T 1 2
4,000,001 % 7T Z 4,500,000 & 7T 1 1
4,500,001 & 7T Z 5,000,000 & 7T 1 1
5,000,001 & 5T & 5,500,000 38 7T 2 -
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13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%

(2024: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group

is 25% (2024: 25%) for the year.

Current tax BB IR

Hong Kong profits tax BBREH

PRC enterprise income tax RS

Under provision in prior years BEFERBTE

Total current tax EIEGETREEE

Deferred income tax (Note 25) IEEFTS B (Fak25)

Income tax expense FrEBiR<

The tax on the Group’s loss/profit before tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic tax

rates in the region in which the Group operates as follows:

(Loss)/profit before income tax BErSEL AT (BE8),5F

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates AR RSB AN
applicable to profits in the A ity B R EHBLIR
respective region

Effect of tax reduction in current year NEERIERD N E

Income not subject to tax BARBUBA

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7 a[$1%i58 3%
Recognition of previous unrecognised — RRBARERFIAEE
tax losses

Tax loss not recognised RERREEE
Under provision in prior years BEFERBETR
Income tax expense FrEBiMX

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

13

FRr8HRX

EBFEB D UREEMFTERTERIRFTE
16.5%(ZFE MU 1 16.5%) sHREE o AR
FE  AEETEMBARNBEARESR25%
(ZZFZMF 1 25%) ©

2025 2024
ZEZhHF —EMmEF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FH&T

2,095 2,817

52 12

385 1,007

2,532 3,836

(968) (1,517)

1,564 2,319

AEERRGBIEANER R 2 BEERE
RRAAEEEERTHBE 2 AR EMmETHE
ZEWRBEERNT

Group

rEH
2025 2024
—E-ERE —EMMF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
(11,876) 10,862
(2,470) 1,300
(20) (33)
(305) (840)
1,753 1,075
(127) (494)
2,348 304
385 1,007
1,564 2,319




14 DIVIDENDS

15

Dividends declared and paid during the year

No dividend in respect of 2024
(2024: in respect of final dividend
in 2023 of HK$0.5 cent) per share

—ENFENESRKE
REAREEIR0.584L)

The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: HK$
Nil).

LOSS/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the

(ZZ2DmE 222 =F2

14 RE
REFEERKRIKE ZKRE
2025 2024
—E-RF —EZE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
- 3,594

EESTERRREBE-_E-_AF=A=1+—
BLEEEZRERE(ZE2-MNF : TBT) ©

15 BREE ER

@ SREXER)HF
SIREAR (B518) R TR AR A 5
5 E BEAL (B518) /I B LA B T4 FE
BATENZ B BRIETHEHE (R E
N BT BRI ALRIE L B o

years.
2025 2024
—E-EHF o 11
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Loss)/profit attributable to the owners  FARFESRERER,BHEH
of the Company used in calculating ~ &NQFFrE B (B5E), 57
basic earnings/loss per share (13,440) 8,543
Weighted average number of shares ~ B#/TRM MEFHIE (TR)
in issue (thousand) 718,839 718,839
Basic (loss)/earnings per share RABEEEEERER
attributable to the owners of (F538) % F GBAL)
the Company (HK cents) (1.87) 1.19

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2025 is the same as the basic (loss)/earnings
per share as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary

shares issued (2024: Nil).

(b)) EBREEER) SRR
HRERCRTETEELER  ME8
EZE_AF=ZA=t—-HLEEZ
EREBE(HR) BN ESREN(EH
18),/EAER (ZEZlmE &) -
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Net book value

At 31 March 2023
Additions
Depreciation (Note 9)
Revaluation
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2024
Additions

Disposal
Depreciation (Note 9)
Revaluation

At 31 March 2025

At 31 March 2024
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

At 31 March 2025
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

REFE
R-B-=F=A=1-R
HE

iAGET)

Eff

ERZR

RZZ-ME=A=+-H
HE

HE

& (HEE9)

Bt

RIE-RF=A=1-H

R-B-mE=A=1-A
fhfE

FiAR

e

REFE
RZB-RF=A=1-R
fhfE

N

e

REFE
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16 M% - BMERRE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

Properties
held for Furniture,
own use Leasehold  fixtures and Motor
(Note) improvements  equipment vehicles Total
BFEBRNE B #£8
(W) HENELES EL k2 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TER TEn TER TEn
286,800 14,146 1,086 - 302,032
- 10,426 169 - 10,595
(12,117) (7,565) (446) - (20,128)
(9,683) - - - (9,683)
_ - ) - (4)
265,000 17,007 805 - 282,812
- 6,549 361 285 7,195
- (1,952) (37) (1) (1,990)
(11,720) (5,242) (358) 49) (17,369)
(32,680) - - - (32,680)
220,600 16,362 771 235 237,968
265,000 - - - 265,000
- 102,951 20,980 1,091 125,022
- (85,944) (20,175) (1,091)  (107,210)
265,000 17,007 805 - 282,812
220,600 - - - 220,600
- 85,091 20,547 796 106,434
- (68,729) (19,776) (561) (89,0066)
220,600 16,362 771 235 237,968



16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (coNT'D)

Note:

If properties held for own use were stated on the historical cost basis, the

amounts would be as follows:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Borrowings are secured by the properties held for own use in Hong Kong
with a total carrying amount of approximately HK$96,000,000 (2024:

approximately HK$186,900,000) (Note 23).

The following table analyses the properties held for own use

BAR
Rt E

IREFE

carried at fair value, by valuation method.

Description

As at 31 March 2025
Recurring fair value measurements
— Properties held for own use

As at 31 March 2024
Recurring fair value measurements
— Properties held for own use

Note:

For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the asset or liability are

R

R-ZZEZHF=A=+—H
REMASENE

—FEE R

R-ZE_ME=A=+—H
BEMANESE

—EfEE R

not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

W - BERZE @)
[

HIEE AMEDRBELIARERY  BRESHENT ¢

2025 2024
—E-RE —E-ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
191,412 191,412
(23,144) (19,956)
168,268 171,456

& 7R A48 BR T {8 #9 96,000,000 T(ZFE MW F : ¥
186,900,000/ 7T ) 2 BB IFEB AMEERA (K
23) e

TRAGEEDTRAAESRZFEERY
% o

Fair value measurements using
RATSSHEZARENE

Quoted

prices in
active Significant Significant
markets for other unobservable
identical observable inputs
assets inputs (Level 3)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Note)
HREER BEARHAM BEARH
SERTIS AEE  BERGARE
ZRE BWABE (B=PE)
(5—18) (B=FE) (M¥&E)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FiERT FET FHET
- - 220,600
- - 265,000

FH5E -

BREZEETZARBHEMS  EEREEZHAR
BAFEUTEETSHE (R JBEHAE) BER -
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D) 16 ¥% - BERRE @

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

Opening balance FHEEER

Depreciation e

Loss on revaluation recognised RERER EEEA
in profit or loss

Loss on revaluation recognised REMEEKSEER 2
in other comprehensive income EXry F

Closing balance FRER

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s properties held for own use were valued at 31
March 2025 by an independent and qualified valuer, Memfus
Wong Surveyors Limited, who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the
locations and segments of the properties held for own use
valued (2024: Same).

The Group's finance department includes a team that reviews
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to
the board of directors. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the review team and the valuer
annually.
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AEBzEEARERERANEBR 2 BE
BeEHREREBER  BREEANEE
RMeBAREH -FR - F-—F F-BRSE
ZEEAEES -

MAERTIBEGAYE (F=B) 22 RE

e

Properties held for own use

BEEAYE
2025 2024
—E-RHEF —ENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
265,000 286,800
(11,720) (12,117)
(13,301) (2,107)
(19,379) (7,576)
220,600 265,000

REBEZHER

AEBZHFERYMEHB LIS ERMERM
ERENFMITERAGANR-ZE_RF=A
=t+—-BETHE LEEMSEHRERTE
RER BREAROBRIEEBRYEMEL
ER D BETHENER(CE2ME - EE) -

REBMBIEE -—ZRMBRSE B NERS
MALERFTETAE B - ZEREERE
EEER - MEEBSFREAEMFREER
RRER -



16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (coNT'D) 16

Valuation processes of the Group (cont’d)

Level 3 fair values of properties held for own use have
been derived using the direct comparison approach,
which basically uses the comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market to derive the fair value of
the properties. Sale prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such
as time of transactions, property size and location. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is the market

unit rate.

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs
TABRRBARE

Market unit rate
THEER

Range of unobservable inputs
TABERAREEE

Office: HK$12,800 to HK$13,000 (2024:
HK$15,900 to HK$16,100) per square feet
of saleable area

EFE  BEREESFHIRI12,800E7TE 13,000
BT (ZZ =M : 15,9008TZE 16,1008 7T)

Shop: HK$51,300 (2024: HK$64,400) per
square feet of saleable area

54 - BREARSFHIR51,3008T (2220
F 1 64,4008 7T)

Warehouse: HK$3,000 (2024: HK$3,300)
per square feet of saleable area

ER ERE®RSFYHIR300ET(ZF=N
% 13,30087T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the

year (2024: Same).

W - BERZE @)

REBE 2z HERE (&)
FEEBRN*cE=BOARENEREELR
EEH c EEEBUE-RAAEEN S LAUE
Bz BHERZERWEQE - BiE
HWENELBX - EECHIS R - W%
HERHETERH 2 ZRFEHAR - ik
BEEZBRERBABBEATSEEER -

FRAFNAEATUERGARE (F=F8) 22
REFEZER

Relationship of unobservable
inputs of fair value
DAEMBRATEER AR ZBE
The higher the market unit rate, the

higher the fair value
TSEEELE - AAELE

FRGEETERERZE (CT-MF : EE) -
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17 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is

a lessee.

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following balances relating to the leases:

Right-of-use assets
Properties

Lease liabilities
Current
Non-current

EREEE
LS

HESE

3=
1L

FERE

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 March 2025 amounted to approximately
HK$14,117,000 (2024: approximately HK$35,339,000).

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
shows the following amounts relating to the leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use

assets (Note 9)

Expenses relating to short-term

leases (Note 9)

Interest expense (Note 10)

17

HE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

AHERHAEEERFEEAAZEEES -

@ RESUBRARABIZEE

REMBRRARIIRUTEREEARZ

#EER
2025 2024
—E-ERFE —EmE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F&T
27,123 37,344
20,789 19,406
7,734 19,418
28,523 38,824

BE-Z-_AF=A=+-—HLEFE"
REBERAEEEN14,117,0008 T (=2
Z PO : #935,339,000787C) °

b) RESEZARBRABRZEHE

REZEWSERIIRUTRESEARZ

T

2025
—ECRE
HK$’000
THET

EREEEZITERX (MEE9)

23,383

BEREHEE 2B (HEE9)

MBI (MEE10)

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended
31 March 2025 amounted to approximately
HK$25,459,000 (2024: approximately HK$35,512,000).
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351
2,215

2024
—EImEF
HK$’000
FHET

32,680

442
2,006

BE-Z-_HF=ZA=1+—HLEEE "
HEZHARSRHENE25,459,0008 T
(ZBZH4F : 435,512,000 7T) °



17 LEASES (coNT'D)

(0

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties including retail
shops, warehouse and office premises. The lease terms
are between one to six years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor.

18 PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2025 and 2024:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Accord Sky Limited
Accord Sky Limited
Asia Bon Company Limited

ER(EH) BEERARAT

Asia Richly Limited
ENERARAT

Bonco lronmongery Limited
RETLENERLT
Cypress Design Limited
NERTERAH

D.LY. Limited

D.L.Y. Limited

E. Bon Building Materials
Company Limited

BATRENHERAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

/R

Hong Kong
95
Hong Kong

2

Hong Kong
35

Hong Kong
R
Hong Kong
&4

Hong Kong

3

Hong Kong

&k

Particulars of issued
share capital

BRAREKHE

1,000,000 ordinary shares
1,000,000 8 Z#AR
100 ordinary shares

100 REBR

1 ordinary share

1REER

10,000 orclinary shares
10000 REER

1 ordinary share
1REER

2 ordinary shares

REER

6,000 ordinary shares

6,000 REBR

Legal structure

LR

Company with limited liabilities
BRERAH
Company with limited liabilities

BRERLT

Company with limited liabilities

BRE/AR
Company with limited liabilities
BRERAF
Company with limited liabilities

BREEAF

all

Company with limited liabilities

17

18

HE @)

© FEEZEESIBREAESR
AEEMERLEYE ShEESER
H SAREFZEYE - AHNT-Z
NI o
AR EREERY  YEEEERE
TSR R o AR 13 K A AE AT
28 EALBABEEEEET Y
ISR AP o

FTEMNBE D TFM

UTAR-ZZE-AFR-ZF-_NF=A=1+—
AZEEMBATIRE

Equity interest held

GEEes Principal activities and
2025 2024 place of operation
ZECRE ZEIME IERBREENE
100% 100%  Retail sales of kitchen collections and
furniture through retail shops in
Hong Kong
EETEENEATEAERRRE
R
100% 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong
REBENERE
100% 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong
RERENERE
100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural
builders’ hardware in Hong Kong
REBENRHERERS
100% 100%  Consulting services for interior design
and fitting out works
ERRTREE IR EARY
100% 100%  Handling of human resources planning
and development activities of the
Group
EEREEANERRARRREE
100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural

builders’ hardware and bathroom
collections in Hong Kong

REBENREERERSREARE
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18 PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

H20 (Pro) Limited
KZRERAT
Kitchen (Pro) Limited

BZRERAT

Massford (Hong Kong) Limited

Massford (Shanghai) Limited*

ZE(LB)TEBRAR

Oriental Forward Limited

RAKERRAT

Oriental Longway Limited

RARERRAT

Right Century Limited

BHERAT

Leader New Limited

HEARLH

Shanghai Tech Pro International
Trading Company Limited*

LEEREBESERAT

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

BUYEAE
Hong Kong
5%

Hong Kong
Bl

Hong Kong
&%
PRC
T
Hong Kong
B4
H?ng Kong
Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
&

PRC

Particulars of issued
share capital

BRTRARE

2 ordinary shares
AREER

1,000 ordinary shares
1,000 REBR

10,000 ordinary shares

10,000 REBR

US$250,000

250,000

1 ordinary share
1REER

1 ordinary share

TREER

1,000 ordinary shares

1,000 RZER

1 ordinary share

TREER

US$300,000

300,000 X7

Legal structure

EERE

Company with limited liabilities
BRERLT

Company with limited liabilities

AREMRAF

Company with limited liabilities

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

RIELE

Company with limited liabilities

BRERAH

Company with limited liabilities

ARERLT

Company with limited liabilities

Company with limited liabilities

EREEAT

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

E¥|N -l 3

e

Equity interest held

iR
2025 2024
—E-RE  ZE-ME
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

BRI

18 FEMBATFHMA @)

Principal activities and
place of operation

IEERRERDE

Importing and sale of bathroom
collections in Hong Kong

REBEORBEGARE

Importing, sale and installation of
kitchen collections in Hong Kong

REBED - BERZRHERRE

Supply of architectural builcers’
hardware and bathroom collections for

property development in Hong Kong
REEHEREREREARETNE
#RER

Supplying architectural builders’
hardware and bathroom collections

for property development in Shanghai
RESHERERSREARAET
IESEE

Property Holding in Hong Kong
REBENERE

Property Holding in Hong Kong
REEENREE

Retail sales of bathroom accessories and
decoration materials through retail

shops in Hong Kong
ERTEENERZEHEHARN
REHHH

Property Holding in Hong Kong
REEFIREE

Importing and sale of architectural
builders hardware and bathroom
collections in the PRC

RYBENRHERERERERRG



18 PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’D)
Place of
incorporation/  Particulars of issued
Name of subsidiary establishment  share capital Legal structure
WELARER HR/RIEE BRORAFE EEER

*

Sunny Building and Decoration - Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares Company with limited liabilities
Materials Company Limited

MAEGHATETEARAR £ 6,000 REER BRERLT

Techpro Trading Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares Company with limited liabilities
ERENESERLT £i8 1,000 REER BRERLF

VIA (Shanghai) Limited* PRC US$250,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise
B (LB ZAFERRAT E 250,000% 7 EX[5 ¥

The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent
management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of these
subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.

18 FEMBE D BIFH @)

Equity interest held

s RAER Principal activities and
2025 2024 place of operation
ZRIREE ZECME IERBRERNE
100% 100%  Retail sales of architectural builders
hardware and bathroom collections
through retail shops in Hong Kong
BRTEENEETEHERENS
KRR
100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural
builders hardware
ENREERERS
100% 100%  Importing and sale of bathroom, furniture

and kitchen collections in Shanghai
REBENRHERE  FiR
BR#fE

HALREFHEARLEBTRRAERE  #Z
ERNERHEEBRBI X EBWEBLEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %48 8R&EH

19 INVENTORIES 19 ®&
2025 2024
—EZHF —ENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FiBT
Finished goods o) 113,181 169,712
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included RARFXLETATHERE | 2FERENH
in “cost of sales” amounted to approximately HK273,485,000 273,485,000 T (ZZF 24 : 265,550,000
(2024: approximately HK$265,550,000). BIT) °
As at 31 March 2025, finished goods with cost of R-ZE-AF=A=+—-H BEHRE
approximately HK$36,516,000 (2024: approximately R A #536,5160008 T(ZE-ME: &
HK$35,020,000) were considered as obsolete. 35,020,000587T) °
The movement in the provision for inventory obsolescence is PHEFERESESNT
as follows:
2025 2024
—E-HF —EMEFE
HK$/000 HK$'000
FRT FiET
Balance at beginning of the year FEER 35,020 34,490
Reversal of provision for inventory BRFFEEERD (M)
obsolescence (Note 9) (1,489) (2,978)
Provision for inventory obsolescence BEEEERE (H:E9)
(Note 9) 3,014 3,711
Exchange difference ERER (29) (203)
Balance at end of the year FREERR 36,516 35,020
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CONTRACT ASSETS

20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20

Details of the trade, retention, other receivables and contract
assets as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 are listed below:

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
trade receivables

Retention receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
retention receivables

Contract assets
Less: provision for impairment of
contract assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Less: non-current portion
Retention receivables
Deposits

Current portion

YRR
B FEUARTURER A

FEWS 4R B 3K
B FEUWR B RORLE B

BREE
B ANEERERR

HiEWR - BERANR

B FERNEIE
FE U 4R B 3R
7E

ENERER

All non-current receivables are due within five years from the

end of the respective reporting dates.

FE U BR X -
REEHNEE

BWRRER - HMEK

R-ZB-ZRER-ZZB-_MF=RA=1+—-—HZE
WERR - BBRE R HtBEWR R ENEE

FHEWT
2025 2024
—B-RF —ECEEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#R FHT
70,400 96,532
2,111) (1,886)
68,289 94,646
946 1,147
(260) (274)
68,975 95,519
5,993 3,870
30) (33)
74,938 99,356
16,374 24,466
91,312 123,822
(103) (32)
(5,095) (4,808)
86,114 118,982

AR D 2 BUHRER S HREAERE

FFRFREIH -

MHBTERABRIA2024/255 F 1K
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20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (cONT'D)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date
by invoice date is as follows:

1-90 days 1ZE90K
91-365 days 91 E365K
Over 365 days BB 365K

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30
to 90 days, while some customers are granted an extended
credit period of up to 120 days.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade and retention receivables and
contract assets. Information about the impairment of these
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk is set out
in Note 3.1(c).

The movement in the provision of expected credit loss on
trade, retention receivables and contract assets is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year FE R
Loss allowance for the year FRBIERE
Written-off i
Exchange difference ERER
Balance at end of the year FREEH

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying values of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values (2024: Same).

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25
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EUWEER - ERARER - HiEW
AREHNEE @)

FEWERFAERE B 2Rk (B HFE) 247
LU

2025 2024
—E-HF —ENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT FBxT
45,323 62,458
13,962 14,730
11,115 19,344
70,400 96,532

FEBZHEFEMABIRI0E0KXR M
BOEFNEERIRERERZ 120K

AEBEREBMEHREEAFEIFE AT
EEHEERE  HAMEREWERRRERRE
MUREHNEEFREZBRENEBRE 56
ZERURERERTEEEERRMNERE
AHEE3. 1) °

YRS - BRURBRARENEEZRABREER
BEBEEBHNT -

2025 2024

—EC-RE —E_E

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FET

2,193 1,397

218 1,195
- (488)

(10) 89

2,401 2,193
R-F-BF=A=+-0 ERERREM
ERRzREEEEANABRE (ZE-WE

R °



20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20

21

CONTRACT ASSETS (coNT'D)

Details of contract assets are as follows:

Contract assets related to contract work BREAHIRNASYNEE

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting from
contract work when revenue recognised exceeds the amount
billed to the customer.

R - ERARER - HiEW
REREHEE @)

ERNEEFBOT :
2025 2024
—E-HE —EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FET
5,994 3,870

BHEERRCRANEBEBATFRHRE
NERRENIREENRBRESHE -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME 21 ReRReEEYURRITESNRF
DEPOSITS AT BANKS EN

2025 2024

—E-RF —EIMEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER Fi&xT

Cash at bank and on hand ROTEREFERS 96,444 57,377

Time deposits at banks with maturity =18 B A LRI H VIR 1T E BRI TF X
over three months 33,013 30,309
129,457 87,686

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$3,601,000 (2024: approximately
HK$3,574,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC, where
the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

Cash at banks include short-term bank time deposits with
maturity of 3 months, approximately HK$27,338,000 (2024:
approximately to HK$20,309,000) with interest rate ranged
from 3.40% to 4.05% (2024: ranged from 3.22% to 4.52%)
per annum.

The deposits at banks carry interest at mark rates which range
from 3.42% to 3.73% (2024: 3.22% to 4.53%) per annum.

RIZEZHF=A=+—8 FEEZEEK
SRITAERK3,601,0008 T(ZE-WE :
3,574,000/ 7T) EFARE 21T ERZ I
EMRBHIES o

RITRESBE=EAZHNEHRTEH
FRMN27338000EF T (ZFE-_MF: Y
20,309,000 7T) » FRENF3.40% £ 4.05%
(ZEZFE : NF3.22%F4.52%) °

RTERIRENEIA%EI.73%(ZE-M
F 13.22%F4.53%)TE -

MHBTERABRIA2024/255 F 1K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Accrued charges and other payables
Contract liabilities

Employee benefit obligations

Less: non-current portion
Employee benefit obligations

Current portion

FEATRRAR

FEsT & AR H AR
BHNEE
BEBNEE

B FERNERER
BEBANERE

BN R 2

The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting date

by invoice date is as follows:

0-90 days
91-365 days
Over 365 days

0ZE 90K
91 £365 K
BB 365k

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying values of trade and other
payables approximate their fair values (2024: Same).

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Contract liabilities for unsatisfied
performance obligations

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

ABHNEFEHNEE

22 ERRRREGEASRRENAE

2025 2024
“BCRF — ks
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FTET
14,518 25,724
6,423 5,253
45,685 62,804
4,745 4,782
71,371 98,563
(4,745) (4,782)
66,626 93,781

FE BRI IR E B 2 iRl (B R RAFE) 247

mE

2025 2024
—E-RE —E_E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
9,383 19,156
4,825 3,156
310 3,412
14,518 25,724

R-ZBE-RF= &

A=
ARz REERA
1) e

EHNEEHBUT
2025
—ECRE
HK$’000
THET

45,685

+

S{EE%

+—8 ENERAREM
n (ZE- &

2024
—EImEF
HK$’000
FHBT

62,804




22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT

23

LIABILITIES (coNnT'D)

Contract liabilities consist of consideration received (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer for goals
that have not yet been transferred to the customers.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to
carried-forward contract liabilities:

22 ENRRERAEMEARRENEAE

(%)

BHNEBERERERAZTFEBNEREMEE

EFNRE(REHRELH) -

TRETHFESNEEHEBENAREHEE

BRWEEHE

Revenue recognised that was included st AE¥EHNEBEHNT R

in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year

BORROWINGS

Current ENEp

— Mortgage loans —EBER

— Trust receipt loans — SRR ER

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amounts of trust receipt
loans are denominated in EUR and the mortgage loans are
denominated in HK$ (2024: Same). The carrying amounts of
borrowings approximate their respective fair values.

2025 2024
—E-HE —EMF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FET
47,936 54,326
23 B
2025 2024
—E-HE —E-ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FH&T
23,875 51,320
3,019 7,282
26,894 58,602

R-B-EF=A=t+—0 EEUBER
REEABES G HRBERALETHE

(ZZ2ZEF : MEE) - BR

ZRSEEE °

ZIREEEREER
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23 BORROWINGS (cONT'D)

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s borrowings were repayable
based on contractual repayment terms as follows:

Within one year —FR

In the second year EZFR

In the third to fifth year BE=FEZEAFA
Over fifth year BBERE

As at 31 March 2025, the borrowings of approximately
HK$23,875,000 (2024: approximately HK$51,320,000)
are secured by properties held for own use of the Group
of approximately HK$96,000,000 (2024: approximately
HK$186,900,000) (Note 16).

The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

Floating rate:
— Expiring within one year

FEIRIER
— —FREH

The effective interest rate is 5.12% per annum (2024: 5.8%
per annum) for the year ended 31 March 2025.

As at 31 March 2025, the banking facilities were secured by
the following:

(i)  Corporate guarantee provided by the Company; and
(i)  Certain properties held for own used in Hong Kong.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities for the year ended 31 March 2025.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25
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ik
RS )

R-ZZBE-HE=ZA=1+—0  *EEERES
HNERREEZEROT ¢

2025 2024
—E-EHF —ETE
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

4,786 11,812

1,733 4,703

5,539 15,803

14,836 26,284
26,894 58,602

RZE_EF=A=+—-—H8B' BRY
23,875,000 T (ZE =MW : 51,320,000
BIT) R AAREE AR 96,000,000 T (ZF
ZIUE : #9186,900,00058T0) 2 F1EE A
{EIR IR (FEE 16) ©

FEBEUTRBAZRETH

2025 2024
—EC-RE —E_E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
117,361 163,312

BE-_E-_AF=A=1+—HLEEERE
FEE512% (ZE=ZWE : §F5.8%) °

R-B-HE=A=+—B  RTBEU T
SRR

(i) ALARHAREVER R

(i) MEBETIEHEBRWE-

BE—_Z_A5=A=t+—HLEE &x&£H
CETHEBEESHE KRR -



24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Not qualified for hedge accounting
Foreign exchange forward contract,
at market value (Note)

Note:

THEHTETER
HEERMELN  BHE
(Bf&E)

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange forward

contracts as at 31 March 2024 are as follows:

Sell HKD for EUR

HEHBTABE

24 TTESRMERE

2025
—EB-HE
HK$’000
FHERT

36

2024
—EIEF
HK$’000
FiET

BiEE -

RE-BE-ME=ZA=+—AEARTEZIERBAENZ

EEASEHEWT ¢

2025
—E-HEF
HK$’000
FET

21,073

2024
—EmEF
HK$’000
FiEgx
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25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 25 EEFTER
2025 2024
—EB-RHE —E_NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F@&xT F#&T
Deferred income tax assets EILFEREE 3,302 5,325
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFEFREE 8,313) (14,500)
(5,011) (9,175)
The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and REEBEHEBBIE A EEERIEEEERAT
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration AEEZRIEMSHEEREEHAEZFWM
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are T
as follows:
Deferred income tax assets EEMBSHREE
Decelerated tax
Tax losses depreciation Provision Total
REBE HERERE B @t
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

ZECEF ZECNE ZBCRFE -ECME CBCEF ZECME ZBCEF ZECMF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FHBR TR Fax Fax FHBR TR Fix Far

At 1 April RmA-H 1,589 1,369 13,550 12,553 304 350 15,443 14,272
(Charged)/credit to profit (HR8)/FHABH
or loss 149 220 (1,183) 997 (187) 47 (1,221) 1,264
Exchange difference ERizE - - - - 2 (93) ) (93)
At 31 March R=A=+-H 1,738 1,589 12,367 13,550 115 304 14,220 15,443
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFERaE
Revaluation of properties  Accelerated tax depreciation Total
MEEM IEBIETE mst
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

2R ZECRE SBoRf SECOQNS SBCEF STCONF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

TERT FTHER FTER FiEx THEx TET

At 1 April REE—A 23,906 25,501 712 620 24,618 26,121
Credited to other STAEMZEKE

comprehensive income (3,198) (1,250) - - (3,198) (1,250)

Credited to profit or loss sTABE (2,195) (345) 6 92 (2,189) (253)

At 31 March R=A=+—-H 18,513 23,906 718 712 19,231 24,618
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25 DEFERRED TAXATION (coNT'D) 25 RIEFRBH @
As at 31 March 2025, the Group has not recognised deferred RZZZREF=ZRA=1T—-R0 XEEHKRE
income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of REBRFHIEEEL20,709,0008 T (=&
approximately HK$20,709,000 (2024: approximately PO 1 4924,348,00078 L) ZIELE BB E
HK$24,348,000) as it is not probable that future taxable B WIHEREEESERiEERNEHEE
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be BBME - AR KA REEUS FEFIE R F LUK $5
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. These BIREE - ZEREBFEZIBAMT ¢
tax losses utilisation will expire as follows:
2025 2024
—E-EREF —EMF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiERT
In the first to fifth year inclusive E-FEELFA(BREEWE) 20,709 24,348
Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$359,000 R-ZE-RAF=A=+—H0 HEHRHBELA
as at 31 March 2025 (2024: approximately HK$349,000) AERBFEMZENBR LA ERIEL
have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other FrER B/~ 359,0008T(ZE-ME : 4
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of 349,0007T) R—ZE-_HE=A=+—8 -
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled approximately KERMEHYAE7,187,0008 T (==Y
HK$7,187,000 at 31 March 2025 (2024: approximately B #96,974,00038 7T) R AN E B T E AT
HK$6,974,000), and the Group does not intend to remit these BEREALQATHEMBATZAERF -
unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiaries to the
Company in the foreseeable future.
26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 KA
2025 2024
S 2 —EomE
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
BHBE TR KA TR
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each SRAGI BT EBR
At 1 April and 31 March ROEA-AR=A=t-H 1,000,000,000 100,000  1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRARZHEXA
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREBETZEER
At 1 April and 31 March REA-AR=A=t-H 718,838,942 71,884 718,838,942 71,684

189
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27 RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group's reserves are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
certain subsidiaries of the Company are required to
apportionate certain percentage of their profits after tax to the
respective statutory reserves. Subject to certain restrictions
as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, this statutory
reserve may be used to reduce any losses incurred or for
capitalisation as paid-up capital of the PRC subsidiary.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share
premium account of the group companies acquired pursuant
to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 22
March 2000, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represented contribution surplus made by
the then shareholders to certain subsidiaries of the Company
before the group reorganisation on 22 March 2000.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25
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FEBZRESDIABANGEREZB X -

EE

BHBEBERARERS  AATETHWEAR
AREBAZEERBHR  SEABRBERE
MzBERETEDL - RETEBERG2E
TR ZEERBTEAETRMBAREE
Z B ERAESHERAERL

i

FEEEHREREEREERRER =
EERF-A+-HZEREAT(EHEDK
BEBNELAREEZROBEREE It
EEBBAEBRZ A AR RITRG 2HEE °

BEXfEE
EXNFBER-ZEEF=-A-+-REKEE
HAERRREAQNAETHBLARD ZHER
% o



28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

28 BHEREER

(@ Cash flows from operating activities (@ KETHELEZHEERE
2025 2024
—E-HEF —EMF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT Fi&xT
(Loss)/profit before income tax METERAT (BEB),%5F (11,876) 10,862
Adjustments for: BTHRIEFE
Finance costs BH5 % A 4,402 5,539
Finance income BEFEUR A (1,336) (1,924)
Loss on revaluation of properties FEERYRELER
held for own use 13,301 2,107
Provision for inventory obsolescence Bz & & 1,525 733
Net impairment on financial and ERMEENEEZREFHE
contract assets 218 1,195
Loss on forward contracts EBRANER 36 1,157
Loss on lease modification HEBNEE 32 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE  BMERSBECEE
and equipment 1,731 -
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #% - BERREITE
equipment 17,369 20,128
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEERE 23,383 32,680
Remeasurements of employee BEBANETEHNE
benefit obligations 37) (1,239)
Operating profit before working LIEE BB EEF
capital changes 48,748 71,238
Inventories 75 54,972 (25,843)
Trade, retention and other receivables pEUEES: - EWGEE SR
HAh R 34,419 (22,821)
Contract assets BHEE (2,145) (704)
Trade and other payables and provision FE{sBER & H Al FEAT 7% % B4 (10,533) (11,741)
Contract liabilities =Y (17,102) (7,460)
Cash generated from operations EAREE N S IH S 108,359 2,669
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CcONT'D)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial
activities

At 1 April 2023
Cash flows
Non-cash movement

R-B-=£mA—A
ReRE
FREBD

At 31 March 2024
Cash flows
Non-cash movement

RehE
¥RLBH

At 31 March 2025

(c) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment comprise:

Net book amount (Note 16)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
(Note 7)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HE&EW% - BERREFERIE

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2025, performance bonds of approximately
HK$2,694,000 (2024: approximately HK$7,870,000)
have been issued by the Group to customers as security of
contracts.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25

R-BE-_NME=A=+—H

R-B-HEF=A=+—H

AREFE (3£ 16)
HENE BERRBEZEER

28 BEREER @)

(b BETBHELENEEHIK

Liabilities from financing activities

MEZHZEE
Lease

Borrowings liabilities Total
CEN HESE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FBxT FBxT
63,969 37,603 101,572
(8,900) (35,070) (43,970)
3,533 36,291 39,824
58,602 38,824 97,426
(33,895) (25,108) (59,003)
2,187 14,807 16,994
26,894 28,523 55,417

(0 HEYXE BERRBREFABE:

2025
—ECAHF
HK$’000
FT
1,990
(#2E7) (1,731)
259

29 HAEE

MRIEBE_RAFE=RB=+—H  AEEACEREF
BHBAREL42,6940008T(=ZE=MN
% 1 #7,870,000B ) EBEHIER -



30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BEALRS

Related parties refer to entities in which the Company has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control. Members
of key management of the Group and their close family
members are also considered as related parties.

(@ Significant transactions between the Group and its
related parties during the year ended 31 March 2025
There are no significant transactions with related parties
during the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Same).

(b) Balances with related parties

BEATEALAREESBEENS A
HZE—A2HBREERRREERTEN
ZERE - BERZHEES  ATKRSEEA
T o AEETREEBAERAEMBTRRAE
BAL

(@@ BE-Z-_HAF=A=+—HLEFEZX
EEEEBEATZEARS
BE-_Z-_AF=A=+—HLEFE"
AEFHEBEATTEEARZ (=2
—PE AR ©

(b) BEALZHEER

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FiBxT
Other receivables from RE LT 2 B H E b FEUUK
— Negotiator Consultants Limited — Negotiator Consultants Limited
(“NCL") (Note) (TNCL) (BfE) - 306
- 306

Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair
values (2024: Same).

Note:

NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai,
Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, directors of
the Company, have beneficial interests. The lease payment was paid
in the normal course of business at terms mutually agreed between the
Group and NCL.

(c) Key management compensation
Details of the key management compensation during the
year ended 31 March 2025 are included in Note 12 (f).

FERABER RERABRERER -
SREEEAAERS (ZTZWEF 8
@) e

FyE

NCLAARNBESHIELE  WHELE B
HEEERWEREEREESRE2NT B
BENRERFERBRETEAEEENCLEREZ
TE IR -

(0 FEEEEFH
Ek:zé—v_fﬁi A=+- EIJL@F‘E’J
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31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

ASSETS
Non-current asset
Interest in a subsidiary

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables

Current income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables

Total equity and liabilities

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2025 and

were signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry

A
Director

EF
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RATBMBRRRRFEED

2025 2024

—EZHF —EMmE

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BT EE FHET FH&T
90,917 90,918

42,136 42,460

- 30

269 116

977 1,147

_________ 43,382 43,753
134,299 134,671

71,884 71,884

(@) 60,828 60,811
132,712 132,695

1,587 1,976

___________ 1,587 1976
134,299 134,671

RARHHRARCKESENR_T_RFX
BZ+HB#E  WATHESRKREE -

TSE Sun Po, Tony
HHE
Director

EF



31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

31 AARMBERRRRBESE @

Note: F=E
(@  Reserve movement of the Company (@ RATHERE
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
BHRE REBRFI Fohy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FBT FBT
At 1 April 2023 RZBE-_=FMA—H 10,784 52,469 63,253
Profit for the year FEHEA - 1,152 1,152
Dividends (Note 14) BE (HEE14) - (3,594) (3,594)
At 31 March 2024 R-B-mWE=A=+—H 10,784 50,027 60,811
At1 April 2024 R-B-mEmA—A 10,784 50,027 60,811
Profit for the year FEERN - 17 17
At 31 March 2025 R-E-HEFE=HA=+—A1H 10,784 50,044 60,828
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

32.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(@

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entity (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (see (c) below),
after initially being recognised at cost.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(cont’d)

(©

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associated
companies are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associated companies are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy described in Note 32.5.

32 HttBHEEXRSHTHERE @)

32.1

FERARERSHEE (E)
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

32.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that make
strategic decisions.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024/25
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.4 Foreign currency translation

(@

b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in the
profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented within “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

32

HBEEXSTHERE @)

32.4 HhEEBmE

@

(b)

WEER ZSIEH
FEBSEER 2 MBHRKRAIIE
EYUZEREEMEETEETR
BeEWTE(HREE ] - 58
MHHRETZ2S - BTHERLD
ANEEERAEEZIEE -

XE R

IEZXGHRARGREBEHE
ZEERHCERRERDEER
WMo HAEUERGEECE NS
REBURSUMNEHEZERE
EREEUFRERBREELZE
RRBEREE -REBSZAES -

FEELWEREEEINGEERE
Wk A [ EAM (R WE R
25 -

MHBTERABRIA2024/255 F 1K

199



200

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.4 Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(¢) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

32.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Other assets that are subject to amortisation are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL 32 HBEEARSEHBRBE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.6 Offsetting financial instruments 326 HHSHMITA

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

32.7 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The gain
or loss relating to the fair value re-measurement is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss within “Other
(losses)/gains, net”.

32.8 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

32.9 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.10 Trade and other payables

32.11

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

32.12 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.13 Finance income

Finance income is recognised using the effective interest
method to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

32.14 Employee benefits

(@

(b)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service payments to its employees upon the
termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfils certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& BB HREM

32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance
cost.

32.16 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.17 Earnings per share

(@

(b)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

— the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

— by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

— the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year and excluding treasury shares.
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Five-Year Financial Summary 558 EBRE

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—B-RF ZEoWNF ZE-=F CZE--F CZT-—F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET T FTET
Results ES
(Loss)/profit attributable to KATFEE
equity holders of the FEft (B518) &R
Company (13,440) 8,543 14,073 11,894 10,769
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—EBE-RE —ZEBE-NE Z—ZE-=F B —EBE--—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FExT FET
Assets and liabilities BERAE
Total assets s E 605,782 711,095 740,573 702,224 702,678
Total liabilities FCN =R (139,859) (215,602) (243,858) (231,703) (241,4406)
Shareholders” equity BERERS 465,923 495,493 496,715 470,521 461,232
The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five #A&EEH#ZE-—Z-_—F -_ZT-__F._ZF_=%-
years ended 31 March 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 have Z—Z-PMR-ZF-_AF=A=+-ALABAFES
been prepared on a consolidated basis. FRE BERBBDEGSEERR -
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